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We want to express our sincere thanks to our valued
investors for choosing to be a part of our banking family.
Your trust means the world to us, and we are fully committed
to ensuring that your investment in our Bank flourishes
sustainably. With excitement, we are pleased to present our
17th Annual Report—a detailed account that delves into
the Bank's financial position, performance, cash flow, and
other essential information. Our goal is to equip you with
all the insights needed to make informed decisions about
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your investments. Your partnership is at the heart of our
success, and we are enthusiastic about the journey ahead.
Here's to another year of growth, prosperity, and shared
accomplishments. Thank you for being an integral part of
our story.

ABOUT THE REPORT

Our Approach to Reporting

This Annual Report presents a halistic assessment of Muktinath Bikas Bank
Limited's financial and non-financial performance for FY 2079-80. Our primary
goal is to transparently communicate our sustainable banking practices and
the underlying value creation model to all our stakeholders. Furthermore, the
report seeks to present a well-rounded view of Muktinath, covering aspects
such as corporate governance, board and management structures, business
policies, management systems, and an unwavering commitment to our valued
stakeholders.

Frameworks, Guidelines, and Standards
The Statutory Reports presented in this report complies with the requirement of:

« Companies Act, 2063.

+« Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073.

“ Nepal Rastra Bank's Unified Directives, 2078 and other directions and circulars
issued in this regard.

“ Regulations of Securities Exchange Board of Nepal.

+* Nepal Financial Reporting Standards issued by Accounting Standards Board,
Nepal

Reporting Cycle

The information presented in this report pertains to the period from st Shrawan
2079 to 31st Asar 2080 (17th July 2022 to 16th July 2023).

Reporting Scope and Boundary

The non-financial information in this Report covers the activities and progress of
the Bank on a standalone basis.

Board and Management Assurance

The Board and the management have thoroughly reviewed the report. Both the
Board of Directors and the Bank's management recognize their responsibility in
safeguarding the integrity of the information contained herein. They are confident,
to the best of their knowledge, that this report comprehensively addresses all
material issues and faithfully represents the integrated performance of the Bank
and its impact in a fair and accurate manner.

This report can be viewed by
scanning this QR code. You
may also visit our website
www.muktinathbank.com.np
to read the report online.

Feedback

Your valuable feedback is integral to the continuous improvement of our annual
report. Please mail us your comments to info@muktinathbank.com.np.




In the dynamic realm of the Economy and
Banking, our Institution stands out as a
beacon of RESILIENCE, navigating
challenges with unwavering strength.

RESPONSIBILITY takes precedence,
witha steadfast commitment to corporate
governance, robust risk management,
ethical practices, and sustainability.

Our TRANSFORMATIVE initiatives drive a
digital evolution for enhancing customer
experience, operational efficiency, and
fostering business models that enrich
and align seamlessly with the evolving
demands of the economy.

"As we maneuver through the complexities
of the financial sector, our focus remains
resolute on adapting, innovating, and
maintaining the highest standards of
responsibility, further solidifying our position
as a trusted and forward-thinking Institution.



FEASIBLE 91oico

DIGITALY

Unlock Your Digital Freedom with Muktinath Dioital Banking Services

| O 9802306889 to know more

S 050

3



WHAT'S INSIDE

OVERVIEW

Muktinath , with a close view 4
Vision, Mission & Values 7
Code of Conduct and Ethical Principles 8
Adive into our achievements 10
Key Financial & Non-financial Hightlights 12
Our Key Performance Indicators 14
Awards & Recognition 16
LEADERSHIP INSIGHT

Chairman's Message 18
CEQ's Message 20
Board of Directors Photo 24
Senior Management Photo 26
Management Committee 28
Organisation Structure 30
SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW

Corporate Governance 31
Stakeholders Engagement 40
Value Creation 42
Capital-Wise Performance 44
Value, Market & Economic Added Statement 50
Risk Management & IT Governance 52
Our Approach to ESG 55
Green Initiatives for a Greener Tomorrow 56
Empowering Communities 58
STATUTORY REPORTS

AGM Natice 63
Director's Report 66
Disclosure Pursuant to Companies Act, 2063 77
Disclosure Pursuant to Securities Registration &
Issuance Regulation and Corporate Governance

for Listed Companies, 2074 80
NRB Approval Letter & Board Response 86
FINANCIAL REPORTS

Independent Auditor's Report 89
Consolidated Financial Statements S8
Notes to the Consolidate Financial Statements 1071
Subsidiary Independent Auditor's Report 166
Subsidiary Financial Statements 170

Please refer to page number 179 for Proxy Form.



Muktinath,

with a clise view

With the vision to “Be the most
preferred robust Bank in Nepal
while  uplifting socio-economic
status of people’, we have been
walking the dream since 3rd
January, 2007 with our operative
inception in Putalibazar, Syangja
as a Development Bank licensed
by Nepal Rastra Bank with scope
within Syangja, Kaski and Tanahun
district. With upgradation to
National Level Development Bank
in July, 2015, we have remarkable
footprints in @ Nepalese Banking
industry as a leading development
Bank with Balance sheet size of
NPR 131 billion, 178 Branches, 22
ATM spread across the country
serving more than 1.4 million happy
customers from the diversities of
social stratum in the country.

Our deep-rooted values for
social inclusion through assess
to finance with core principal of
3g] U8~ (instead people coming
to Bank, Bank should go to the
doors of the people) , we prioritized
establishing branches in rural
regions of Nepal with pressing
demand for banking services.
Our popularity within the local
community can be attributed
by customer-friendly offerings
and our door-to-door services.
We introduced  Microfinance
program, targeted to local MSMEs
with dedicated department and
people at all levels to support
economically disadvantaged yet
highly productive individuals with
potentials. Pioneering aninnovative

approach, we are believed to be
the first to seamlessly cater to
both commercial and microfinance
clients living up our mission of
inclusive financial service provider
for all the stakeholder's wellbeing.
As the expansion into financially
viable regions with unwavering
approach in assisting communities
and customers, we take pride in
being acknowledged as a key
contributor to the country's
socioeconomic development
with our involvement in micro and
rural financing with value added
services and funding initiatives of
National importance.

Our visionary approach to be
a wholistic financial  service
provider was possible with the
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establishment of Muktinath Capital
Limited within our ecosystem.
Muktinath Capital Limited
stands as one of the premium
investments and merchant bank
in Nepal, offering a range of
services including share registrar,
issue management, underwriting,
depository, portfolio management
and advisory services. We are
strengthening the link between
strategy and sustainability with
establishment  of  "Muktinath
Krishi Company". It is an associate
company of Muktinath Bikas Bank
standing as a trailblazer, being the
first public agriculture company
with objective of managerial role
in the complete agricultural value
chain through initiatives in “Krishak
sanga Muktinath” and “"Upabhokta
sanga Muktinath” within regulatory
framework of the country.

Through our unrelenting pursuit
of productive sector exposure,
resource mobilization and
technological adaptation, we stay
dynamic while contributing to the
creation of new opportunities.
However, amidst this adaptability,
we anchor ourselves in enduring
principles to earn and uphold
trust as our commitment to all
our stakeholders. Our steadfast
dedication lies in cultivating
relationship that yields benefits
for all stakeholders, encompassing
customers, shareholders,
regulators, communities and our
own team.

MukTINATH Bikas Bank

We received international
recognition in 2020 AD when
we were awarded the esteemed
European Microfinance  Award
2020 for our dedicated
commitment to accomplishing goal
of financial inclusion and financial
accessibility for rural communities.
We are proud member of Global
Alliance for Banking on Values
(GABV) and endorses of Principles
for Responsible Banking (UNEP
Finance Initiatives), Smart
Campaign and Social Performance
Task Force (SPTF). We received
numerous awards and acclaims
for our services till date, which has
actually humbled our dream for
building a socially and ecologically
sustainable future.

In line with the broader trend in
the banking sector, we have our
primary emphasis on six key
dimensions of: Finance, Operations,
Technology, organization, Business
Model and reputation. There is
a recognized imperative to be
thoroughly examined and ensure
the relevance of our Business
Model, particularly to enhance
short-term resilience and foster
long-term sustainable growth. Our
General Banking division provides
an extensive array of financial
services catering to both the
public and institutions. Ranging our
service from deposit acceptance,
corporate and retail credit, project
financing, hire purchase financing,
trade financing, personal and

corporate banking, and various
other supplementary services with
primary goal to offer a secure and
convenient means for individuals
and businesses to oversee and
access their funds, facilitating their
diverse financial requirement.

Our distinct yet pioneer framework
of inclusive financial services,
encompassing Micro  Banking,
Impact  (partnership)  Banking,
and Wholesale Banking with
fundamental goal of inclusive
banking to facilitate financial
intermediation by offering diverse
and affordable financial services,
ensuring accessibility to people
from all walks of life.

We adhere to the tenets of good
governance and  compliance,
conforming to both regulatory
requirement and industry best
practices. In a dedication to

transparency  and  inclusive
governance, we openly
communicate  all  significant
decision,  thereby preserving

transparency and promoting the
standards of effective corporate
governance.

This year has been marked by
resilience adaptability and shared
commitmenttofinancialexcellence.
Our journey is intertwined with
our financial aspirations, and we
eagerly anticipate another year
of partnership, growth and mutual
success throughout this journey of
excellence.
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Vision

Be the most preferred
robust Bank in Nepal
while uplifting socio-

economic status of
people.
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Mission

Become a leading,
financially viable, socially
acceptable, regulatory
compliant, environment
friendly, inclusive
financial services
provider for all the
stakeholders' wellbeing.
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Values

Goal Focused

(cT&TaT Bodia)
Result Oriented
(TRUTTgTa1AT)

Ownership in the tasks
(corefa frFdrars)

Well-being
(Jdfee)
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CODE OF CONDUCT

At Muktinath, our Code of Conduct is like a8 moral compass, guiding us to act with integrity and follow the bank's rules. It's
not just a set of guidelines; it represents what our bank stands for and the kind of culture we want to nurture. We're all about
creating an open and diverse environment where success is built on respect, collaboration, and teamwork in serving our clients
and communities. The Code of Conduct is more than just words; it shapes our workplace culture around trust, fairness, and
excellence for everyone at Muktinath.

Customer Focus:

» We prioritize our customers by helping them make informedfinancial decisions.

| » We are honest and fair in all our dealings and communications with customers.

» We protect customer confidential information and data with the utmost care.

» We respond promptly to customer complaints, addressing them with a fair,
consistent, and responsible approach.

>
Er

Responsibility and Culture:

Integrity and Transparency:

» We act with integrity in all our transactions and interactions.

» Transparency is key to our success — we communicate openly and honestly.

» Upholding the highest ethical standards, we lead by example in every aspect of
our work. ‘

| » Each one of us is responsible for upholding the values and culture of Muktinath.

» We work towards maintaining and enhancing our organizational culture.

» We tackle challenges with fairness, consistently demonstrating responsibility
towards our stakeholders.

4
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Reporting Violations:

Excellence:

» We pursue excellence in every field, striving to make a positive difference.
» Leading by example, we set high standards for ourselves and others.
» Continuous improvement and innovation are integral to our pursuit of excellence.

» It is the responsibility of every member of Muktinath to raise concerns when a
violation of the Code of Conduct is observed.

» Reporting such concerns contributes to the collective effort to uphold our values
and maintain the integrity of our organization.

@Eﬁf’m*cnm@m%
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ETHICAL PRINCIPAL

Our ethical Principal serves as the foundation for our business operations, reflecting our commitment to ethical
conduct, sustainability, stakeholder engagement, customer satisfaction, and legal compliance. We adhere to
a set of ethical principles to uphold the highest business standards necessary to foster trust, integrity, and
sustainable success:

Integrity and Transparency:

Our businesses should be conducted and governed with
integrity and in a manner that is ethical and transparent.

Sustainability: Wellbeing:
Our business should
respect and promote the
well-being of all employees
and all other stakeholders.

Product and services offered
should be sustainable and
safe for mankind and the
environment.

Legal Compliance:

Respect and Responsiveness: The business activity we carry out

. should be in compliance with all the
Our business should respect the laws, rules, regulations and directives
interests of and be responsive to all issued by the government and
it's stakeholders. regulatory bodies.

Customer Value:

Our business should provide value to their
customers in a responsible manner.

PSS
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Won BPA Award 4 times
in a row.

Crossed 100 Billion
+ Deposit Base.

First Development Bank to have
accomplish 1 Billion + Profit.

=

Won European Microfinance
Award 2020 & BPA Award 2019.

Upgraded to National
Level Development Bank.

Upgraded to Ten District | e
Development Bank.

_____

SR oW

Crossed Business of

| 2010 NPR 1 billion.

Started Microfinance

200 8 Program.

Established as 3 District

20 07 Development Bank.

A
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Key Financial Highlights

'_ﬁ Balance Sheet Size
N 131.61
;@ Billion
Deposits
é 118.45
\ Billion
Loans & Advances
TE% 96.99
SS=0  Billion
Paidup Capital
&
Biie

Capital Adequacy
Ratio

1M.77%

Amount in NPR

Operating Profit
©. IREY
Billion

/ Net Profit
E % % %i?ﬁgn
N

rFI Return on Equity
Bl 13.33%
N Return on Assets
)
M 0.95%
= Earning Per Share
,||||&~ NPR 19.44




Non-Financial Highlights
B:]azchBeS @ Exten;sn“%g*&mers>

< o8 51.35%>
ATMS Women Borrowers

< 7 @ 716,039
Provinces Covered === / Mobile Banking Users

< 48
Districts Covered

<1 359377 (@)

Deposit Accounts \

@) 47,348

IBanMng

202,552

Debit Cards Users

g CARE-NP
88179 (B & G >

Loans Accounts c [Triple B (Issuer])]

(As of July 16, 2023)




Our Key Performance Indicators

Testament to our consistent and sustainable performance over the years..

Financial Position

Balance Sheet Size (in Million)

Total Deposits (in Million)

2022-2: . ;s 2022-23 118,449
0222 U 21083 202122 108,425
2020-21 B ] 101127 2020-21 92,323
2019-20 | 66,348 2019-20 B ] 59,633
2018-19 B 51991 2018-19 1R 46,176
YoY 8.69% © 5YCAGR 30.50% O YoY 9.25% @ 5YCAGR 31.03% O

Paid-up Capital (inMilion)  Total Loan (in Million)
2022-23 (R 6,421  2022-23 96,993
202-22 (R 5657  2021-22 89,539
2020-21 B ] 4812 2020-21 76,403
2019-20 | 4325 2019-20 48,265
2018-19 B 3065  2018-19 38,144
YoY 13.50% @ 5Y CAGR 19.89% O YoY 8.33% @ 5Y CAGR 30.97% O

Financial Performance

Net Interest Income (inMillion)  Net Profit (in Million)
20222 (R - o2 U 1248
2021-22 R 330 o222 1,342
2020-21 - 1R 2789 2020-21 ] 1,156
2019-20 - R 2259 2019-20 B ] 707
2018-19 -1 1895 2018-19 ] 856

YoY 23.25% @ 5Y CAGR 25.63% ©

9

YoY 6.97% © 5YCAGR 14.87% O

Note: YoY = Year-on-Year | CAGR = Compounded Annual Growth Rate

@ajm@rﬁm%‘fm
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Profitability Ratios m—
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Earning Per Share (in Rupees) Return on Equity (in %)
202223 (D 19.44  2022-23 13.33
202122 2372 2021-22 16.61
2020-21 ] 2403 2020-21 16.94
2019-20 | 1656  2019-20 1216
2018-19 T 2794 2018-19 19.24
5 years Average EPS: 22.34 5 years Average ROE: 15.66%

Assets Quality Total Capital Fund/RWE e

Non Performing Assets (in %) Capital Adequacy Ratio (in %)
2022-23 o9s 2022-23 (NG .77
2021-22 ozr 202-22 11.80
2020-21 023  2020-21 N 1119
2019-20 R | 026  2019-20 ] 13.23
201819 A 007  2018-19 ] 13.44
Stock Performance s

Market Price (Rupees Per Share) Market Capitalization (in Million)
2022-23 (R s07  2022-23 (D 26,133.06
202122 (R a90  2021-22 (D 24,885.94
2020-21 B ] 657 2020-21 D s
2019-20 B ] 312 2019-20 R | 13,493.97
2018-19 B ] 370 2018-19 B 11,339.61
Price Earning Ratio (in Times)

02122 18.55

2020-21 T

2019-20 ] 18.84

2018-19 R 13.24
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AWARDS & RECOGNITIONS!!

2022 —

THE BIZZ
AWARDS

— 2022

CORPORATE
BUSINESS
EXCELLENCY
AWARD

2021

HRM AWARDS
FOR THE
CORPORATE
EXCELLENCE

Winner of

\ J  EUROPEAN
v AWARD 2020

— 2020

EUROPEAN

AWARD

HONORABLE
MENTION IN SME
FINANCIER OF
THE YEAR- ASIA
OF GLOBAL SME
FINANCE AWARD

2021 |

MICROFINANCE

SME FINANCE

Global SME Finance
Awards 2021

SME FINANCIER OF THE YEAR - ASIA
HON N

Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited
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— 2022

BEST
PRESENTED
ANNUAL
REPORT (BPA)
AWARD

2021 —
BEST
PRESENTED
ANNUAL
REPORT (BPA)
AWARD

— 2020

BEST
PRESENTED
ANNUAL
REPORT
(BPA)
AWARD

2019 *—

BEST
PRESENTED
ANNUAL
REPORT (BPA)
AWARD

L g
—
SAFA iy asiaN FEDERATION OF ACCOUNT/

CERTIFICATE
Conference on International ra::lian and Digital Curre OF MERIT FOR
Best Presented Annual Report Awards, ‘“‘E‘J'm:“e!i:::i FINANCIAL
e ] SERVICE SECTOR
OF SAFA (BPA)
AWARDS

2021
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CHAIRMAN'S
Message
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What inspires us is the trust and confidence of
our stakeholders which remains our strongest
anchor, encouraging us to consistently improve

our performance.

Fellow Stakeholders,

It is indeed a proud moment for me to
present to you Bank's Integrated Annual
Report for FY 2022-23, which signifies a
momentous milestone as we are stepping
into 18 years of Bank's foundation. Before
| proceed, | want to express my sincere
appreciation to all of you for your continued
unwavering loyalty and commitment to
our Bank. Your continued support has
been instrumental to the Bank's sterling
performance since its inception.

The past year was challenging in many
respects, with significant global and
domestic economic developments. The
global economy was crippled by profound
shocks and unprecedented uncertainty.
But on a positive note, it was a momentous
year, itwas a year in which the world largely
shook off the effects of the COVID-19
pandemic thus enabling Governments,
businesses and people to rebound in
their activities with renewed zeal and new
investments. Despite the setbacks, Bank
responded well, adapting our strategies

to leverage available opportunities while
creating value for all our stakeholders.

Against this backdrop of global
uncertainties, our Bank has remained
resilient. Our performance in the last
fiscal year is a witness to the high-
quality institution we are. We have built
a solid and resilient balance sheet of
NPR 13161 billion (expanded by 8.69%)
with strong capital and well-diversified
lending business. Strong focus on
deposit mobilization with 9.25% YOY
growth. With increase in deposit, we have
continued to maintain benchmark of
collection 100 Billion plus deposit in the
fiscal year 2022-23. The deposit growth
was driven by granular retail deposits
and especially fixed deposits, which grew
faster than the overall deposits. On the
loan book side, we remained watchful
of the evolving operating environment.
Our loan growth for the year picked up
by 8.33% y-0-y. Our Balance sheet has
been driven by modernization, digital
banking growth, talented workforce
and maintained profit crossing NPR 11

Billion mark. For us, Banking involves
more than profit. It is about banking for
shared prosperity while prioritizing social,
economic, and environmental factors in
allthat we do. These days, one of the main
tenets of the Bank's business strategy
is sustainable banking. Being a proud
member of Global Alliance for Banking
on Values (GABV) we believe in thinking
bolder in all aspects involved. It also gives
me immense pride to share that your
Bank received Certificate of Merit for
Financial Service Sector of SAFA (BPA)
AWARDS 2021 held by South Asian
Federation Association & Best Presented
Annual (BPA) Report 2022, adding more
milestones to the Bank.

At the Bank, we accord tremendous
importance to very high standards of
corporate  governance. The various
Committees of the Board met throughout
the year giving them an opportunity
to take stock of various aspects of
critical importance to the Bank for fair
and timely disclosures  which have
built credibility over the years. Our

s
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Overview

digital journey is focused on improving
customer experience and services.
This agenda is underpinned by robust
data governance and information
security while enabling our people to
achieve higher levels of productivity
by automating repetitive tasks and
processes. We continue to prioritize
investments in technology that help us
target a wider customer base across all
segments. We have automated several
operational processes. Additionally, a 16
hour digital banking support is also made
available for customers for support. Your
Bank is committed to building a more
balanced, fairer, and inclusive economy,
which is why we continue to internalize
sustainability principles in our business
operations and investment decisions. In
past fiscal year, we made considerable
progress in this regard, bearing in mind our
roleinaccelerating the achievement ofthe
United Nations Sustainable Development
Goals (SDGs). Our Corporate Social
Responsibility initiatives are targeted at
health, education, women and financial
inclusion. With our CSR initiatives, we

Leadership Insight

Sustainability Review

have focused to diversify the spending
on different SDGs goals to serve as much
diverse groups as possible. The CSR
initiativesincludes both self-management
by Bank and also collaboration with
various social organizations. Our strong
financial performance was driven by our
greatest asset: our people. Our talented
and resolute workforce is motivated
by a relentless pursuit of excellence in
service to our hundreds of thousands of
customers.lt is a matter of pride that our
highly committed and capable workforce
have worked hard to deliver the seamless
banking in these tough operating
environments. The main focus of the Bank
forfuture is to create a sustainable growth
which empowers the all the stakeholders
in addition to creating positive impact on
the overall socioeconomic development
in communities that we operate in.

As we enter the next stage of growth,
we are determined to evolve and create
enduring trust, marked with excellence
in service and product quality. What
inspires us is the trust and confidence

Statutory Reports | Financial Reports

of our stakeholders which remains our
strongest anchor, encouraging us to
consistently improve our performance.
We hold values that encourages us
to become more ethical, reliable and
transparent than ever. We will continue to
evolve and execute success throughout
our ecosystem.

| end by expressing my heartfelt
gratitude to my colleagues members for
their guidance, supervision, unwavering
support and belief in our abilities. Finally
my gratitude to the managment and
staffs for their contribution not just for
the year gone by but also for their efforts
over the years, making the Bank count
amongst the finest financial institutions.
It is a privilege to lead Bank, and | remain
excited about the future and all that we
can accomplish together. Thank you for
taking the time to read our report and for
your continued support.

Jay Muktinath!

Bharat Raj Dhakal
Chairman
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CEQ's
Message
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In the face of current challenges
affecting both the banking sector
and the broader economy, going
forward, we remain focused on key

business priorities, leveraging emerging
opportunities and strategically fortifying
ourselves at a better position through

robust risk management and focused
recovery efforts.

Namaskar!

With immense pride, | am pleased to
introduce our 17th Annual Report, my
fifth as the Chief Executive Officer of
this remarkable organization. | want
to express my deepest appreciation
to our existing shareholders, whose
unwavering belief has served as
the cornerstone of our progress.
Additionally, | extend a warm welcome
to our new investors, whose confidence
in us has injected fresh momentum into
ourongoingjourney. We understand that
the trust bestowed upon us continually
calls for us to surpass expectations.

@ajmmraasmﬁ'as
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Economic Overview

The previous year witnessed a shift
from the new normal to a more familiar
one as the world moved beyond the
pandemic. While the health crisis is
largely under control, the repercussions
of decisions made during those
challenging and  unprecedented
times have given rise to various
economic issues. This encompasses
heightened inflation, leading to
subsequent monetary tightening, and
the emergence of a banking crisis in
the advance economies like United
States and Switzerland. Fortunately,
with  the Nepal Rastra Bank's
vigilant supervision and effective
responsiveness, the Nepalese banking
sector has been positioned in a more
favorable and secure position.

In the fiscal year 2022-23, the
Nepalese economy witnessed
notable financial trends, marked
by a modest real GDP increase of
19 percent; significantly below the
10-year average growth rate. The
challenges were exacerbated by a
stressed economic landscape, evident
in the widening fiscal deficit, which
reached NPR 486.89 billion compared
to NPR 26367 bilion the previous
year. Additionally, the annual average
inflation surged to 7.74% from 6.32%.
A concerning aspect of this economic
scenario is the declining government
revenue collection, standing at NPR
85715 billion in FY 2022-23 compared
to NPR 1,067.96 billion the prior year,
alongside a mounting government
debt of Rs. 2,218.54 billion versus NPR
2,01013 billion in the previous fiscal
year. However, on a positive note, there
were encouraging developments with
remittance inflows increased by 21.2
percent, reaching NPR 1,220.56 billion,
compared to a 4.8 percent increase
in the preceding year. Additionally,
the total number of tourist arrivals
witnessed a substantial rise, reaching
862,992 in this year, a significant
jump from the 374,147 recorded in the
previous fiscal year. The World Bank's

e
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economic outlook anticipates growth
rebounding to 3.9% in FY 2023-24
and 5% in FY 2024-25. Lifted import
restrictions and gradual monetary
policy easing and decreasing
interest rates are expected to be the
contributing factors in increasing
economic activity thereby increasing
the GDP.

Banking Sector

In the fiscal year 2022-23, the
stance of monetary policy has been
kept cautiously tight to promote
macroeconomic stability by
maintaining price and external sector
stability and to support economic
growth through increasing productivity
by channelizing financial resources to
the productive sector. The focus of
the monetary policy was to reallocate
credit towards the productive sector,
addressing concerns about the high
credit to GDP ratio.

Amidst high interest rates, lower
credit demand, and reduced economic
activities, private sector credit growth
from Banking and Financial Institutions
(BFls) increased by a modest 3.8%,
compared to the robust 13:1% growth in
the previous year. On the deposit front,
BFIs witnessed a healthy growth of
12.3%, surpassing the 9.0% observed
in the prior year. The combination of
restrained loan growth and robust
deposit expansion maintained a relaxed
liquidity position for BFls throughout
the year, as reflected in the year-end
interbank rate dropping to 2.98.

However, a notable concern arose
in the form of non-performing loans
(NPLs) within BFls, which increased to
3 percent of total loans by the end of
FY 2022-23. This marks the highest
NPL ratio registered in the past six
years, signaling a potential challenge
for the industry. Addressing and
mitigating the rise in NPLs will likely
become a focal point for regulators
and financial institutions to maintain
the healthy assets quality.

The capital adequacy of BFls,
measured by the total capital to
risk-weighted assets ratio, remained
relatively stable at 134 percent by
the end of FY 2022-23, a marginal
change compared to FY 2021-22.
Looking ahead, the implementation of
the Countercyclical Buffer and BASEL
Il to National Level Development Bank
from FY 2023-24 is anticipated to
exert additional pressure on the capital
position of BFls, leading to further
tightening.

A significant development during
the fiscal year was the impact of
the merger and acquisition policy
introduced by the regulator in previous
years. The number of commercial
banks, development banks, and finance
companies collectively decreased
from 60 to 54 during FY 2022-23. This
consolidation reflects a strategic shift
in the sector, potentially enhancing
efficiency and competitiveness.

Our Performance

Despite the formidable challenges
posed by the ongoing economic
scenario impacting businesses and
recoveries across the industry, we
have  demonstrated noteworthy
results, which are as follows.

» Our Balance Sheet size expanded
by 869% to reach NPR 13161
billion, making it the development
bank's strongest balance sheet.

» Thedeposit portfolio is now worth
NPR 11845 billion, up 9.25%
while the market increased by
12.3%. The ALCO continuously
ensures the sound assets
liability management and has
strategically raised the deposits
based on the liquidity position of
the Bank.

» Our loan book has increased by
8.33%, reaching NPR 96.99 billion
at atime when the market grew by
3.8%.

1



q

R

gﬁias ufddca

3I.d. 20Q/20TO

The Bank earned a healthy
revenue of 4.65 billion, the 21%
increase from the previous year
end. The net interest income
increased by 23% contributing
88% of the revenue while non-
interest interest increased by 9%
which comprise remaining 12% of
revenue.

With the increase in the levels
of the NPAs from 0.21% in the
previous year to 0.98% in this
year, there has been significant
increase in  the impairment
charges. We have set aside the
amount of NPR 699 million as
the impairment charges with
which our provision coverage ratio
stands at 208%.

As of 16th July 2023, we reported
a net profit of NPR 125 billion,
which is diluted compared in
the previous year primarily due
to increase in the impairment
charges. The return on equity
(ROE) and return on assets (ROA)
both of this FY stands at 13.33%
and 0.95%, respectively.

» Asofuyear's end, we proudly serve
a wide range of customers from
our 173 branches and S extension
counters.

» We are also awarded with the Best
Presented Annual Report Award
-2022, now for four times in a
row by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal.

In the face of current challenges
affecting both the banking sector and
the broader economy, going forward,
we remain focused on key business
priorities, leveraging emerging
opportunities and strategically
fortifying ourselves at a better position
through robust risk management
and focused recovery efforts. Our
commitment remains steadfast in
maintaining a focus on robust balance
sheet management, thereby building
a solid financial foundation for the
creation of value for our shareholders.
We're continuously putting our focus
on embracing the latest technology
to bring our customer a smoother
journey in banking. We want every
step of your experience to be digital,

making it not just easy but enjoyable.
Our aim is to make every interaction
with us feel rewarding, while also
optimizing business processes leading
to enhanced operational efficiencies.

As | conclude this message, | wish to
express my profound appreciation to
our esteemed Board Members. Your
guidance, support, and confidence
have been invaluable assets. Heartfelt
thanks are extended to all our
stakeholders for their unwavering
support and patronage, including
our regulator for their invaluable
guidance. Finally, | express gratitude
to my colleagues for their ongoing
contributions, not just in the past year,
but also for their efforts over the years,
collectively shaping our Bank into one
of the nation's preferred institutions, in
line with our vision statement.

Jay Muktinath!!!

Pradyuman Pokharel
Chief Executive Officer
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Resident of Kathmandu,

Retired Government Employee with
adequate knowledge of external & current affairs.
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Til Bahadur Gurung
Assistant Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Resident of Syangja, an ingenious Banker with banking
experience over 24 years.
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Pradyuman Pokharel
Chief Executive Officer

Resident of Birgunj, inspirational leader & professional
banker with over 31 years of Banking experience.
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Govinda Bahadur Raut
Assistant Chief Executive Officer

Resident of Dang, an ingenious Banker with banking experience
over 29 years in microfinance & development sectors.

Samir Sekhar Bajracharya
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Resident of Palpa, a profound Banker with banking and
development sector experience over 25 years.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

RATAS TG

Prem Thapa
Head- Existing
Credit Management

Baburam Dhakal
Head - Consumer Credit )

Dandapani Dhakal

Head Legal and
Grievances Redressal

Vijay K. Gurung

Head - Research, Innovation
& Product Development

Rashik Bhandari

Head - Business Credit

Samir K. Paudel

Head - AML/CFT
& Compliance
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Binaya R. Shakya
Head- Liability Business

Sarbesh Shrestha

Head-Information
Technology

Subash Dhakal
Head- Central Operations
Pragalv Neupane
Officiating Head-Integrated
Risk Management
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Birendra Rajbhat

Head- General Services

Shankar P. Baral

Head-Talent Acquisition,
Development & Management

Ishwor Budathoki
Head-Internal Audit

Sanjiv Poudel
Chief Financial Officer
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Organizational
Structure
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Corporate Governance

Performance led by Accountability & Transparency....

The Board of Directors of the Bank
being the apex body accountable to
the regulators, investors and all other
stakeholders including the society,
sets the purpose of the Bank, the
values with which it is guided, the
strategies with the combination the
vision and mission and implement
this in the business strategy.

Our Corporate Governance
Philosophy

At Muktinath, the strong, committed
and diverse board ensure the
effective  corporate  governance
across the organization. A good
corporate governance is a way of

MukTINATH Bikas Bank
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"A geoed corporate governance is a way
of liféand the way we do our business,
encOMpassing every day's activities and is
ensfifined as a part of our way of working."

life and the way we do our business,
encompassing every day’s activities
and is enshrined as a part of our
way of working. We are focused on
enhancement of long-term value
creation for all stakeholders taking
care of the integrity, transparency,
social & environmental obligations
and regulatory compliances. Our
actions are governed by our values
and principles, which are reinforced at
all levels of our Bank. These principles
have been and will continue to be our
guiding force in future in creating the
sustainable investor and stakeholder
value, while remaining rooted to our
value system.

Corporate Governance Framework
The governance framework of our
Bank is underpinned by its core
values and the strength of its vision,
mission, and the primary objective of
delivering sustainable growth. The
bank is committed to strengthen this
approach through adoption of best
in class's philosophy, systems and
processes in the realm of governance
We adopt the following in the
corporate governance framework to
ensure that our actions align with our
core values and mission:

Eal
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The Bank has developed as five-year strategic plan
which serves as a blueprint of the bank's next
five-year journey. Further the annual strategies and

We attempt to balance the interests of many
stakeholders, such as shareholders, management,
customers, employees, government and the

financial planning is made based on the recent and
projected developments in the financial and
economic sector to deliver the best returns to the
shareholders.

community at large.

Governance

Strategic
& Financial
Planning

The Bank has a Risk
Management
Committee to govern
in identifying, tracking,
monitoring and

Risk
Management

We have systems
for timely flow of

information to keep Relationship reporting risks that
our stakeholders with impact the Bank and
abreast with the Stakeholders its stakeholders.
organisational
activities.
Integrity
&

Transparency

Compliance

Ensure transparency and maintain a high level of
integrity through timely and effective disclosures of
the material matters. Be objective and ethical and
deliver the best to earn trust of our stakeholders.

Have a system for compliance with a variety of
regulatory requirements, reviewing compliance
practices for a long-term sustainable growth of
the bank and protecting stakeholders’ interest.

Board of Directors

Our Board of Directors comprise a great mix of expertise, professionalism, knowledge, diversity, experience and values.
The composition of the Board is in compliance with the Section 14 of the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073 which
comprise of 5 directors. Among 5 directors 2 directors are nominated from promotor shareholders, 2 from the public
Shareholders and 1is the independent director.

The following is the details of the directors:

. . Gajendra Man . . Nirmala Kumari K.C. Shyam Sundar

Position Chairman Director Director Women Director Independent Director
Represents Promotor Shareholders Public Shareholders Independent

Date of Appointment  2019-12-16 2019-12-16 2019-12-16 2019-12-16 2020-07-31
Appointed By Shareholders in Annual General Meeting Board of Directors
Term Ist 2nd 1st Ist Ist

Tenure in Board 3Years 7Months 7 Years 7 Months 3Years 7Months 3 Years 7 Months 2 Years 11 Months
Shareholding % 156% 091% 0.01% 0.01% Nil

There has been one change in the composition of the Board of Directors post FY 2022-23 year end. Mr. Rabindra Man
Shrestha has tendered his resignation w.e.f. 2023-09-17 citing his personal reasons.

R @agmmrafﬁr\rraﬁs
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Board Meetings and its Procedure:

The Board are convened by giving
appropriate notice well in advance
of the meetings. The Directors
are provided with appropriate
information in the form of agenda
items in a timely manner, to
enable them to deliberate on each
agenda item and make informed
decisions and provide appropriate
directions to the Management. To
enable the Board to discharge its
responsibilities effectively and take
informed decisions, apart from the
Board Members and the Company
Secretary, the meetings are also

attended by the Business Heads,
Risk, Audit and Compliance Heads,
Chief Financial Officer and other
Department Heads.

The Board usually meets at least
once in a month to approve the
credit facilities above the delegated
limit, review the Company’s quarterly
performance and financial results,
to consider business strategies, and
theirimplementation,andalsoreviews
risk, audit, control, compliance and
other related matters. The Board
sets annual performance objectives

and strategies, oversees the actions
and results of the management,
and monitors the effectiveness of
the risk management and Bank's
governance practices for enhancing
the stakeholders’ value.

The Bank has well-established
framework for conveying the
Meetings of the Board which seeks
to systematize the decision-making
process at the Meetings in an
informed and efficient manner.

Number of Board Meetings and Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings
During the financial year under review, the 22 numbers of board meetings were held and following were the attendance

details of the directors:

Date Medium Bharat Raj | Gajendra Man | Rabindra Man | Shaligram | Nirmala Kumari Shyam
(BS) Dhakal Shrestha Shrestha Mishra K.C. Karki* Sundar Sharma

1 30/04/2079  Physical

2 27/05/2079  Physical & & & &

3  30/06/2079 Physical & & & &

4 22/07/2079  Virtual & & & & a &
5 29/07/2079  Physical & & & & a a
6 21/08/2079  Physical & & & & a &
7 01/09/2079  Phuysical & & & & a &
8 08/09/2079  \Virtual & & & & & &
9  29/09/2079  Physical & & & & & &
10 11/10/2079  Phuysical & & & & & &
M 20/10/2079  Physical & & & & &
12 23/11/2079  Physical & & & & &
13 06/12/2079  Physical & & & & & &
14 16/12/2079  Physical & & & & & &
15 29/12/2079  Phuysical & & & &

16 19/01/2080  Physical & & & & a &
17 31/01/2080  Physical & & & & a a
18  19/02/2080  Physical & & & & a
19 29/02/2080  Physical & a a & a
20  07/03/2080  Physical & & & & &
21  22/03/2080 Physical & & & & &
22  29/03/2080  Virtual & & & & &

*Note: Ms. Nirmala Kumari K.C. Karki has taken prior consent from the Board for her abroad visit.

PSS
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Meeting Allowances to the Directors

The Board members are provided with the sittings fees for attending the meetings which is approved by the shareholders
in the Annual General Meetings, Registrar of Companies and Nepal Rastra Bank. The sitting fees of NPR 13,000 is being
paid to chairman while NPR 12,000 is being paid to other directors.

Accordingly, the following allowance were provided to the directors:

.
Particulars
Numbers | Fees |
22

Bharat Raj Dhakal 286,000
Gajendra Man Shrestha 22 264,000
Rabindra Man Shrestha (resigned w.e.f 2023-09-17) 21 252,000
Shaligram Mishra 22 264,000
Nirmala Kumari K.C. Karki 12 144,000
Shyam Sundar Sharma 19 228,000
Total 1,438,000

Board Committees

The Board has constituted various Committees with specific terms of reference which clearly defines their purpose,
roles, and responsibilities in line with the provisions of the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073 and NRB Directors.
The Board Committees play a vital role in improving the Board effectiveness in the areas where more focuses and
extensive discussions are required. The coordinator of the respective Committee presents the key matters before the
Board.

There are 5 Board Committees, which includes the four statutory committee and one non-statutory committee, the
details of which are as follows:

il

Audit
Committee

o EB o
Human Resource

Management
Committee

& ]
Risk Management
Committee

AML/CFT c Buildinq
Committee onstrl{ctlon
Committee

3y @ajﬁn?nmfamaﬂi



Overview | Leadership Insight  Sustainability Review = Statutory Reports | Financial Reports

il

Audit Committee has been constituted in compliance with the regulatory provisions of NRB Unified Directives, the
provisions of Section 164 and 165 of Companies Act, 2063 and the provisions of Section 60 of BAFIA. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in its responsibility in dealing with aspects of good corporate governance, internal control,
risk management, financial reporting, legal and regulatory compliance and ethical conduct of business.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of this
Committee are as follows:

(statutory) Auditors and initiate for
necessary corrective actions;

3. Review reports submitted by Nepal
Rastra Bank during Supervision

6. Review the compliance of the
regulations issued by Nepal Rastra
Bank to the Bank and include the
same in its report;

Review the activities of Bank

1. Review the financial condition,

internal controls, Audit Program,
and analyze the findings of the
internal audit on periodic basis
and give necessary direction to
Management to take appropriate
steps on that regards and to
recommend to the Board of
Directors about the actions to be
taken;

2. Review the matters contained in
the audit report of the external

4

S.

and Inspection and inform Board 7.

of Directors whether remarks
made on such supervision have
been complied or not.

Assists ensure annual report to be
accurate and real;

Ensure the Board of Directors that
accounts are accurate and fair,
along with frequent reviews of the
adequacy of provisioning against
contingencies and Classified loan;

Composition, Meetings, Attendance and Allowance of Committee

in respect of its regularity,
Economical, logical, effectiveness,
and give necessary suggestions
to the Board of Directors.

. To perform any other function

or duty as stipulated by the
Companies Act, 2063, Bank and
Financial Institution Act 2073 and
NRB Directives .

Audit Committee meets at least once a
quarter and additionally on a need basis
to discharge its responsibility conferred
by the statute and NRB Directives.

The Committee comprises of three
members which comprise of two
directors nominated by Board of
Directors and Head of Internal Audit

Department as Member Secretary. The
committee meets regularly to discuss
and oversee the issues highlighted
by the Internal Audit Department. The

The following is the composition, attendance and allowance details of the Audit Committee for FY 2022-23:

Members of Committee No. of Meetmgs Attendance | Sitting Fees

Gajendra Man Shrestha Director Coordinator 100% 60,000
Shyam Sundar Sharma Director Member 8 100% 56,000
Ishwar Budhathoki gead— Internal Audit Member Secretary 8 100% Nil
epartment
Activities of the Committee during the year
» Monitored the progress of the resources. » The committee reviewed the

initiatives taken by the Internal
Audit Department to improve
Internal Control Monitoring
process and effectiveness of the
internal audit.

» Approved the Internal Audit Plan
and reviewed the effectiveness
of the implementation of the Plan
throughout the year.

» Reviewed the independence,
objectivity, and performance of the
internal audit function as well as
the adequacy of the Department's

PSS
=
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The Audit Committee of the Bank
reviewed theinternal controlissues
identified by the Internal Audit
Department, the External Auditors,
regulatory authorities and the
Management, and evaluates the
adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal
control systems.

The committee recommended
the name and remuneration for
appointment of Statutory Auditor
for FY 2022-23.

annual financial statements of the
Bank.

The comments made by the
External Auditors in connection
with internal control  system
were reviewed during the year
and appropriate  steps have
been taken to rectify them. The
recommendations made by the
External Auditors in connection
with the internal control will be
addressed in the future.

ELS
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee has been formed pursuant to the Clause 7(3) of the NRB Unified Directives. The
committee is constituted by the Board of Directors to assist them in the identification, evaluation and mitigation of risks.
The Committee has overall responsibility for monitoring and approving the risk policies and associated practices of the
Bank.

Terms of Reference

The terms of

reference of this

Committee are as follows:

1.

Appraise the Board of Directors
as to the appropriateness of the
existing risk identification and
management system as well as
suggest for development of an
appropriate system.

Review and recommend for the
Board risk management policies,
systems, processes &  risk
management policy on time to
time, by considering the changing
industry  dynamics,  evolving
complexity and regulatory
requirements.

Review the level of risk associated
with the business, risk bearing
capabilities,  development  of
strategies, policy arrangements as

. Analyze

well as guidelines adopted towards
risk management and suggest to
the Board of Directors as to their

appropriateness
. Obtain report from the
management on a8 regular

basis; discuss as to assess and
evaluate the risk under existing
system, control and monitoring
mechanism and submit necessary
suggestions to the Board.

and review Capital
adequacy as per the risk assets,
internal capital adequacy
assessment plan (ICAAP),
appropriateness of policies as per
the business strategy, maximum
level of risk to the organization may
assume and submit necessary
recommendation, opinion to the
Board.

Composition, Meetings, Attendance and Allowance of Committee

The Committee comprises of four

members

in total including two

directors nominated by Board of
Directors one being the coordinator of

the Audit Committee, Chief Operating
Officer and Head of Integrated Risk
Management Department as Member
Secretary. The

Risk Committee

6. Conduct,

review and assess of
stress testing scenarios as well
as review breaches therein and
suggest remedial actions if any.
Review the authority delegation
and analyze its appropriateness
and submit report along with the
recommendation to the Board of
Directors.

Review on quarterly basis the
assets’ structure, mobilization
status of such assets, yield
from the assets, improve/
deterioration in assets quality, as
well as performance of Assets
Liabilities Committee (ALCO) and
providing necessary guidance to
Management and submit report to
the Board.

meets at least on a quarterly basis to
discharge its responsibilities.

The following is the composition attendance and allowance details of the Risk Committee for FY 2022-23:

Rabindra Man Shrestha

(resigned w.ef 2023-09-17) Director Co-Ordinator 100% 30,000

Gajendra Man Shrestha Director Member 4 100% 28,000

Til Bahadur Gurung Chief Operating Officer Member 3 75% Nil

Prem Thapa (Till 2023-04-29) ) Member Secretary 3 100% Nil
Head- Integrated Risk

Pragalv Neupane Management Department  Member Secretary 1 100% Nil

(From 2023-04-30)

Activities of the Committee during the year

»

»

3%

Reviewed of the Credit Risk,
Operation Risks, Market Risks and
other type reports prepared by the
Risk Management Department.

Review and suggested on various
framewaorks and policies.

» Discussed on inherent risk of deposit

portfolio of the bank, increasing cost
of funds. and suggested to improve
the composition of retail deposit and
improve CASA and control costs.

» Reviewedthe ICAAP and computation

and projection of CAR and its impact
on the future business.

Discussed on the recent changes
in the regulatory requirement,
implementation status and its impact.

@qmmﬁfﬁmaﬁs
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» Reviewed the assets quality of the

=

bank including the detailed analysis
on the non- performing, watchlist and
overdue accounts.
Monitored and reviewed the likelihood
of the impact of the ongoing liquidity
risk in the industry.

» Assessed and monitored the post

disbursal of loans  verification
methodologies and suggested the
management to increase the post
disbursal revision and verification.
Reviewed the agendas discussed
in the Assets Liability Committee
(ALCO) and its effectiveness.

AML/CFT COMMITTEE

» Reviewed the risk associated with the

staff turnover.

» The Committee presented regular

risk related reports to the Board for its
consideration.

AML/CFT Committee of the Board has been formed in line with the provision of Unified Directives of Nepal Rastra
Bank. The Committee oversees implementation of Assets (Money) Laundering Prevention Act, 2064, Assets (Money])
Laundering Prevention Rules, 2073, NRB Unified Directives and other legal and regulatory requirements related to
Money Laundering Prevention and Combating financing of Terrorism.

Terms of Reference

1.

Review Quarterly reports on
implementation status of AML/
CFT framework in the bank

Implementation status of NRB-FIU
issued FATF Recommendations,
Internal Policies and procedures
for better control measures

Issues Review relating to AML/
CFT and discuss on Assessment,

Measurement, Monitoring and
Control of various related risks
along with use of our AML vendor
i-Care for various automatic
monitoring purposes.

4. To perform any other tasks as

governed by Bank and Financial
Institution Act 2073, Asset
Money Laundering Prevention Act

Composition, Meetings, Attendance and Allowance of Committee

The Committee comprises of three
members in total which includes one

Director,

Management Departmentand Head of
Compliance Department as Member
Head of Integrated Risk Secretary. The Risk Committee meets

2064, Asset Money Laundering
Prevention Rules 2073, NRB
Directives and Board of the bank
from time to time.

. The Committee should provide

a quarterly report to the Board
after due assessment of activities
carried out by the compliance
department.

at least on a quarterly basis to
discharge its duties.

The following is the Composition attendance and allowance details of the AML/CFT Committee for FY 2022-23:

Shaligram Mishra Director Coordinator 100% 37500
Samir Kumar Paudel ) o '
(From 2023-02-08) Head-Compliance 2 100% Nil
Dhruba Prasad Reami ( Department & AML/CFT Member Secret

ruba Prasad Regmi (From  pgpartment ember Secretary ,
2022-10-09 To 2023-02-01) P 2 100% Nil
Til Bahadur Gurung Chief Operating Officer 1 100% Nil
Prem Thapa (Till 2023-04-29) ) Member 4 100% Nil

Head- Integrated Risk

Pragalv Neupane Management Department  Member 1 100% Nil

(From 2023-04-30)

Activities of the Committee during the year

» Annual Review and Revision of
KYC status and Revision of AML/

CFT Policy of the bank.

» Report on banking issues related

Customer Due Diligence (CDD),

Account Assessment followed by

» Report

to AML/CFT on various national
and international level and make
risk assessment to implement
control measures
regarding
A
2

MukTINATH Bikas Bank

Suspicious Transaction Report information on training to staffs
(STR),  Transaction  Threshold and other relevant issues.
Report (TTR), Account Block and  » Discussion various
Releases as per Regulating Bodies control measures line with
of Nepal implementation of internal and
Discussion on Customer external policies, NRB directives,
ldentification and  Monitoring as per regulations of various
status  of throughout quarter, High Risk governing bodies of Nepal.
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HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The formation of the Human Resources Management & Remuneration Committee is in line with the provisions set forth
in the "Employee Service Bylaws 2079" of the Bank. The Human Resources Department is responsible for managing the

administrative function of this committee.

Terms of Reference

1.

Assists the Board in forming
the "Remuneration Policies and
Practices" of the Bank.

Report to the board on its
periodical assessment  and
analysis of the Bank's employee
remuneration structure, as well
as that of the industry, and its
possible implications on the Bank.
Recommends the Board with
the necessary

explanations to revise the existing
remuneration of all the employees
including that of the Chief
Executive Officer in accordance
with the Bank's “Remuneration
Palicies and Practices”.

. Develop and revise the metrics

and procedures for assessing the
work performance of the Bank's
employees.

rationales and 5. Develop and submit to the Board

Composition, Meetings, Attendance and Allowance of Committee

plans, guidelines, and policies
on hiring, posting, transferring,
promoting, and other labor-related
issues as well as performance
reviews, rewards, and penalties for
employees.

. Present the Board for its approval

of the succession planning on the
employees.

The committee is composed of four people: the non-executive director, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial
Officer, and the head of the human resources department. It meets as needed to accomplish its responsibilities.

Thefollowingisthe composition, attendance and allowance details of the Human Resources Management & Remuneration
Committee for FY 2022-23:

Nirmala Kumari KC Karki Director Co-ordinator 100% 15,000

Pradyuman Pokharel Chief Executive Officer Member 100% Nil

Sanjiv Poudel Chief Financial Officer Member 100% Nil

Shankar Prasad Baral Head- Human Resource  Member- 100% Nil
Department Secretary

Activities of the Committee during the year

4

3T

Recommended to the Board for its
approval, the corporate position

wise additional staff enrollment for

the FY 2022-23.

» Reviewed and suggested on a

training calendar and the programs
connected.

» Review the headcount position

vis-a-vis the budgeted headcount.

@qmmﬁfﬁmaﬁs
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BUILDING CONSTRUCTION MONITORING COMMITTEE

The Building Construction Monitoring Committee is the non-statutory board committee formed pursuant to the board
decision in 247th Board meeting for overseeing the construction work in the ongoing Head Office Building.

Terms of Reference

1. To monitoring the construction 2. To oversee the construction works 3. To keep the board informed about
related works of Central Office is being performed in line with the the progress status of the project.
Building in Lazimpat. contract.

Composition, Meetings, Attendance and Allowance of Committee

The committee comprise of the 7 members including one director, one expert member, 2 member representing the building
consultant and building contractor and 3 Bank's personnel.

The Building Construction Monitoring Committee's composition, attendance, and compensation information for FY
2022-23 is as follows:

Shaligram Mishra Director Co-ordinator 100% 65,000
Pradhyuman Pokharel Chief Executive Officer Member 12 92% Nil
Til Bahadur Gurung Chief Operating Officer Member Secretary 13 100% Nil
Birendra Rajbhat Head- General Service 0 her 13 100% Nil
Department
Consultant Representative Representating 10 77% Nil
) Consultant
Permanent Invitee = -
Contractor Representative epresentating 5 38% Nil
Contractor
Activities of the Committee during the year
» Monitored the construction works process to ensure the quality of » Evaluated the market scenario to
of the building and reported the materials used and work done. facilitate the smooth construction
progress status to the board. » Coordinating with different work.
» Supervised the construction stakeholder for building
construction.

PSS
=
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Stakeholder

Engagement

At Muktinath Bank, we believe that
involving stakeholders is essential
to infuse ethics, sustainability, and
fairness into our strategic planning
decisions. Our stakeholders are not just
entities; they are individuals, groups, and
organizations who either shape or are
influenced by our business activities.
We don't just talk about engagement;
we live it. Throughout the year, we create
numerous opportunities for stakeholders
to interact with us, fostering an ongoing
dialogue.

We don't just involve stakeholders; we
build relationships with them. It's not just
about meeting their needs but finding
that delicate balance between what they
expect and what our business requires.
Our engagement process is more than
a series of steps; it's about identifying,
prioritizing, engaging, and reporting on
the value we deliver.

In the complex landscape of multiple
stakeholders, we prioritize those who
are not just important but vital to our
business and value creation. By truly
understanding their expectations and
concerns, we guide the prioritization
of strategies, policies, and action plans
across environmental, economic, and
societal domains.

These interactions aren't mere
conversations; they shape the very
direction of our strategies. We align our
plans with stakeholder requirements
and expectations, ensuring that as
we strive for competitive, sustainable
value, we're not just thinking short term
but also considering the medium and
long term. In essence, at Muktinath
Bank, we humanize our relationships
with stakeholders, recognizing their
significance in our journey toward ethical,
sustainable, and fair practices.
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Corporate

Governance.

Compliance

Risk Management

Financial Performance
Brand Reputation and Image
Asset Quality

Reliable Banking Services.
Data Security

Customer Satisfaction.
Relationship Management
Transparency and Fair
Disclosure

Employee Well-Being
Fair Compensation
Employee Development
Career Opportunities
Talent and Retention
Diversity and Inclusion
Rewards and Recognition

Compliance with Regulations
Transparency and Fair
Disclosure

Risk Management
Protection of the Depositor's
Interest

Timely Payment of Taxes and
Duties

Social and Environmental
Impact

Green Financing
Sustainable Banking
Financial Literacy
Employment Generation

MuKTINATH Bikas Bank

Sustainability Review

Influence QS

HIGH as shareholders and investors
play a vital role in the success of our
Bank, providing essential capital and
financial stability. Their investments
enable our Bank to fund operations,
expand our services and pursue growth
opportunities.

HIGH, satisfied customers build lasting
relationships, trust, and referrals,
ensuring our prosperity in 8 competitive
market thus drives the revenue.

HIGH astheirdiverse skillsand knowledge
drive efficient operations, exceptional
customer service, and sustained
growth. Empowered employees are our
cornerstone, enabling us to excel in a
competitive landscape while upholding
the highest standards of integrity and
professionalism

HIGH, as through oversight and enforcing
regulations, they promote sound
governance, risk management, and
consumer protection, safeguarding the
economy's overall health and fostering
public trust in the banking system.

High, as the community and society
form the very foundation of our business
operations.

Statutory Reports | Financial Reports

Engagement @

»
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Annual/Special
General Meetings
Annual Report
Financial Results &
Disclosures
Website

Customer Feedback
Surveys

Grievances Redressal
Personalized Services

Performance Appraisal
Training Programs
Staffs Meet

Email

Muktinath Darpan

Regulatory Reporting
Onsite Supervision
Offsite Supervision
Press Releases
Website

CSR Projects
Financial Literacy
Programs
Community Outreach

¥9q
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VALUE CREATION

Our Approach
to Value Creation

At Muktinath Bank, we pursue
to create long-term value for
all our stakeholders. Along with
the changing environment and
scenarios, we are prepared to
deliver pertinent solutions that
answerthe changingdemands and
expectations of our stakeholders.
We focus on creating synergy
with our initiatives to enhance
stakeholder's value at large.

The best possible product
development & service strategies
are adopted for our customers. We
try to motivate all our employees
with 3  well-facilitated and
progressive working environment,
where focus is put on learning and
enhancing productivity. Most of all,
we want to continue to provide the
best possible banking solutions
for all kinds of customers from

STAKEHOLDERS

External Capital &
Business Environment

different economic backgrounds
so we can also contribute to
uplifting the society.

We aspire to create continuous
and consistent value for our
stakeholders by utilizing and
analyzing our resources through
the prism of the size capital, the
relationship of which is depicted
below through the diagram:

Delivering Value to

:
L
O O
) ({1
Financial Human Manufactured Intellectual Saocial and Natural
Capital Capital Capital Capital Relationship Capital Capital
¥ @ Jfepore R b
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Our Business Model
for Value Creation

= Entrusted with the management
of the the assets and liabilities
of the Bank.

Tr sur = Manages the investment of
€a g NPR 22.48 Bn and debt of

Operations NPR 1.27 Bn

= Maximizes the Bank's wealth
by effective mobilization of
resources.

= Banking with the fingertip from
the electronic devices.
= Avoids the need for a physical
P presence in branch for basic
DI ltal banking.

Banklng = Time Saving and Cost Effective.
= Serves 202,552 number of debit
cards, 763,387 number of Mobile &
Internet Banking & 47,427 number
of QR merchants.

Corporate Governance

Risk Management

Internal Control

Compliance

s
“yexe  MukTinaTH Bikas Bank ¥3
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l. Financial Capital

Financial capital is essential to the
Bank's ability to keep its market
position, achieve its strategic goals,
and produce sustainable stakeholder
value. As a Bank that is committed
to sustainability, we source and use

» Deposits
» Loans & Advance » Subordinate Debt

capital in a way that balances the
interests of various stakeholders
while effectively managing risk
factors. Thus, the Bank is focused
on optimizing capital allocation
and maintaining a strong balance

INPUT

» Shareholder's Fund:9.36 Billion
» Deposits: 118.45 Billion

OUTPUT

» Forex

OUTCOMES

» Total Revenue:16.09 Billion
» Profit after Tax:1.25 Billion
» ROE:13.33%

» NPL:0.98%

sheet for a business continuity with
sustainable growth and creating both
short-term and long-term value for all
the stakeholders.

.................
o,
o
o,
0

..................
o
o
o,
0

..................
o
e,
o,
o,
e,

» Capital Management
» Funding & Liquidity Management
» Interest Margin Managment

XY

OUR STRATEGIES

» Robust Debt Recovey
» Business Strategies
» Internal Control & Risk Managment

Qajfm'ﬂ@lﬁmaﬁi
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Il. Human Capital

At Muktinath Bikas Bank, we recognize
that our people re the heart and soul of
our success. Unwavering commitment
and robust culture
define our identity. Aspiring to be
an employer of choice, we prioritize
creating an

organizational

exceptional employee
experience. Our goal is to foster a
culture that values safety, encourages
innovation, sparks creativity, and
embraces diversity. This approach not
only propels us toward our business
objectives but also ensures personal and

professional growth for our employees.

INPUT

1,663 Employees

NPR 1.44 Bn Personnel Cost
21.16 Mn Training Cost

Our vision goes beyond numbers;
it's about nurturing a culture that
values safety, celebrates innovation,
encourages creativity, and embraces
diversity. This isn't just a strategy to
meet business goals; it's 8 commitment
to help our team members grow
both personally and professionally.

We're passionate about building a
workplace where everyone, regardless
of gender, caste, creed, color, sexual
orientation, or religion, feels included and
valued. We're not just talking about equal
opportunities; we're actively working

OUTPUT

40.53% WOMEN Workforce
2,113 Annual Training Hours
30.75 Years Average Age

Skills & Competencies
Talent Management

Employee Development
Succession Planning

OUR STRATEGIES

towards creating an environment
that respects human dignity, fosters

independence, and sparks creativity.

"Our investment in developing our
people isn't just a line on a budget;
its a promise to make Muktinath
Bikas Bank the kind of place where
flourish."

every employee

Our growing team, now with 1663 staff

can

members by the end of the fiscal year
2079/80, including 40.53% females,
is @ testament to the talent, diversity,
and dedication that drive our success.

OUTCOMES

Skills & Competencies
Creativity

Young & Dynamic Workforce
Committed & Loyal Employees

'In Teamwork, We Believe"

Performance Managemen
Employee Communication

Workforce Planning
Employee Wellness
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lll. Manufactured Capital

Manufactured Capital includes the
Capex i.e Property, furniture, office
equipment & IT Infrastructure we
make to deliver our value-added
services to our valued customers.
We continue to invest in both our
physical and digital infrastructure to
increase accessibility to customers,

INPUT

» Property and
Equipment:
1.92 Billion

—

%

» Modern Infrastructure
» Environmental
Sustainability

thereby fulfilling their financing needs
reliably and conveniently. We strive to
create an extensive branch network
spread across the part of the counties
to provide resilient financial as well
as physical infrastructure for all the
stakeholders. We have also worked on
and will also continue to work on the

OUTPUT

» Modern Infrastructure

» Environmental Sustainability
» Cost Optimization

» Customer Accessibility

» Future Outlook

OUR STRATEGIES

» Future Outlook

» Cost Optimization
» Customer Accessibility

digital platforms which compliments
the physical infrastructure with
access to digital solutions.

Driving financial inclusion through
rural branch network and branch on
wheels

OUTCOMES

» Branches: 178

» Regional Office: 1

» Central Office: 1
(Under Construction)

@qmmﬁfﬁmaﬁs
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II. lintellectual Capital

To ensure quick and seamless delivery
of products and services backed by
robust technology infrastructure the
bank has been developing intellectual
capital. Digital excellence is a key
pillar of the Bank's strategy and will
play an increasingly important role in
transforming the customer experience
through seamless, innovative solutions.

INPUT

14.54 Mn
Intangible Assets

12

Softwares used

PN
=

MukTINATH Bikas Bank

- s ed

. omdmad

With an objective to automate the
lending and deposit process the Bank
has developed online account opening,
fixed deposit request and lending forms
to facilitate the customers. In addition
to the systems which provide core
business functionality, the Bank has
deployed business process automation
system for our internal processes and

OUR
STRATEGIES

» Investin Modern, scalable, and resilient digital infrastructure.
» Adopt technology wherever possible.

» Drive Revenue & Optimise Cost through Digitisation

» Innovation

4 OUTCOMES

» Happy Customers.

» New Revenue Avenues
» Data Security

» Brand Loyalty

» Digital Leadership

» Operational Excellence

other internal systems such as human
resource management software, fixed
assets management software, AML/
CFT software for the effective flow of
the processes. Further, the date security
being one of the key concerns of the
bank different investment on ethical
hacking, physical and logical controals, IT
audits have been made.

v

OUTPUT

716,039 Users
Muktinath Smart

47,348 Users
Muktinath i-Banking

14,597 QR Merchants

Digitised & Automated
Processes

¥'\9
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Social & Relationship Capital

We aim to build strong partnerships by
engaging with our key stakeholders,
including shareholders and
lenders, employees, governments,
communities and civil societies.
These relationships help maintain and
strengthen our license to operate.
The Bank as a part of its initiatives
under Corporate Social Responsibility
has undertaken projects in various
areas including Education, Livelihood,
Health, Environmental Sustainability,
and Sanitation, etc.

3

INPUT

CSR Spends
NPR 12.62 Mn

Corporate Tax to Government

_

NPR 587.94 Mn

As an accountable financial institution,
we believe in leading responsibly and
complying with applicable regulations.
We collaborate with regulatory bodies,
central and state governments to
formulate and implement various
schemes for overlooked sections
of society. We have partnered with
the Ministry of Youth and Sports for
providing loans to small entrepreneurs
and youth at the concessional
rate. Further we have entered into
tripartite agreement between KfW

16,000+

Financial Literacy Beneficiaries

OUTPUT

97
CSR Programs

» Responsible Banking

Fulfillment of the duties of
corporate citizens.

Development Bank, Germany, Nepal
Rastra Bank, and Muktinath Bikas
Bank under Sustainable Economic
Development in Rural and Semi-
Urban Areas- MSME Finance Phase
Il (SEDRA 11) for providing the financial
access 1o target group-oriented loans
to micro, small and medium-sized
enterprises in rural and semi-urban
areas.

OUTCOMES

» Contributes to SDGs
commitments.

» Taxes paid contribute towards
the Government exchequer.

» Social Engagements
» Empowered Communities
» Financial Inclusion

OUR STRATEGIES

» Sustainable Banking Practices

» Giving back to the Society
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Value Added
Statement

The value-added statement shows
how much value(wealth) has been
created by the Bank through utilization
of its capacity, capital, manpower
and other resources and allocated to
employees, government, community,
shareholder, and for the expansion
and growth of the Bank. It depicts the
profit generated by collective efforts
management, employees, capital and
its utilization that is distributed among
its various stakeholder.

The value added by the Bank stood
at NPR 3,495.21 million as on July 16,
2023 as compared to NPR 3,372.38
million in previous year.

Application of Value Addition

For the year ended Asar 2080 (July
16, 2023) the application statement
comprises of value addition to
various stakeholders of the Bank.
The current value addition of 4115%

In NPR Million

Value Added 2022/23 ‘ 2021/22 Change(%)

Interest Earned 15,475.24 11,563.22 33.83%
Other Income 615.66 552.82 1M.37%
Interest Expenses 1137114 8,23344 3811%
Other Operating Expenses 525.87 435.51 20.75%
Value Added by Banking 479388  3,447.09 21.66%
Services

Impairment Charge for o
Loans and Other Losses EEEES i 83516%
Gross Value Added 3,495.21 3,372.38 3.64%

has been apportioned to employees
of the bank for the salaries and
other benefit that is followed by the
expansion and growth by 22.82%
for dividends. The shareholders,

22.82%

government and community of
the bank received 18.85%, 16.82%
and 0.36% of total value addition
respectively.

1438 Mn
4115%

<
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=
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Market Value
Added

Market value is the difference
between the market value and
total book value of the bank. It
shows the difference between
the current market value of the
Bank and capital contributed

by investors. It is the sum of all
capital claims held against the
bank plus the market value of debt
and equity. Positive Market value
added depicts the bank has added
value.

The Bank has market value added
of NPR 16,770.07 million as on
July 16, 2023 which was NPR
16,809.35 million as on July 16,
2022.

In NPR Million
Particulars 2022/23 2021/22
Market price per share 40700 439.90
Number of shares 64.21 56.57
Total Market value 26,133.06 24,885.94
Book value per share 145.82 14277
Number of shares 64.21 56.57
Total Book value 9,363.06 8,076.59
Market Value Added 16,770.01 16,809.35

Economic Value
Added

Economic Value Added (EVA)
is a financial performance
measurementtool developed by
Stern Stewart & Co. which is an
estimate of a Bank's economic

profit, or the value created more
than the required return of the
Bank's shareholders. EVA is the
profit earned by the Bank less the
cost of financing the Bank's capital.

The Bank has generated Economic
Value Added of NPR 41810 million
as on July 16, 2023 which was NPR
653.28 million on July 16, 2022.

In NPR Million
Particulars 2022/23 2021/22
Net operating profit after tax 1,248.23 1,341.81
Average Shareholders' fund 8,719.82 745162
Cost of capital Employed %* 9.52% 9.24%
Cost of capital Employed 83013 688.53
Economic Value Added 41810 653.28

*The cost of fund as of year end has been assumed to be the cost of capital employed of the Bank for each financial year.

MukTINATH Bikas Bank

PSS
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Risk Management

Risk Management Structure

The Board of Directors are governance structure supporting
responsible  for overall risk the identification, assessment,
management and for approving  monitoring, reporting and

mitigation of risk throughout the
Bank. The objective of the risk
management platform is to make
a conscious effort in developing

the risk management strategies
and principles.  The  Risk
Management Policy approved
by the Board has laid down the

The Bank follows the following Risk Management Structure:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Risk
Management

Chief
Executive

AML/CFT
Committee

4R

Officer

Business
Operation

1st
Line of
Defense

AML/CFT &
Compliance
Department

Committee

Integrated
Risk

2nd

Line of Defense

Management
Department

risk culture within the organization
and having appropriate systems
and tools for timely identification,
measurement and reporting of
risks for managing them.

Audit
Committee

Internal
Audit
Department

3rd
Line of
Defense

Business Lines &
Corporate Functions

Identification of Risk
and ownership for
the management

of risk, ensuring
risks are within the
Bank's risk appetite
expressed by the
risk management
policies.

Risk Management &
Control Functions

Provide direction for

risk management and
compliance, maintaining the
effective risk management
policy framework,
independently monitoring
& ensuring effective
implementation of risk
management framework.

Assurance
Functions

Providing independent
and objective assurance
on the risk exposure,
ensure processes and
practices in place and
effectively implemented
and ensure highest
level of governance and
compliance.

@agmqfamaﬁs



The Board has formed a Risk
Management Committee to assist
the Board in fulfilling the oversight
of the risk management function.
The Integrated Risk Management
Department is  assigned  the
responsibility of establishing overall
risk management at strategic and
operational levels of the Bank.

. tl'ﬂtEgY' ila 2
Risk Management Process

The Board has a Risk Management
committee which is responsible for
identifying, assessing and managing
the risks within the Bank and reports
to the Board of Directors. The Risk
Management Paolicy has been
implemented through the established
organization structure. The overall
monitoring of the Risks is done by
the Integrated Risk Management
Department with the support from
all the department heads including
the ALCO of the Bank. The Board will
review the status and progress of the
risk and risk management system, on
a quarterly basis through the Audit
Committee and Risk Management
Committee.

As the first level of defense, the
individual departments are responsible
for ensuring implementation of the risk
management framework and palicies,
systems and methodologies as
approved by the Board. The concerned
department heads shall ensure that
the branches, department and Bank
as a whole operates within the risk
tolerance. They are also responsible
for identifying risks within their own
department or related business
activity as the risk exposure of any
business may undergo change from
time to time due to the continuously
changing environment.

Accept:

$ Control

For the identifying, assessing and
mitigation of the AML/CFT and

Compliance Risk, the separate Board
Level Committee, "AML/CFT Committee
has been formed. The AML/CFT and
Compliance Department of the Bank
reports directly to AML/CFT committee
on the basis of the preapproved terms
of reference.

"RISK

Management

While each department focuses on its
specific area of activity, the Integrated
Risk Management Department
operates in coordination with all other
departments, gathers all significant
information to ensure that the risk
is within the risk appetite expressed
by the Risk Management Policy of
the Bank. Additionally, a dedicated
department with a specialty on
identifying and mitigating the risks
relating to money laundering and
financial terrorism (ML and TF) is
established as a risk management tool.
Further the Compliance Department
has also been formed to ensure that
the Bank complies with all kinds of
laws and regulations.

The Intermnal Audit Department
carries out the audit as per the
approved audit plan of the audit
committee and examines both the
adequacy of the procedures and
the Bank's compliance with the
procedures. Internal Audit discusses
the results of all assessments with
management and reports its findings
and recommendations to the Audit
Committee. The Bank also undergoes
an external audit by an external auditor
in accordance with the requirements
of Companies Act, 2063, and Banks
and Financial Institution Act, 2073
which provide assurance that financial
statements accurately reflect the
financial position and performance of

v
Mitigate

As the third level of defense the
Internal Audit Department has been
formed under the direct supervision
of the Audit Committee of the Bank.
The Internal Audit Department
monitors the adequacy, effectiveness
and adherence to internal controls,
processes and procedures instituted
by the Bank's and reports to the Board
through the Audit Committee.

ﬁ'ansfe \
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the Bank. In addition, the Information
System Audits are done each year by
the external specialized firms to review
and evaluate the Bank's information
system and the controls in place to
ensure the confidentiality, integrity,
and availability of information.

Risk Culture

At Muktinath, we foster a robust risk
culture across the entire organization,
firmly believing that every employee
plays a role in risk management. Our
goal is to institutionalize a positive risk
culture within the Bank, incorporating
values, beliefs, attitudes, and practices
that drive highly effective risk
decisions. We empower all employees
with the responsibility to manage and
escalate risks while demonstrating
responsible behavior that contributes
to a resilient risk culture. To fortify this
culture, we conduct regular training
sessions, elevating the level of risk
awareness among our employees and
equipping them with the necessary
skills and experience to effectively
handle risks associated with their
respective roles.

The detailed risk management
strategies are described in notes 5.1 of
the Financial Statement.
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At Muktinath Bikas Bank, where
we hold a deep belief in the
transformative power of technology,
we also acknowledge the weight
of responsibility that comes with
it, especially concerning customer
data security. We understand that
our customers are at the core of
our success, and safeguarding their
information is paramount.

In the realm of IT risk management,
our proactive approach extends to
ensuring the security of customer
data. We go beyond just minimizing
risks; we aim to fortify our defenses
to protect the trust our customers
place in us. Here's how we intertwine
IT governance with customer data
security:

Operations-Driven IT Strategy:

Our IT strategies are not just about
technology;  theyre  seamlessly
woven into our daily operations to
make things more effective and
secure.

€Y

It's not just about managing risks;
it's abeut Safeguarding the trust our
customers have placed in us through
every digital interaction and financial

transaction.

Improved IT Spending:

We're not just spending on IT; we're
strategically  allocating  resources
to ensure efficiency and impactful
initiatives.

Strong Governance/Compliance:

Our commitment to governance and
compliance extends to stringent
measures that safeguard customer
information, ensuring we adhere
to the highest standards of data
protection and IT risk management.

In our daily operations, we take
specific steps like keeping our
servers and computers armed
with the latest antivirus solutions,
employing next-generation firewalls
with Unified Threat Management,
regularly updating software, backing
up data with off-site storage, and
making sure our staff is well-versed
in IT policies and procedures.

We recognize that the tone set
at the top is critical for effective
risk management. Clear roles and
responsibilities are established, with
every staff member strictly following

policies and frameworks designed
to protect against IT-related risks.
Regular IT audits are conducted to
evaluate system availability, security,
confidentiality, accuracy, reliability,
and timeliness. Updates and patches
are promptly applied to address any
identified vulnerabilities.

We don't just see IT risk management
as a task; it's a shared responsibility.
Every member of our staff is not just
informed; they truly understand and
live by the risk tolerances we've set.
We conduct regular IT risk awareness
programs, not just as a formality, but
as away to build a positive risk culture.
And yes, we believe in recognizing and
rewarding our team because we know
individual accountability is the key.

In essence, at Muktinath Bikas
Bank, our commitment to IT risk
management seamlessly integrates
with our dedication to ensuring the
highest levels standards. It's not
just about managing risks; it's about
safeguarding the trust our customers
have placed in us through every digital
interaction and financial transaction.

@ajmmram%'as



Our Approach to ESG

At Muktinath Bikas Bank, we
recognize Environment, Social and
Governance as our trusted indicators
for sustainability that ensures long
term and ethical impact on our
business. We believe that sustainable

Overview | Leadership Insight

ENVIRONMENT

business practices are crucial for our
long-term success and well-being
of the communities we serve. Our
commitment to ESG principles is
deeply ingrained in our corporate
culture and strategic decision-

Sustainability Review
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GOVERNANCE

making process with responsibility
of the Board of Directors with
oversight of Senior Executives. Our
commitment for building ecologically
and socially sustainable future are
evident with:

Total Credit subjected to Environmental and Social Due Diligence 131
(above exposure of NPR 10 million)
Share (%) of Total Commercial loan subjected to Environmental 10.86%

and Social Due Diligence

Total Loan disbursed with Environmental and

Social Due Diligence

NPR 3,760 Million

Training / Workshop on Environment, Social 12

and Governance

Total Attendees in Training / Workshop on Environment, 544

Social and Governance
Environmental Commitment to a Greener Future
We are proud to contribute to lending extends to stringent due Looking inside the Bank, we
the transaction to a low-carbon  diligence processes to ensure that are actively pursuing energy

economy through Green Financing
initiatives. We have crafted a Green
Loan Product Paper and established
a dedicated unit for Green Financing
with vision of transitioning our
portfolio to environmentally
sustainable initiatives. Our dedication
to environmentally responsible

funded projects meet the highest
environmental standards. Lending to
sustainable sector remains a focal
point, contingent upon a rigorous
assessment of risk, returns and
impact with integration of ESG and
climate risk consideration into our
credit evaluation process.

Social Impact with Inclusive growth

We remain committed to fostering
financial inclusion in the communities
we serve. Our unique positioning of
Inclusive Banking for lower Socio-
Economic stratum has empowered
them to build a more secure financial
future at grassroot. For us, this
is not only a socially responsible
initiatives but also a strategic move
that contributes to our success and
sustainability.

Our  evaluation criterions in
Environment and Social Due
Diligence  on  legal  issues,

occupational health and safety, labor
conditions (including child and forced
labor), minimum wage compilation
and anti-discrimination measures
insures positive social impact on
each major lending.

Our success is directly tied to the

efficiency measures within  the
Bank aiming to reduce our carbon
footprint. Executive Team's shift
in their transportation paradigm to
Electronic Vehicle has set leadership
example for building sustainable
corporate ethos towards carbon-
neutral institution.

well-being of our employees. We
continue to invest in programs
that support a healthy work-life
balance, professional development
opportunities, diversity and
inclusion. The diverse composition
of workforce from different socio-
economic background is testament
to our efforts in creating a supportive
and inclusive workplace.

Financial Reports



Overview of Green Finance

Greenfinance referstofinancial products
and services that prioritize environmental
sustainability, aiming to support projects
and initiatives with positive ecological
impacts. It holds immense significance
for the banking industry, creating a
symbiotic relationship that benefits
both financial institutions and the
broader environmental landscape. As
per the UNDP background policy paper
on green financing in Nepal, the most
potential sectors for green financing in
Nepal includes renewable energy, clean
transportation, green building , sector of
water and waste , sustainable tourism,
climate smart agriculture and agri-
business. Adopting green finance and
sustainable practices is imperative for
Nepalese banks due to a combination
of environmental responsibility, risk
mitigation in the face of climate-related
challenges, market demand for socially
responsible products, long-term viability
through stable returns on eco-friendly
investments, compliance with evolving
environmental  regulations,  pasitive
societal impact, enhanced brand image,
and improved access to funding sources.

Initiating Green Finance at Muktinath

We are fully committed to aligning with
Nepal's visionary initiatives, strategies,
and the GRID (Green, Resilient, and
Inclusive Development ) approach, as
announced during Conference of the
Parties (COP26) , to actively contribute
to the country's pursuit of 'net zero
carbon, sustainable development, and
climate resilience by implementing
proactive measures and supporting
long-term green growth. For MNBBL,
embracing green finance practices is
pivotal as it not only aligns our operations
with global sustainability objectives
but also enhances our commitment for
environment friendly responsible banking.
In our pursuit of sustainable financial
practices, we have established the
Green Finance unit with a core mission
to seamlessly integrate environmentally
responsible strategies into our financial
operations. It has the key objectives of
facilitating investments in eco-friendly
projects, formulating and executing green
financial strategies, incentivizing green
initiatives, adhering to sustainable finance
regulations and enhancing environmental
risk management in financial decision-
making. Besides, the green finance unit
integrates green principles into our
financial policies, oversees and reports on
our carbon footprint, conducts research
on emerging green financial trends, and
provides training programs to enlighten
our staff on green finance principles.

Fostering Green Practices and
Eco-Friendly Solutions

We aim to promote green and
sustainable initiatives for 2023-28.
As a member of Global Alliance for
banking on values (GABV), we have
adopted its six guiding principles,
including social and environmental
sustainability, transparency, and
client-centered focus. We have a
mandated ESRM policy, disclose
a comprehensive value creation
model, and promote corporate
governance with defined codes of
conduct. Our green finance portfolio
prominently features loan to
renewable energy projects, electric
vehicles and associated ecosystem
and support for circular economy
projects. With our commitment
to promote renewable energy, we
have incorporated green initiatives
into our internal policies, such as
granting a 10% higher limit for
electric vehicle purchases under the
"Own Your Vehicle" scheme palicy.




Climate Smart Agriculture Focus

We acknowledge the pivotal role
of agriculture in our country's
economy and actively support the
government's initiative to enhance
financing in the climate-smart
agricultural sector. We strategically
concentrate on expanding our
agricultural  loan portfolio  with
specific focus on climate mitigation
as well as climate adaptation
measures, with technical assistance
from our dedicated associate
company, Muktinath Krishi
Company Limited. We capitalize on
market opportunities by offering
a broader range of structured
products and services, aiming for
the lasting benefit of the bank
and the agricultural community.
Our financing initiatives, including
product papers like the improving
agriculture loan, green loan product
paper etc. are specifically aimed at
promoting sustainable agriculture
and nature-based solutions.

Clean Energy Commitment

Our commitment to promoting clean
energy solutions aligns with responsible
environmental practices, emphasizing
projects that reduce carbon footprints
and combat climate change. We offer
comprehensive  financial ~ solutions
tailored to meet the unique needs
of hydropower projects, supporting
initiatives that have positive impacts on
the environment and local communities.
We encourage collaboration  with
international organizations, government
bodies, and NGOs, creating a supportive
ecosystem for energy efficiency and
green initiatives. Our energy loan product
paper focusses on energy efficiency by
investing in Micro hydropower project,
solar home system, solar cooker, solar
dryer, solar pump, biogas, improved
water mill, improved cook stoves, and
wind energy etc.

Future Outlook for
a Greener Tomorrow

Moving forward, we are dedicated to the
regular publication of our sustainability
report along with a comprehensive
disclosure of our greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions data in adherence
to the PCAF standard. We plan to
incentivize the green practices within
our bank by providing green stickers/
rating for the branches with the highest
consideration for green initiatives. Our
commitment extends to enhancing
the depth of our reporting structure,
incorporating more detailed integrated
reporting that prominently features ESG
disclosures within our annual report. This
commitment underscores our dedication
to transparency, accountability, and
the highest standards of corporate
responsibility. We shall  continue
allocating the CSR budget towards
green initiatives in the future too with
due consideration for Gender Equality
and Social Inclusion (GESI) framework
as well as other sustainability standards.
Our future strategy entails the creation
of a substantial green financing portfolio
through collaboration with stakeholders
across diverse sectors. This collaboration
aims to influence and shape policies for
a more environmentally sustainable
future.
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Muktinath  Bikas  Bank's is
anchored on its dedication to
changing people's lives and
empowering communities through
Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR). With a vision to support
sustainable  development, the
Bank curates various CSR
initiatives through participatory,
bottom-up and  consultative
approach. Bank collaborates with
a wide range of non-governmental
organizations ~ (NGOs),  social
organizations, local government

” N

Empowering
Communities

bodies, corporate organizations,
associated companies, and
dedicated employee volunteers
to effectively implement a wide
range of sustainable development
initiatives/programs. Each program
seeks to make a significant
difference in diverse areas such as
education, healthcare, sustainable
development, climate  action,
financial literacy, awareness, etc.



Overview | Leadership Insight  Sustainability Review  Statutory Reports | Financial Reports

— =R
PROMOTING EDUCATION

The Bank strongly advocates in promotion
of  education.  "MUKTINATH  UTKRISHTA
SCHOLARSHIP" which was started in FY 2022-
23 is one such initiative which aimed to provide
scholarship to various students of GRADE 11 &
12 at various government/ community colleges
who came from weak economic background,
marginalized communities. In the initial year 11
students studying in GRADE 11 from various
faculties were enrolled under the program. Also,
new eligible students are being added under the
scholarship this fiscal year as well.

In addition, Bank collaborated with various
government Schools and NGOs and provided
financial support to foster scholarship program.
Also, Bank supported in improving school
infrastructure through refurbishment, providing
stationaries such as school bags, handing over
other administrative materials needed.

HEALTHCARE AND HYGIENE

The Bank takes a comprehensive approach to
healthcare and hygiene. For facilitating healthcare,
Bank organized/facilitated ground programs such
as Health Camps (Eye & Dental) & blood donation
programs, collaborated with Kathmandu Institute
of Child Health (KIOCH) to construct children's
hospital in Eastern Nepal and handover over
wheelchairs to various hospitals across the nation
to facilitate patients.

Waste management and access to safe drinking
water, is another major intervention issue under
hygiene and sanitation for the Bank. For this,
through collaboration with local authorities Bank
have managed to organize clean up campaigns,
handover dustbins for waste collection and
provide support to build a bio sand filter and tanks
to provide clean drinking water.

QN
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TO AGREENER AND
SUSTAINABLE TOMORROW

The Bank organized and participated in various
tree plantation programs to take a step towards
combatting climate change. Some of the tree
plantations were organized on special occasions as
World Environment Day and World Biodiversity Day
to create more impact and awareness. Over 340
plant saplings (fruit bearing & non fruit bearing)
have been planted under the program.

Also, to promote self-sufficiency, Bank reached
out to various orphanages, child care centers
old age homes and handed over equipment's &
materials related to terrace farming, gardening and
bio- degradable waste management. The goal is to
promote production of various vegetables withinthe
compound of the organizations for sustainability.

FINANCIAL LITERACY
AND INCLUSION

Achieving Financial Inclusion is a vital goal that
requires a multi-faceted approach. Financial
Literacy helps accelerate the process for financial
inclusion hence, it is one of the most prioritized
initiatives under CSR. The Bank adopted various
models such as classroom model, door-to-door
(D2D) model, literacy through various media
channels, etc. The Bank managed to organize over
140 events at various public spaces, colleges and
schools. Over 1,600 staff members of the Bank,
including executive members, participated in the
programmer. More than 6,500 participants in the
classroom setting modality alone and the reach
for the D2D model in tens of thousands. The
Bank is committed to promoting financial literacy
and empowering communities to make informed
financial decisions. Bank's financial literacy
campaigns are designed to provide essential
knowledge about savings, loans and investments
in addition to access to organized finance sources.

@qmmﬁfﬁmaﬁs
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Forms of Spending and
Provincial Distribution of
CSR Activities

Every fiscal year 1% of net profitis set as budget in CSR .
Fund of the Bank which is utilized across the provinces g
of nation under various headings.

Considerable contributions of NPR 12.62 Million
have been made in various CSR headings including
sustainable goals for FY 2022-23. A summary for the
contributions made by the Bank in line with the forms
of spending and provinces are presented as below:

S.No Forms of Spending Contributions (In NPR)
1 Social Projects 2,025,803
2 Financial Literacy 1,664,994
3 Direct Grant 35,000
4 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) 7134,808
5 Expense; agqinst COvID preyentive measures for staffs (as per . 302494

actual bill basis), cost regarding medicines, oxygen cylinder, vaccine
6 Orphanages, Child care homes, Old Age homes related expenses 488,793
7 Digital Literacy 614114
8 Others Activities 337,061
Grand Total 12,623,067

P~ Karnali Province
L NPR232,625

- Gandaki Province
NPR 2,410,912

Bagmati Province
NPR 6,202,179

\,/\Ja, Q,_/ﬂ

Sudur Paschim Province
NPR 610,470

Lumbini Province
NPR 792,577

Madhesh Province
NPR 232,625

Koshi Province
NPR 1,618,574

Total Amount: NPR 12,623,067

PSS
.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Mulktinath Bikas Bank Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited and its subsidiary
(referred o as the “Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at Ashad 31, 2080
(July 16, 2023), the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of cash flows, and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements including a summary of significant accounting
policies and explanatory information.

In our opinien, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at Ashad 31, 2080, its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).

Rasis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal’s (ICAN’s) Handbook of Code of Ethies for Professional Accountants together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professicnal judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
rovide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters ] How our audit addressed the key audit matters

1. Identification of and provisioning for non-performing assets (NPA) on loan and advances
(Refer note 4.6 and 4.7 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Bank has net advances amounting to Rs. 96.99
billion as at 31 Ashad 2080. Identification of and
provisioning for non-performing assets (loans) in
accordance with NFRS and relevant prudential norms
issued by the Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) in respect of
income  recognition, asset classification and
provisioning pertaining to advances (herein after
referred as “NRB Directives™) is a key audit matter
due to the current processes. at the Bank which
requires manual interventions, management estimates
and judgement and level of regulatory and other
stakeholders focus. Accordingly, our audit was
focused on income recognition, asset classification
and provisioning pertaining to advances due to the
materiality of the balances and associated impairment
provisions.

Our audit approach included testing the design,

operating effectiveness of internal conirols and

substantive audit procedures in respect of income
recognition, asset classification and provisioning
pertaining to advances. In particular:

» We evaluated and understood the Bank’s internal
confrol system in adhering to the relevant NRB
Dircctives regarding income recognition, asset
classification and provisioning pertaining to
advances.

* We analyzed and understood key IT systems/
applications used and tested the operational
effectiveness of relevant controls, including
involvement of manual process and manual
controls in relation to income recognition, asset
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Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

classification and provisioning pertaining to

advances.
¢ We test checked advances to examine the validity
of the recorded amounts, loan documentation,
examined the statement of accounts, indicators of
impairment, impairment provision for non-
performing assets, and compliance with income
recognition, asset classification and provisioning
pertaining to advances; and
We evaluated the past trends of management
judgement, governance process and review
controls over impairment provision calculations
and discussed the provisions made with senior
management,

Our Result: We considered the identification of Non-
Performing Advances and their provisioning to be
acceptable.

2. Information Technology Systems and Controls

Impacting Financial Reporting

The Information Technology of the Bank is complex
and involves a large number of independent and inter-
dependent IT Systems used in the operations of the
Bank for processing and recording a large volume of
transactions. As a result, there is a high degree of
reliance and dependency on such IT systems for the
financial reporting process of the Bank.,

Appropriate IT General Controls and application
controls are required to ensure that such IT systems
are able to process the data, as required, completely,
accurately, and consistently for financial reporting.

We have considered this as key audit matter as any
control lapses, validation failures, incorrect input data
and wrong extraction of data may result in wrong
reporting of data to management, stakeholders, and
regulators,

We conducted an assessment and identified key IT

applications, databases and operating systems that

was relevant to our audit and identified Central

Banking System (CBS) and Treasury System

primarily as relevant for financial reporting. Our audit

approach was based on Information Technology

Guidelines 2012 issued by NRB and it also involved

testing of design and operating effectiveness of the

internal controls and substantive testing as follows:

# Obtained an understanding of the Bank's IT control
environment, IT policies and key changes during the
audit period.

* Reviewed the design, implementation, and
operating effectiveness of the Bank's General IT
controls over the key IT systems that are critical to
financial reporting on test check basis.

* Tested key automated and manual business cycle
controls and logic for system generated reports
relevant to the audit on test check basis.

® Reviewed the IS Audit Reports and discussed with
IT team on compliance to key IS Controls.

Our Result: We considered the information
technology systems and their relevant controls to be

adequate.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statement of the subsidiary whose financial statement reflect total assets of NPR
545,256,055 as at Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023), total revenues of NPR 76,823,153 and net positive cash flows
of NPR 316,845,760 for the year ended on that date as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net profit of NPR 2,075,272 and other
comprehensive income of NPR 556,876 for the year ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023), in respect of one
associate whose consolidated financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to accounts and disclosures included in
respects of this subsidiary and associate is based solely based on the reports of the other auditors.

Page 2 of 4




Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The management is responsible for the other information presented in the Bank’s Annual Report including the
report of the Board of Directors. The annual report, including the report of the Board of Directors, is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. Qur opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly. we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly
stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability 1o continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation,

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group fo express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on the other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit. The returns received from the branch offices of the bank, though
the statements are not independently audited, were adequate for the purpose of the audit. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in the format prescribed by the Nepal Rastra Bank’s Unified Directives
no. 4 and in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2063 and Section 59 of the Bank and Financial
Institution Act, 2073, and are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Bank; and the accounts and records
are properly maintained in accordance with the prevailing laws. We have not come across any accounting fraud,
so far as it appeared from our examination of the books of accounts.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our audit, we
observed that the bank has taken actions for protection of the interest of depositors and investors; the capital fund
and risk bearing fund were adequately maintained; loans have been written off as specified; the business of the
Bank was conducted satisfactorily, and the Bank’s transactions were found to be within the scope of its authority.
We did not come across to the cases where the board of directors or any director or any office bearer of the Bank
has acted contrary to the provisions of law or has caused loss or damage to the Bank or committed any
misappropriation or violation of directive of Nepal Rastra Bank.

Partner

Place: Kathmandu
Date: December 21, 2023
UDIN: 231221CA01391tITN1
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Financial Reports

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As on 3lst Asar 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Figures in NPR

“E 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent 4] 5,326,084,785 8,145,516,992 5,268,539,748 8,101,009,812
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 3,732,132,133 2,865,440,399 3,732,132,133 2,865,440,399
Placement with Bank and Financial

Institutions 43 : . ; .

Derivative Financial Instruments 44 - - - -
Other Trading Assets 45 48,618,603 63,796,298 - -
Loans and Advances to BFls 4.6 2,536,439,270 2,726,799,773 2,536,439,270 2,726,799,773
Loans and Advances to Customers 47 94,456,965,952 86,811,948,415 94,456,965,952 86,811,948,415
Investment Securities 48 22,269,838,948 17,961,381,659 22,084,609,500 17,936,381,659
Current Tax Assets 49 52,756,158 16,279,283 48,176,787 16,472,447
Investment in Subsidiaries 410 - - 244,045,905 117,500,000
Investment in Associates 40 134,553,273 76,371,125 155,550,000 100,000,000
Investment Property 412 289,196,462 84,166,532 256,080,782 51,050,852
Property and Equipment 413 1,934,412,450 1,913,977,036 1,919,851,163 1,895,061,498
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 414 15,209,783 20,906,691 14,537,316 19,937,610
Deferred Tax Assets 415 85,994,981 102,240,662 84,683,324 92,450,588
Other Assets 416 856,524,747 372,984,507 809,595,176 349,415,369
Total Assets 131,738,727,544 121,161,809,372 131,611,207,055 121,083,468,422
Liabilities

Due to Banks and Financial Institutions 417 1,999,547,189 3,750,284,110 1,999,547,189 3,750,284,110
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 215,874,848 1,032,979,556 215,874,848 1,032,979,556
Derivative Financials Instrument 419 - - - -
Deposits from Customers 4.20 116,297,178,932 104,667,788,144 116,449,870,954 104,675,072,263
Borrowings 4.2 18,750,000 25,016,438 18,750,000 25,016,438
Current Tax Liabilities 49 - - - -
Provisions 422 14,806,030 3,506,030 14,806,030 3,506,030
Deferred Tax Liabilities 415 - - - -
Other Liabilities 423 2,430,937,973 2,309,276,165 2,302,381,934 2,273,529,660
Debt Securities Issued 4L.24 1,246,917,782 1,246,489,292 1,246,917,782 1,246,489,291
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - - - -
Total Liabilities 122,224,012,754 113,035,339,734 122,248,148,737 113,006,877,348
Equity

Share Capital 426 6,420,900,273 5,657,180,857 6,420,900,273 5,657,180,857
Share Premium - - - -
Retained Earnings 655,193,953 768,233,362 673,938,061 805,522,228
Reserves 427 2,272,992,668 1,621,323,346 2,268,219,984 1,613,887,989
;‘r’l:;ﬁg:’;:"r:ttr'b”‘able to Equity 9,349,086,894 8,046,737,565 9,363,058,318 8,076,591,074
Non Controlling Interest 165,627,897 79,732,073 - -
Total Equity 9,514,714,790 8,126,469,638 9,363,058,318 8,076,591,074
Total Equity and Liabilities 131,738,727,544 121,161,809,372 131,611,207,055 121,083,468,422
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 4.28 3,343,694,374 4,088,360,603 3,343,694,374 4,088,360,603
Net Assets Value per share 14818 143.65 145.82 142.77

As per our report of even date

Bikesh Madhikarmi
Partner

CSC & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sanjiv Poudel
Chief Financial Officer

Pradyuman Pokharel
Chief Executive Officer

Bharat Raj Dhakal
Chairman

Nirmala Kumari KC Karki
Director

Gajendra Man Shrestha
Director

Shaligram Mishra
Director

Shyam Sundar Sharma
Independent Director

Date: 5th Poush 2080
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 3lst Asar 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Figures in NPR

“E 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Interest Income 4.29 15,504,956,352 11,567,961,936 15,475,236,312 11,563,216,298
Interest Expense 4,30 11,364,475,399 8,232,935,856 11,371,142,353 8,233,436,921
Net Interest Income 4,140,480,953 3,335,026,081 4,104,093,959 3,329,779,376
Fees and Commission Income 4.3] 628,148,220 534,223,114 592,895,444 497,493,264
Fees and Commission Expense 4,32 71,966,148 56,149,718 67,198,619 49,951,529
Net Fee and Commission Income 556,182,073 478,073,396 525,696,825 447,541,735
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 4,696,663,025 3,813,099,476 4,629,790,784 3,777,321,1M
Net Trading Income 433 14,697,376 (20,077,278) 11,34091 8,444,762
Other Operating Income 434 13,684,380 (1,059,372) 11,419,765 46,878,501
Total Operating Income 4,725,044,781 3,791,962,826 4,652,551,460 3,832,644,373
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and 5 698,675,809 74,712,188 698,675,809 74,712,188

other losses
Net Operating Income 4,026,368,972 3,717,250,638 3,953,875,651 3,757932,185
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 436 1,459,961,516 1,232,478,992 1,438,159,358 1,216,354,519
Other Operating Expenses 4,37 469,459,172 403,661,099 461,034,637 394,298,916
Depreciation and Amortisation 4,38 239,699,913 219,41,305 234,108,880 213,905,277
Operating Profit 1,857,248,371 1,861,699,242 1,820,572,776 1,933,373,473
Non Operating Income 4.39 - - - -
Non Operating Expenses 4.40 10,256,102 2,281,822 10,256,102 2,281,822
Profit before Income Tax 1,846,992,269 1,859,417,420 1,810,316,674 1,931,091,650
Income Tax Expenses 4.4]

Current Tax 589,775,311 602,937,303 587,938,885 600,303,236

Deferred Tax (17,370,062) (20,417,532) (25,848,480) (11,016,873)
Profit for the Period 1,274,587,020 1,276,897,6 49 1,248,226,268 1,341,805,287
Profit attributable to:

Equity-holders of the Bank 1,264,935,491 1,283,731,107 1,248,226,268 1,341,805,287

Non-Controlling Interest 9,651,529 (6,833,458) - -
Profit for the Period 1,274,587,020 1,276,897,6 49 1,248,226,268 1,341,805,287
Earnings per Share

Basic Earnings per Share 1985 19.89 (Restated) 19.44 209 (Restated)

Diluted Earnings per Share 19.85 19.89 (Restated) 1944 209 (Restated)

Sanjiv Poudel
Chief Financial Officer

Gajendra Man Shrestha
Director

Shaligram Mishra
Director

Date: 5th Poush 2080
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Nirmala Kumari KC Karki
Director

Pradyuman Pokharel
Chief Executive Officer

Bharat Raj Dhakal

Chairman

Shyam Sundar Sharma
Independent Director

As per our report of even date

Partner

CSC & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Bikesh Madhikarmi
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Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 3lst Asar 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Particulars

3l1st Asar 2080

32nd Asar 2079

3l1st Asar 2080

Figures in NPR

32nd Asar 2079

Profit for the year

1,274,587,020

1,276,897,6 49

1,248,226,268

1,341,805,287

Other Comprehensive Income, net of
Income Tax

a) Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

Gains/(losses) from investment in equity
instruments measured at fair value

Gains/(losses) on revaluation

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit
plans

Income tax relating to above items

56,388,864

55,663,614

(33,615,743)

(74,371,878)

(13,680,493)

26,415,711

56,388,864

55,663,614

(33,615,743)

(74,371,878)

(13,680,493)

26,415,711

Net Other Comprehensive Income that will
not be reclassified to profit or loss

78,436,735

(61,636,660)

78,436,735

(61,636,660)

b) Iltems that are or may be reclassified to
profit or loss

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from
translating financial assets of foreign
operation)

Income tax relating to above items

Reclassify to profit or loss
Net other comprehensive income that are
or may be reclassified to profit or loss
c) Share of other comprehensive income

of associate accounted as per equity
method

556,876

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of income tax

78,993,610

(61,636,660)

78,436,735

(61,636,660)

Total comprehensive income for the year

1,353,580,630

1,215,260,989

1,326,663,003

1,280,168,627

Total comprehensive income attributable
to:

Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

1,343,929,101
9,651,529

1,222,094,447
(6,833,458)

1,326,663,003

1,280,168,627

Total comprehensive income for the period

1,353,580,630

1,215,260,989

1,326,663,003

1,280,168,627

Sanjiv Poudel
Chief Financial Officer

Gajendra Man Shrestha
Director

Shaligram Mishra
Director

Date: 5th Poush 2080
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Pradyuman Pokharel
Chief Executive Officer

Nirmala Kumari KC Karki
Director

Bharat Raj Dhakal

Chairman

Shyam Sundar Sharma
Independent Director

As per our report of even date

Partner
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Chartered Accountants
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 3lst Asar 2080 (July 16, 2023) _ )
Figures in NPR

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest Received 13,302,861,291 10,294,979,110 13,273,141,251 10,290,233,471
Fee and Other Income Received 628,148,220 534,223,114 592,895,444 497 493,264
Dividend Received - - - -
Receipts from Other Operating Activities 24,137,531 (32,637,956) 18,516,452 23,729,457
Interest Paid (1,270,417,698) (8,184,549,512) (M,277,084,652) (8,185,050,578)
Commissions and Fees Paid (71,966,148) (56,149,718) (67,198,619) (49,951,529)
Cash Payment to Employees (1,254,970,738) (1,017.913,253) (1,237,013,061) (1,001,788,780)
Other Expenses Paid (479,715,274) (700,066,414) (471,290,738) (550,558,958)
Operating Cash Flows before Changes in 878,077,185 837,885,371 831,966,077 1,024,106,347

Operating Assets and Liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

(866,691,734)

(300,691,807)

(866,691,734)

(300,691,807)

Other Trading Assets 15,177,696 21,385,281 - -
Loans and Advances to BFls 190,360,503 756,813,592 190,360,503 756,813,592
Loans and Advances to Customers (7,467,100,562) (13,425,885,348) (7,467,100,562) (13,425,885,348)
Other Assets (898,792,613) (110,877,522) (879,138,061) (149,712,869)

Increase/(Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Due to Banks and Financial Institutions

(1,750,736,921)

(1,669,302,815)

(1,750,736,921)

(1,669,302,815)

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank (817,104,708) 200,533,138 (817,104,708) 200,533,138
Deposits from Customers 11,629,390,789 17,837,050,853 11,774,798,691 17,772,157,890
Borrowings (6,266,438) 25,016,438 (6,266,438) 25,016,438
Other Liabilities (72,028,970) 895,669,843 (160,994,023) 968,742,800
:‘:: E:izh Flow from Operating Activities before 834,284,226 5,067,597,026 849,092,824 5,201,777,367
Income Tax Paid (572,405,249) (578,923,402) (562,090,4006) (572,477,215)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 261,878,977 4,488,673,624 287,002,418 4,629,300,152
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Investment Securities (3,992,531,677) (3,494,237,531) (3,956,215,986) (3,447,813,299)
Receipts from Sale of Investment Securities 5,662,092 73,758,799 5,662,092 24,834,566
Purchase of Property and Equipment (260,135,328) (1,092,304,551) (258,898,546) (1,212,146,563)
Receipts from Sale of Property and Equipment - - - -
Purchase of Intangible Assets - (11,528,941) - (15,362,783)
Receipts from Sale of Intangible Assets 5,696,908 - 5,400,294 -
Purchase of Investment Properties (205,029,930) (51,050,852) (205,029,930) (51,050,852)
Receipts from Sale of Investment Properties - - - -
Interest Received 1,325,502,276 806,169,633 1,325,502,276 806,169,633
Dividend Received 4,244,224 11,501,305 4,244,224 31,593,805
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (3,116,591,434) (3,757,692,139) (3,079,335,575) (3,863,775,492)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Issue of Debt Securities - 1,195,004,496 - 1,195,004,496
Repayments of Debt Securities - - - -
Receipts from Issue of Subordinated Liabilities - - - -
Repayments of Subordinated Liabilities - - - -
Receipt from Issue of Shares - - - -
Dividends Paid (40,195,760) (59,806,845) (40,195,760) (44,506,845)
Interest Paid (94,057,701) (48,386,344) (94,057,701) (48,386,344)
Other Receipts/Payments 169,533,709 (20,746,705) 94,116,553 (36,347,638)
Net Cash from Financing Activities 35,280,249 1,066,064,602 (40,136,908) 1,065,763,668
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (2,819,432,208) 1,797,046,087 (2,832,470,065) 1,831,288,328
Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1, 2079 8,145,516,992 6,348,470,905 8,101,009,812 6,269,721,484
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash

equivalents held ) ) ) )
Cash and cash equivalents at Asar end 2080 5,326,084,785 8,145,516,992 5,268,539,748 8,101,009,812

As per our report of even date

Sanjiv Poudel
Chief Financial Officer

Pradyuman Pokharel
Chief Executive Officer

Bharat Raj Dhakal Bikesh Madhikarmi
Chairman Partner
CSC & Co.

Nirmala Kumari KC Karki Chartered Accountants

Director

Gajendra Man Shrestha
Director

Date: 5th Poush 2080
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Shaligram Mishra
Director

Shyam Sundar Sharma
Independent Director
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

Reporting Entity

Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited (The Bank’) is domiciled and
incorporated in Nepal under the Companies Act, 2063 on 22nd
Chaitra 2062.
banking operations as a ‘B Class’ financial institution from Nepal
Rastra Bank on 18th Poush, 2063. The bank is a limited liability
company having its shares listed on Nepal Stock Exchange. The

The Bank received the license to commence

registered office of the Bank is situated at Kathmandu Plaza,
Kamaladi-28, Kathmandu, Nepal.

The bank’s principal offerings include comprehensive range of
financial services encompassing accepting of deposits, corporate
and retail credit, project financing, hire purchase financing, micro
credit, trade financing, personal and corporate banking, foreign
currency operations, issuing of debit cards, internet banking,
mobile banking, remittance facilities, dealing in government
securities and treasury related products, agency services and
others ancillary services permitted by the Banking and Financial
Regulation Act, 2073.

The Bank has Muktinath Capital Limited (formerly known as
Vibor Capital Limited) and Muktinath Krishi Company Limited as
its subsidiary and associate company respectively. Muktinath
Capital Limited is engaged in Merchant Banking business and
provides the services of Registrar to Shares, Issue Management,
Underwriting, Depository Participants, Portfolio Management
Services and other advisory services. Muktinath Krishi Company
Limited is engaged in the business of agricultural products which
includes the production, manufacturing, trading and marketing of

the agricultural products.

Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited and Muktinath Capital Limited are
hereinafter referred to as “The Group”.

Basis of Preparation

21. Going Concern
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis, as the bank has the resources to continue in business for
the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the Board
of Directors have considered a wide range of information
relating to present and future conditions, including future
projections of profitability, cashflows and capital resources.

2.2. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared on going

concern basis and under historical cost conventions
except where the standards require otherwise. The financial
statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) developed
by the Accounting Standards Board, Nepal (ASB, Nepal) and
pronounced for application by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

The financial statements comprise of Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other

MukTINATH Bikas Bank

2.3.

2.4,

2.5.

Comprehensive Income, Statement in Changes in Equity,
Statement of Cashflows and Notes to the Accounts on the
format prescribed by NRB Directive No. 4.

Reporting Period and Approval of Financial
Statements

Reporting Period:

The Group follows the Nepalese financial year based on
Nepali calendar starting from 1st Shrawan 2079 and ending
on 3lst Asar 2080. (17th July 2022 to 16th July 2023).

Approval of Financial Statements:

The accompanied financial statements have been approved
and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors
in its meeting held on 5th Poush 2080 and have been
recommended for approval by shareholders in the Annual
General Meeting.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees
(NPR) which is the functional and presentation currency of
the Bank.

The financial information presented has been rounded off to
nearest rupee except where otherwise stated.

Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments
The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the
application of accounting policies that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation
is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included
in the relevant sections of the notes wherever the estimates
have been applied along with the nature and effect of
changes of accounting estimates, if any.

> Reporting Pronouncement

The Bank has, for the preparation of financial statements,
adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB as effective on 13
September 2013. The NFRS conform, in all material respect,
to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

However, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal
(ICAN) vide its notice dated 10 November 2020 has
resolved that Carve-outs in NFRS with Alternative Treatment
and effective period shall be provided to the Banks and
Financial Institutions regulated by NRB on the specific
recommendation of Accounting Standard Board (ASB).

909
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2.6. Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods
presented in the financial statements, including the preparation of
the opening NFRS compliant Statement of Financial Position as at
Ist Shrawan, 2074 being the date of transition to NFRS.

2.7. New Standards issued but not yet effective
» Amendments in existing standards and interpretations
issued by IASB after the pronouncement of NFRS have
not been applied and shall be adopted as and when
made effective by ICAN/ASBN.

2.8. Discounting

The Group determines amortized cost of a financial asset
or a financial liability using the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout the
expected life of a financial asset or a financial liability to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.
If expected life cannot be determined reliably, then the
contractual life is used.

In case where the Group assesses that the transaction
amount of a financial asset or a financial liability does not
represent its fair value, the related future cash flows are
discounted at prevailing interest rate to determine the initial
fair value.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
3.1. Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for the following material items:

Investment Securities Fair Value
through SOCI

Employees Defined Benefit Present value of defined

Obligation benefit obligation less
the fair value of the plan
assets

3.2. Basis of Consolidation
a. Business Combination
Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method in line with the NFRS 03 “Business
Combination”. The consideration transferred in the
acquisition and identifiable net assets acquired are
measured at fair value. Any goodwill that arises is tested
annually for impairment Any gain on a bargain purchase
is recognised in profit or loss immediately. Transaction
costs are expensed as incurred, except if they are
related to the issue of debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amount
related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships.
Such amount is generally recognised in profit or loss.
Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value

90%

at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay
contingent consideration that meets the definition of
a financial instrument is classified as equity, then it is
not re-measured and settlement is accounted for within
equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-Controlling Interest

The interest of non-controlling shareholders is initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’” proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Subsequent to acquisition, the
carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the
amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the
non-controlling interests’” share of subsequent changes
in equity of subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities controlled by the bank. The
Bank controls an entity if it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee.

The Consolidate Financial Statement includes the
financials of the subsidiary from the date the control
commences until the date control ceases. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements, the financial statements
are combined by adding the like items of assets, liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent
line by line with those of its subsidiary and eliminating the
transaction with the companies within the group.

Loss of Control

When the Group loses control over a Subsidiary, it
derecognises the assets and liabilities of the Subsidiary,
and any-related NCI and other components of equity.
Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in the former Subsidiary
is measured at fair value when control is lost and is
accounted depending on the level of control retained.

Special Purpose Entity (SPE)

Special purpose entities are created to achieve a narrow
and well-defined objective with restrictions around
their activities. Special purpose entities are consolidated
when the substance of the relationship between the
Bank and the special purpose entity indicates the Bank
has power over the contractual relevant activities of
the special purpose entity, is exposed to variable
returns, and can use that power to affect the variable
return exposure.

The bank does not have any interest on special purpose
entities during the reporting period.

@qm@rmaﬁs
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f.

Transaction elimination on consolidation

Intra-group balances, transactions, and any unrealised
income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in preparing the Consolidated
Financial Statements as per the provision of NFRS 10-
Consolidated Financial Statement Unrealised gains
arising from transactions with equity accounted investees
are eliminated against the investment to the extent of
the Group's interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment

3.3. Cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent comprise short-term, highly liquid

investments that are readily convertible to known amounts

of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value and carried at amortised cost

The cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash
flow statement include cash in hand, balances with banks,
money at call and money market funds and financial assets

with original maturity less than 3 months from the date of

acquisition.

3.4. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
a. Recognition

S
F 3

The Group recognizes financial assets and financial
liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument All financial assets and
liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition.
Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and
financial liabilities, other than those carried at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), are added to the fair
value on initial recognition. Transaction costs in relation
to financial assets and financial liabilities which are
carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), are
charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Classification

The financial assets and liabilites are subsequently
measured at amortized cost or fair value based on
business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Financial assets are classified under three categories

as required by NFRS 9, namely:

i.  Financial Assets measured at amortised cost:
Financial assets that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method less impairment,
if any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from
impairment, if any is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

MukTINATH Bikas Bank

ii. ~ Financial Assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income:
Financial assets that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both, selling
financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest,
are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Fair value movements
are recognized in the other comprehensive income
(ocqi.

iii. ~Financial Assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss:
The Group classifies the financials assets as fair
value through profit or loss if they are held for
trading or designated at fair value through profit
or loss.

Any other financial asset not classified as either
amortised cost or FVTOC], is classified as FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified under two categories

as required by NFRS 9, namely:

i.  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial
recognition, transaction cost directly attributable
to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of
Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in
fair value is recognized at profit or loss.

ii. ~ Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
All financial liabilites other than measured at
fair value though profit or loss are classified as
subsequently measured at amortized cost using
effective interest method.

De-recognition

The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the asset

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Determination of Fair Value

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liabilty in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

q03
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The Group follow three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy

are described below:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets

or liabilities in active markets;

Level 2: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement
are directly or indirectly observable or
valuations of quoted for similar instrument in
active markets or quoted prices for identical
or similar instrument in inactive markets; and

Level 3: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement
are unobservable.

Investment in Unquoted Equity Instrument are carried
cost as the market price of such shares could not be
ascertained with certainty at the reporting date.

Impairment

The Bank reviews its individually significant loans and
advances at each reporting date to assess whether an
impairment loss should be provided in the Statement of
Profit or Loss. The Management’s judgement is extensively
used in the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows when determining the impairment loss. These
estimates are based on assumptions about a number of
factors and hence actual results may differ, resulting in
future changes to the provisions made.

The individual impairment provision applies to financial
assets evaluated individually for impairment and is
based on Management’s best estimate of the present
value of the future cash flows that are expected to be
received. In estimating these cash flows, Management
makes judgements about the number of factors including
a borrower’s financial situation and the net realisable
value of any underlying collateral. Top borrowers and
loans classified as non-performing assets as per NRB
norms forming part of 25% of the portfolio are tested
for individual impairment Each impaired asset is assessed
on its merits to estimate the recoverable amount of cash
flows.

The Bank considers the following factors in assessing

objective evidence of impairment:

»  Whether the counterparty is in default of principal
or interest payments.

» When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this
would avoid or delay discharge of its obligation.

»  Where the Bank initiates legal recourse of recovery
in respect of a credit obligation of the counterpart

» Where the Bank consents to a restructuring of
the obligation, resulting in a diminished financial
obligation, demonstrated by a material forgiveness
of debt or postponement of scheduled payments.

>  Where there is observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows of a group of financial assets, although

3.5.

3.6.

the decrease cannot yet be identified with specific
individual financial assets.

A collective impairment provision is established for:

» groups of homogeneous loans and advances and
investment securities which are held-to-maturity, that
are not considered individually significant; and

»  groups of assets that are individually significant but
that were not found to be individually impaired.

The collective impairment is carried using the statistical
modelling such as historical trends of probability of
defaults, timings of recoveries, and current economic
and market conditions which may warrant for the loss
being greater than the suggested by the historical
trends.

For the purpose of collective assessment of impairment
bank has categorized assets into following broad
products as follows:

» Home Loan

» Hire Purchase Loan

»  Personal Loan

» Business Loans

»  Small & Micro Credit

Carve out adopted for assessment of impairment charge
The Bank has opted to apply carve out on impairment
of loans and receivables. Accordingly, individual and
collective impairment loss amount calculated as per
NFRS is compared with the impairment provision
required under NRB directive no. 2, higher of the amount
derived from these measures is taken as impairment loss
for loans and receivables.

Trading Assets

Financial assets are classified as trading assets (held for
trading) if they have been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term, or form part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern
of short- term profit taking. They are recognised on trade
date, when the bank enters into contractual arrangements
with counterparties, and are normally derecognised when
sold. They are initially measured at fair value, with transaction
costs taken to profit or loss. Subsequent changes in their fair
values are recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative Assets and Derivative Liabilities
Derivative instruments include transactions like interest rate
swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange contract
etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes.
Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at
fair value on the contract date and are subsequently re-
measured to fair value at each reporting date. The Group
does not have any derivative instrument during the reporting
period.

@qm@rﬁm%
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3.7. Property and Equipment

Recognition and measurement: The Group applies the
cost model to all property and equipment and recognise
these at the cost of acquisition plus expenditures directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset, less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost also include the cost of replacing part of the
equipment when the recognition criteria are met.

Depreciation: The Bank depreciates property, plant and
equipment over the estimated useful life on a straight-
line basis from the date the assets are ready for intended
use. Assets acquired under finance lease and leasehold
improvements are amortized over the lower of estimated
useful life and lease term. The estimated useful lives of
assets for the current and comparative period of significant
items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Useful Life

Type of Assets

Buildings 50 Years
Leasehold Properties 8 Years
Computer & Accessories 5 Years
Vehicles - Two-Wheeler 5 Years
Vehicles - Four-Wheeler 7 Years
Furniture & Fixtures 5 Years
Equipment & Others - Equipment 5 Years
Equipment & Others - Others 5 Years

The Group has not measured the any property and plant at
revaluation model and at fair value.

Assets having acquisition cost less than or equal NPR 10,000
have been written off as an expense in the Statement of
Profit or Loss.

3.8. Goodwill/Intangible Assets

a. Goodwill

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
values of the identifiable net assets acquired in Business
Combination is recognised as goodwill. Goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. The Group follows the partial goodwill method for
the computation of goodwill in business combinations.
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or more
frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired.

b. Intangible Assets:
Intangible assets are recognised when the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably, there is control over
the asset as a result of past events, future economic
are expected from the asset These intangible assets
are recognised at historical cost less impairment less
amortisation over their estimated useful life.

Amortisation of the intangible assets is calculated using
the straight-line method over the useful life of 5 years.

MukTINATH Bikas Bank
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Investment Property

Investment properties are land or building or both other
than those classified as property and equipment under NAS
16 - “Property, Plant and Equipment”; and assets classified
as non-current assets held for sale under NFRS 5 - “Non-
Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.
Land and Building acquired as non-banking assets are
recognised as investment property as per NRB Directive.
The investment property has been measured at the lower
of outstanding amount or fair value of collateral on the date
of recognition.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequently all investment properties
are reported at fair value with any gains or losses in fair
value reported in the statement of profit and loss as they
arise. No depreciation is charges in investment property as
they are not intended for the owner-occupied use.

Income Tax

Tax expenses comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

a. Current Tax
Current tax is the income tax expense recognized in
the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it
relates to items recognized directly in equity or other
comprehensive income in which case it is recognized
in equity or in other comprehensive income. Current
tax is the amounts expected or paid to Inland Revenue
Department in respect of the current year, using the tax
rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on
the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of prior years.

b. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the balance sheet and the amounts attributed to
such assets and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected
to apply in the periods in which the assets will be
realised or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates and
laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when they arise in the same tax reporting group and
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority, and when the group has a legal right to offset

Deposit, debt securities issued and subordinated
liabilities
a. Deposits
Deposits by banks & customers are financial liabilities
of the bank as there is an obligation to deliver cash or
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financial assets back to the depositing bank or customer
and are initially recognised at fair value, plus for those
financial liabilities not at fair value through profit and
loss. The transaction price is considered as the fair value
for measuring the deposits.

b. Debt Securities Issued
Debt Securities are initially measured at the fair value
less incremental direct cost and subsequently at their
amortised cost using effective interest method except
where the bank designates liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss.

c. Subordinated Liabilities
These are the liabilities subordinated, at the event of
winding up, to claims of depositors, debt securities
issued and other creditors. It shall include redeemable
preference  shares, subordinated notes issued,
borrowings etc.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if as a result of a past event,
the bank has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. The amount recognised is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the reporting date, taking in to account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation at that date.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimates and are reversed if
there is not the probability of outflow of resources.

The contingent liability are the liabilities for which it
is uncertain as to whether it will become an obligation
as it depends on the occurrence of an uncertain future
event These amounts are off-balance sheet items and are
disclosed when there is a possible obligation that may but
probably will not require an outflow of resources.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when
the expected benefits to be derived by the Bank from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its
obligations under the contract

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that

the economic benefits will flow to Bank and the consideration

can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition

criteria shall also be met for revenue recognition:

a. Interest Income
For all financial instruments measured at amortized
cost and interest-bearing financial assets through other
comprehensive income interest income or expense is
recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where

appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. The calculation of effective
interest rate includes all charges and fee paid or
received that are integral part of the effective interest
only if considered necessary. Such a charges are not
amortized over the life of the loan and advances as the
income so recognized closely approximates the income
that would have derived under effective interest method
and are recognised directly in statement of profit and
loss.

The interest income recognised in the statement of

profit and loss includes the following:

» Interest income on financial assets measured at
amortized cost calculated on an effective interest
rate  method, except for impaired loans and
advances. These financial assets include investment
in government securities, investment in NRB Bond
and deposit instruments, reverse repos, interbank
lending, etc.

» As per carve out on NAS 39 Para 9, the Bank has
not included the fees and paid or received in loans
and advances that are immaterial or impracticable
to determine reliably the effective interest rate and
have recognized them directly as revenue in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

» As per carve out on NAS 39 AG 93, the Bank
has applied the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset unless the
financial asset is written off either partially or fully.

» Interest on investment securities is calculated on
effective interest rate.

» Income on discounted instruments like bills
purchased, documents negotiation is recognized
over the period of discounting on accrual basis
using effective interest rate.

» Interest income on all trading assets are considered
to be incidental to the Group’s trading operations
and are presented together with all other changes
in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net
trading income.

» The group has adopted the following criterion
in to suspend the interest income where there is
reasonable doubt about the collectability of the
interest:

i. Loans where there is reasonable doubt about
the ultimate collectability of principal or interest;

i. Loans against which individual impairment as per
NAS 39 or life time impairment as per NFRS @
has been made;

ii. Loans where contractual payments of principal
and/or interest are more than 3 months in
arrears and where the “net realizable value”
of security is insufficient to cover payment of
principal and accrued interest;

iv.  Loans where contractual payments of principal
and/or interest are more than 12 months in
arrears, irrespective of the net realizable value
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of collateral;

v. Overdrafts and other short-term facilities which
have not been settled after the expiry of the
loan and even not renewed within 3 months of
the expiry, and where the net realizable value
of security is insufficient to cover payment of
principal and accrued interest;

vi. Overdrafts and other short-term facilities which
have not been settled after the expiry of the
loan and even not renewed within 12 months
of the expiry, irrespective of the net realizable
value of collateral.

Fee and Commission Income
Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an
accrual basis when the service has been provided.

Dividend Income

Dividend income received from equity shares is
recognized in the books when the bank’s right to
receive the dividend is established.

Net Trading Income

Net Trading Income includes all gains and losses from
changes in fair value, related capital gain/loss and
dividend from financial assets through profit and loss.
Trading expenses are deducted from the trading income
and the amount net of trading expenses are disclosed
in statement of profit and loss.

Net Income from Other Financial Instrument at Fair
Value Through Profit or Loss

Net income from other financial instrument measured
at fair value through Profit or Loss includes all gains/
(losses) arises from the revaluation of financial instrument
at fair value.

Grant Income

Government grants is recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the entity
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Income approach is
followed in recording grant income. Government grants
related to the assets including non-monetary grants
at fair value is presented in the statement of financial
position by setting up Deferred Grant Income.

Grant received towards purchase of fixed assets has
been recognised to asset account Any depreciation on
the assets, in the income statement will be reduced pro
rata in accordance with grant relative to the asset value.

Grant received as reimbursements of operating expenses
incurred or to be incurred are recognized in profit or
loss as and when the cost is incurred.

Grants related to income are presented as part of profit
or loss under other operating income.

MukTINATH Bikas Bank

3.14. Interest Expenses
Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits
are recognized in profit or loss using effective interest
method.

3.15. Employee Benefits
a. Short term employee benefits

The Group's short-term employee benefits mainly include
wages, salaries, allowances, socials security expenses,
bonuses as provided in the law and other employee
related expenses. Short term employee benefits are
measured on an undiscounted basis and are charged
to statement of profit and loss as and when the related
service is provided.

b. Long term employee benefits
- Defined Contribution Plans
The contributions to defined contribution plans
are recognised in profit or loss as and when the
services are rendered by employees which the
bank contributes fixed percentage of the salary to
the Employee’s Provident Fund. The Group has no
further obligations under these plans beyond its
periodic contributions.

- Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit
plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
bank’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit
plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in
current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted
to determine its present value. Any unrecognized
past service costs and the fair value of any plan
assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield
at the reporting date on corporate bonds, that
have maturity dates approximating the terms of the
bank’s obligation and that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits are expected to be
paid.

The defined benefit obligation is recognised on the
basis of the report of qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. The bank recognizes
all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined
benefit plans immediately in other comprehensive
income and all expenses related to defined benefits
plans in employee benefit are expensed in profit
and loss account

Measurements of the net defined benefit liability
comprise actuarial gains and losses. The return
on plan assets (excluding interest income) and
the effect of the assets ceiling (if any excluding
interest) are recognized immediately in Other
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Comprehensive Income. The bank determines the
net interest expense (income) on the net defined
liability (assets) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual period
to the then net defined benefits liability (assets),
taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result
of contribution and benefits payments. Net interest
expenses and other expenses related to defined
benefit plans are recognized as personnel expenses
in Statement of profit and Loss.

The Group provides gratuity and leave encashment
as the defined benefits plans to its employees.

3.16. Leases

905

The Bank has applied NFRS 16 ‘Leases’ for accounting of
operating lease from Ist Shrawan 2078 replacing NAS 17
‘Leases’.
As a lessee
The Bank recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-
use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using
the straight-line method from the commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-
of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated
useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on
the same basis as those of property and equipment In
addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Bank’s incremental borrowing rate.
Generally, the Bank uses its cost of fund rate as the
discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the

lease liability comprise the following:

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments.

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date.

- Amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee; and

317
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The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from
a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the
Bank’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or if the Bank changes
its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

- Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Bank has elected not to recognize right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of
machinery that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets i.e. not be affected by
the size, nature, or circumstances of the lessee.

Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees
which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Company.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the
relevant functional currency at the rates prevailing at the
date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at
the closing exchange rate prevailing as at the reporting
date with the resulting foreign exchange differences, on
subsequent re-statement / settlement, recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as the gain/losses on the
revaluation of foreign currencies. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange rate
prevalent, at the date of initial recognition (in case they are
measured at historical cost) or at the date when the fair
value is determined (in case they are measured at fair value)
- the resulting foreign exchange difference, on subsequent
re-statement / settlement, recognised in the statement of
profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in the other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. An amount equivalent to the net exchange gain /loss
during the year is transferred to/other operating Income. The
realized gain has been presented under net trading income
and translation gain/(loss) has been presented under other
operating income.

Financial Guarantee and Loan Commitments

Financial Guarantees are contingent liabilities that arise
out of the contract that the bank might make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for loss that it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is
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due in accordance with terms of debt instrument Guarantee
liabilities being the off-balance items are disclosed if the
outflow of economic resources is probable.

Loan commitment is the commitment where the Bank has
confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on
behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future
guarantees, whether cancellable or not, or letters of credit
and the Bank has not made payments at the reporting date,
those instruments are included in these financial statements
as commitments.

Share Capital and Reserves

Equity is the residual interest in the total assets of the Bank
after deducting all of its liability. Shares are classified as
equity when the Bank has an unconditional right to avoid
delivery of cash or another financial asset, that is, when
the dividend and repayment of capital are at the sole and
absolute discretion of the Bank and there is no contractual
obligation whatsoever to that effect Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument
are deducted from the initial measurement of the equity
instruments considering the tax benefits achieved thereon.

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference shares
classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in
which they are declared.

Reserves are the allocation out of profit or retained earnings.
These are created as statutory requirement, accounting
standard requirement and bank’s own requirement

Earnings per Share (EPS) including diluted EPS
Bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS)
data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing
the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of
Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting both the profit and loss attributable to the
ordinary equity holders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The previous year EPS has been
restated for the issuance of bonus shares.

MukTINATH Bikas Bank

3.21.

3.22.

Segment Reporting

The Bank’s operating segments are organized and managed
separately through the respective department/business
managers according to the nature of products and services
provided with each segment
business unit These business units are reviewed by the
entity’s chief operating decision maker ie. Chief Executive
Officer of the Bank.

representing a strategic

The bank has identified three business segments based
on the nature of the business, transactions, products and
services namely: Banking Operation, Treasury Operation and
Digital Banking Operation as operating segment and the
segment report is set out in Notes 5.4.

Segment report include items directly attributable to
a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis. The income, expenses, assets & liabilities
that cannot be allocated to aforesaid segment or those
related to head office are unallocated are included in
Modern Banking. The unallocated items generally comprise
of head office assets, head office expenses, and tax assets
and liabilities.

The geographical segment has been identified on the basis
of the location of the branches in 7 different provinces of
the country.

Investment in Associates

For the purpose of consolidation, the bank applies NAS 28
- Investments in Associates. Associates are entities in which
the Bank has significant influence, but not control, over the
operating and financial policies. Generally, the Bank holds
more than 20%, but less than 50%, of their voting shares.

The investments in associates are recognized at cost in
separate financial statements while in consolidated financial
statements cost is increased (or decreased) each year by
the Bank’s share of the post-acquisition profit/(loss) using
equity method. The Bank ceases to recognise its share of
the losses of equity accounted associates when its share of
the net assets and amounts due from the entity have been
written off in full, unless it has a contractual or constructive
obligation to make good its share of the losses.
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Cash and Cash Equivalent Note 4.1

. Gowp | 0 Bak |
“
Cash in Hand 1,497,621,829 1,528,673,659 1,497,590,402 1,520,537,462
Balance with Bank and Financial Institutions 315,558,387 623,188,782 258,044,777 594,517,799
Money at Call and Short Notice 3,512,876,949 5,985,933,517 3,512,876,949 5,985,933,517
Other 27,620 7,721,035 27,620 21,035
Total 5,326,084,785 8,145,516,992 5,268,539,748 8,101,009,812

Cash and Cash Equivalent includes the cash, bank balance, money at call and treasury bill with maturity of three months or less from the date
of acquisition and is carried at amortised cost The cash and balance with BFls are maintained to manage the liquidity at the branch level. The
money at call and other cash and cash equivalents are the highly liquid investment made by the bank.

Cash at vault and cash transit are adequately secured for the physical loss. The foreign convertible currency held in hand and banks are subject
to price fluctuation due to market movement The Bank continuously monitors and manages the market risk involved in foreign currency thus
they are considered to be exposed to insignificant risks.

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank Note 4.2

. eow [ 000 Bamk
= D s oo s s ooom s
Statutory Balances with NRB 3,726,166,464 2,856,633,027 3,726,166,464 2,856,633,027
Securities Purchased under Resale Agreement = - - -
Other Deposit and Receivable from NRB 5,965,669 8,807,372 5,965,669 8,807,372
Total 3,732,132,133 2,865,440,399 3,732,132,133 2,865,440,399

Statutory Balance with Nepal Rastra Bank represent the cash balance that is required to be held as the Cash Reserve Ratio as per the regulatory
norms. The other deposit and receivable are the foreign convertible currency deposit and are subject to price fluctuation due to market movement

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions Note 4.3

Placement with domestic B/Fls -
Placement with foreign B/Fls - - - -
Less: Allowances for impairment - - - -

Total - - - -
Placement with Banks and Financial Institution includes the placements with domestic as well as foreign bank and financial institutions with
original maturities of more than three months from the acquisition date. The bank do not have any placement with banks and financial institutions
at the reporting date.

Derivative Financial Instruments Note 4.4

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3lst Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap - - - -
Currency Swap - - - -
Forward Exchange Contract - - - -
Others - - = -
Held for Risk Management

Interest Rate Swap - - - -
Currency Swap - - - -
Forward Exchange Contract - - - -
Other - - - -
Total - - = -
A significant part of the derivatives in the portfolio are related to servicing corporate clients in their risk management to hedge. Mostly, foreign

currency exposures. However, bank does not have any foreign currency exposures as on reporting date.
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Other Trading Assets Note 4.5

Treasury Bills -

Government Bonds - - - -
NRB Bonds - - - -
Domestic Corporate bonds -
Equities 48,618,603 63,796,298 - -
Other - - - -
Total 48,618,603 63,796,298 - -
Pledged = - = -
Non-pledged 48,618,603 63,796,298 - -
Other trading assets includes the non derivative financial assets that are primarily held of trading purpose. The other trading assets are
recognised at fair value through profit and loss and includes the securities, the Group, has acquired for generating the short term profit

Loans and Advances to BFls Note 4.6

. Gowp | Bk |
L wmm St e
Loans to Microfinance Institutions 2,569,756,164 2,762,665,599 2,569,756,164 2,762,665,599
Other - - - -
Less: Allowances for Impairment (33,316,893) (35,865,826) (33,316,893) (35,865,826)
Total 2,536,439,270 2,726,799,773 2,536,439,270 2,726,799,773

Loans and Advances to BFls has been carried at amortised cost and includes accrued interest receivable amounting NPR 6,918,223

4.6.1: Allowances for impairment

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Balance at Shrawan 1 35,865,826 45,743,946 35,865,826 45,743,946
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year 33,316,893 35,865,826 33,316,893 35,865,826
Recoveries/reversal (35,865,826) (45,7L3,946) (35,865,826) (45,743,946)
Amount written off - - - -
Other - - - -
Balance at Asar end 33,316,893 35,865,826 33,316,893 35,865,826
Loans and Advances to Customers Note 4.7
. Gowp | Bk |
T
Loan and advances measured at amortized cost 96,412,230,455 88,065,988,176 96,412,230,455 88,065,988,176
Less: Impairment allowances
Collective Impairment (1,203,346,742) (1,061,686,898) (1,203,346,742) (1,126,391,375)
Individual Impairment (751917,761) (192,352,863) (751,917,761) (127,648,385)
Net amount 94,456,965,952 86,811,948,415 94,456,965,952 86,811,948,415
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL - - - -
Total 94,456,965,952 86,811,948,415 94,456,965,952 86,811,948,415

The loans and advance to customers are carried at the amortised cost After the initial recognition, loans and advances are subsequently
measured at gross carrying amount using effective interest rate less the provision for impairment The loan administration charges charged from
the customer are considered immaterial thus are not considered while calculating the effective interest rate.

As per the carve out notice issued by ICAN, the Bank has measured impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of amount derived
as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS 39. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in ‘Impairment charge for loans and other losses’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

PSS
=
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4.7]: Analysis of Loan and Advances - By Product

Product

Term Loans 40,978,805,616 31,588,477,799 £40,978,805,616 31,588,477,799
Overdraft 5,250,440,515 16,920,281,739 5,250,440,515 16,920,281,739
Trust Receipt/Import Loans - - - -
Demand And Other Working Capital Loans 10,824,728,653 858,414,589 10,824,728,653 858,414,589
Personal Residential Loans 13,751,442,786 11,352,013,523 13,751,442,786 11,352,013,523
Real Estate Loans 6,628,267,354 5,757944,876 6,628,267,354 5,757,944,876
Margin Lending Loans 2,786,264,782 2,032,550,330 2,786,264,782 2,032,550,330
Hire Purchase Loans 2,71,892,497 3,594,966,589 2,71,892,497 3,594,966,589
Deprived Sector Loans 6,310,132,551 7,713,588,690 6,310,132,551 7,713,588,690
Bills Purchased = - = -
Staff Loans 766,148,251 756,044,200 766,148,251 756,044,200
Other 5,5634,432,890 7,077194,185 5,534,432,890 7,077,194,185
Sub total 95,542,555,893 87,651,476,520 95,542,555,893 87,651,476,520
Interest Receivable* 869,674,562 414,511,656 869,674,562 414,511,656
Grand total 96,412,230,455 88,065,988,176 96,412,230,455 88,065,988,176

Out of total interest receivable of NPR 869,674,562 the amount of NPR 159,047 pertains to staff’s loans and advances.

4.7.2: Analysis of Loan and Advances - By Currency

Nepalese Rupee
Indian Rupee
United State Dollar
Great Britain Pound
Euro

Japanese Yen
Chinese Yuan
Other

96,412,230,455

88,065,988,176

96,412,230,455

88,065,988,176

Total

96,412,230,455

88,065,988,176

96,412,230,455

88,065,988,176

4.7.3: Analysis of Loan and Advances - By Collateral

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3lst Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Secured
Movable/immovable assets 80,293,792,565 70,215,248,905 80,293,792,565 70,215,248,905
Gold and silver 643,077,069 539,038,177 643,077,069 539,038,177
Guarantee of domestic B/Fls = - - -
Government guarantee - - - -
Guarantee of international rated bank - - - -
Collateral of export document - - - -
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt 1,697,651,801 2925,523,937 1,697,651,801 2,925,523,937
Collateral of Government securities - - - -
Counter guarantee - - - -
Personal guarantee 5,634,074,247 6,896,946,124 5,634,074,247 6,896,946,124
Other collateral 8,143,634,774 7,489,231,032 8,143,634,774 7,489,231,032
Subtotal 96,412,230,455 88,065,988,176 96,412,230,455 88,065,988,176
Unsecured - - - -
Grant Total 96,412,230,455 88,065,988,176 96,412,230,455 88,065,988,176
993 @ BT BT S
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4.7.4: Allowances for Impairment

Specific allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1 127,648,385 152,375,048 127,648,385 152,375,048
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year 634,525,477 - 634,525,477 -
Recoveries/reversal during the year - (22,444,840) - (22,444,840)
Write-offs (10,256,102) (2,281,822) (10,256,102) (2,281,822)
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment - - = -
Other movement - - - -
Balance at Asar end 751,917,761 127,648,385 751,917,761 127,648,385
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 1,126,391,375 1,017,074,404 1,126,391,375 1,017,074,404
Impairment loss for the year: - -
Charge/(reversal) for the year 76,955,366 109,316,971 76,955,366 109,316,971
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment - - - -
Other movement - - - -
Balance at Asar end 1,203,346,742 1,126,391,375 1,203,346,742 1,126,391,375
Total allowances for impairment 1,955,264,503 1,254,039,761 1,955,264,503 1,254,039,761
Total allowances for impairment under NFRS 460,359,464 116,827,665 460,359,464 116,827,665
Investment Securities Note 4.8

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Investment securities measured at amortized cost 21,883,725,127 17,698,746,464 21,698,495,679 17,673,746,464
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 386,113,821 262,635,195 386,113,821 262,635,195
Total 22,269,838,948 17,961,381,659 22,084,609,500 17,936,381,659

Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost:

The investment made in government bonds and treasury bills with original maturities of more than three months from the acquisition date
measured at the amortised cost using the effective interest rate and are presented under this head. It includes accrued interest receivable of
NPR 395,021,178.81 on government securities. The details of the investment made in these securities are presented in Note 4.81.

Investment in Equity measured at FVYTOCI

The bank’s investment in shares and mutual fund are carried at fair value through other comprehensive income. The bonus share received is
accounted by increasing the number of shares without changing the cost of the shares. Investment in unquoted equity securities have been
valued at face value. Further, investment in Promoter shares has been valued at intrinsic value as of latest reporting dates. The details of the
investment made in these securities are presented in Note 4.8.3.

4.8.1: Investment securities measured at amortized cost

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Debt Securities 16,829,448 -

Government Bonds 15,628,916,674 15,881,660,338 15,628,916,674 15,881,660,338
Government Treasury Bills 6,042,210,621 1,769,815,132 6,042,210,621 1,769,815,132
Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds 27,368,384 22,270,993 27,368,384 22,270,993
Nepal Rastra Bank Deposits Instruments - - - -
Other 168,400,000 25,000,000 - -
Less: specific allowances for impairment - - - -
Total allowances for impairment under NFRS 21,883,725,127 17,698,746,464 21,698,495,679 17,673,746,464
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4.8.2: Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Equity instruments

Quoted Equity Securities 383,490,150 260,798,268 383,490,150 260,798,268
Unquoted Equity Securities 2,623,671 1,836,928 2,623,671 1,836,928
Total 386,113,821 262,635,195 386,113,821 262,635,195

4.8.3: Information relating to investment in equities

3lst Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3lst Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

In Quoted Equity Instruments:

Mountain Energy Nepal Limited
3482 equity shares of Rs 100 each

National Life Insurance Co. Ltd.
1824 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Neco Insurance Limited
3423 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Sanima Mai Hydropower Ltd.
20000 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Siddhartha Premier Insurance Limited
8233 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Chilime Hydropower Company
Limited
2000 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Life Insurance Co. Nepal
895 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Sanima GIC Insurance Limited*
100000 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited
600 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Api Power Company Limited
7,617 equity shares of Rs 100 each

CEDB Hydropower Development
Company Limited
2,485 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Himalayan Distillery Limited
800 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Rastriya Beema Company Limited*
100 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Arun Valley Hydropower
Development Co. Limited.
4860 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Sahas Urja Limited
3000 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Universal Power Company Limited*
1750 shares of Rs 100 each

Citizen Investment Trust
14894 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited

6400 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Shivam Cements Limited
4000 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd.
16565 equity shares of Rs 100 each

1%

2,859963.02

1,044,805.44

2,608,805.22

6,451,200

8,038,372

838,740

1,319,033

10,000,000

7930,64000

24132941

1,769,394

1,630,808

1,467,699

1,738,762

1,538,100

404,005

42,399,139

6,663,795

4,849,460

28,730,867

3,464,590

1,176,480

3,050,235

7,100,000

6,409,391

1,073,400

1,391,725

53,923,022

8,280,000

1,500,549

2,246,440

1,798,400

1609900

1,239,300

1,451,700

383,250

31,113,566

5,804,160

2,606,000

12,324,360

1,968,674

2,613,279

1,339,688

1,630,805

1,467,699

1,394,750

1,538,100

404,005

47,203,391

7061277

8,904,685

28,730,867

2,080,000

1,732,527

1,368,750

1,705,000

1,340,000

1,246,350

1,380,000

398,650

31,505,405

5,009,730

4,940,000

12,374,055

2859963

1,044,805

2,608,805

6,451,200

8,038,372

838,740

1,319,033

10,000,000

7930,640

2,413,294

1,769,394

1,630,808

1,467,699

1,738,762

1,538,100

404,005

42,399,139

6,663,795

4,849,460

28,730,867

3,464,590 - -
1,176,480 - -
3,050,235 - -
7,100,000 - -
6,409,391 - -
1,073,400 - -
1,391,725 - -
53,923,022 - -
8,280,000 1,968,674 2,080,000
1,500,549 2,613,279 1,732,527
2,246,440 1,339,688 1,368,750
1,798,400 1,630,805 1,705,000
1,609900 1,467,699 1,340,000
1,239,300 1,394,750 1,246,350
1,451,700 1,538,100 1,380,000
383,250 404,005 398,650
31,113,566 47203,391 31,505,405
5,804,160 7,061,277 5,009,730
2,606,000 8,904,685 4,940,000
12,324,360 28,730,867 12,374,055
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3i1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3i1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Nepal Reinsurance Company Limited 6118365 3,448,400 6,118,365 2,940,000 6,118,365 3,448,400 6,118,365 2,940,000

4893 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Asian Life Insurance Company Limited

1863 equity shares of Rs 100 each 908,231 1,388,121 1,322,188 717,500 908,231 1,388,121 1,322,188 717,500

Shikhar Insurance Company Limited

25722 equity shares of Rs 100 each 36202943 21735090 36,202,825 17,894,418 36202943 21735090 36,202,825 17,894,418

Bishal Bazar Company Limited*

500 shares of Rs 100 each 3,620,000 1,715,000 3,620,000 1,800,000 3,620,000 1,715,000 3,620,000 1,800,000
Premier Insurance Company Limited

7206 equity shares of Rs 100 each - - 8,042,040 4,150,656 - - 8,042,040 4,150,656
Soaltee Hotel Limited

10042 equity shares of Rs 100 each - - 2,686,881 2,033,505 - - 2,686,881 2,033,505
General Insurance Company Limited*

100000 equity shares of Rs. 100 each - - 10000000 14,863,000 - - 10000000 14,863,000
Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha

Limited - - 863,837 535,800 - - 863,837 535,800
575 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Sub-total 181,546,422 176,233,079 172,913,355 110,015,346 181,546,422 176,233,079 172,913,355 110,015,346

In Unquoted Equity Instruments:

Nepal Clearing House Ltd.
11355 equity shares of Rs. 100 each

Sub-total 300,000 2,623,671 300,000 1,836,928 300,000 2,623,671 300,000 1,836,928

300,000 2,623,671 300,000 1,836,928 300,000 2,623,671 300,000 1,836,928

In Mutual Funds:

NMB Sulav Investment Fund - 2

2000000 units of Rs 10 each 20000000 19:980,000 - - 20000000  19980,000 - -
Nabil Flexi Cap Fund

300000 units of Rs 10 each 3000000 3,000,000 - - 3000000 3000000 - -
Sanima Growth Fund

200000 units of Rs 10 each 2000000 1996000 - - 2000000 1998000 - -
Sunrise Focused Equiy Fund

300000 units of Rs 10 each 3000000 2,904,000 - - 3000000 2904000 - -
Prabhu Smart Fund

600000 units of Rs 10 each 6000000 540,000 - - 6000000 5940000 - -
Kumari Sunaulo Lagani Yojana 3000000 000,000 i ) e 2000000 ) )
300000 units of Rs 10 each a G2l VUL, 000,

NIBL Growth Fund

300000 units of Rs 10 each 3000000 3192000 - - 3000000 3192000 - -
Citizens Super 30 Mutual Fund 1,000,000 1,000,000 i ) 155 A ) )

100000 units of Rs 10 each

Siddhartha Investment Growth
Scheme - 3 2,500,000 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 2,500,000 - -
250000 units of Rs 10 each

RBB Mutual Fund 2

e TN 2 e 1000000 1,000,000 - - 1000000 1000000 - -
Shubha Laxmi Kosh

Spoona L Ko 5000000 5000000 - - 5000000 5000000 - -
Global IME Balanced Fund-1 5000000 4,670,000 - - 5000000 4670000 - -

500000 units of Rs 10 each

Global IME Samunnat Scheme-1

1010017 units of Rs 10 each 10,717,214 9,726,464 6,165,160 5,500,000 10,717,214 9,726,464 6,165,160 5,500,000
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31st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3i1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Kumari Equity Fund

279500 units of Rs 10 each 2,684,725 2,771,325 2,500,000 2,517,500 2,684,725 2,771,325 2,500,000 2,517,500

Laxmi Unnati Kosh

100000 units of Rs 10 each 1,000,000 939,000 1,000,000 956,000 1,000,000 939,000 1,000,000 956,000

Nabil Equity Fund

628651 units of Rs 10 each 6,714,367 6,041,336 6,484,953 6,000,100 6,714,367 6,041,336 6,484,953 6,000,100

NIC Asia Flexi CAP Fund
3000800 units of Rs 10 each

NMB Hybrid Fund L-1
841334 units of Rs 10 each

30,006,288 30518136  30,000000 30,000,000 30,006,288 30,518,136 30,000,000 30,000,000

9,312,447 9077994 8,431,409 8,399,328 9,312,447 9077994 8,431,409 8,399,328

Sunrise First Mutual Fund

175505 units of Rs 10 each 1,730,055 1,944,595 1,500,000 1,725,000 1,730,055 1,944,595 1,500,000 1,725,000

Citizens Mutual Fund -1
250000 units of Rs 10 each

NABIL BALANCED FUND-2
250000 units of Rs 10 each

NIBL Pragati Fund
600000 units of Rs 10 each

2,500,000 2,345,000 2,500,000 2,200,000 2,500,000 2,345,000 2,500,000 2,200,000

2,500,000 2,200,000 2,500,000 2,695,000 2,500,000 2,200,000 2,500,000 2,695,000

6,653,713 5,826,000 6,653,713 6,012,000 6,653,713 5,826,000 6,653,713 6,012,000

NIBL Sahabhagita

200000 units of Rs 10 each 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

NIBL Samriddhi Fund -2
1000000 units of Rs 10 each

NIC Asia Dynamic Debt Fund
200000 units of Rs 10 each

10,000,000 9110000 10,000,000 8,670,000 10,000,000 9110000 10,000,000 8,670,000

2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

NIC Asia Balanced Fund

150000 units of Rs 10 each 1,500,000 1,399,500 1,500,000 1,606,500 1,500,000 1,399,500 1,500,000 1,606,500

NIC Asia Growth Fund

100000 units of Rs 10 each 1,000,000 1,029,000 1,000,000 1,115,000 1,000,000 1,029,000 1,000,000 1,115,000

NIC Asia Select Fund 30
750000 units of Rs 10 each

Prabhu Select Fund
1468090 units of Rs 10 each

7,500,000 6,742,500 7,500,000 6,577,500 7,500,000 6,742,500 7,500,000 6,577,500

14,680,900 12992597  14,680900 14,008,345 14,680,900 12992,597 14,680,900 14,108,345

RBB Mutual Fund -1

1000000 units of Rs 10 each 10,000,000 8,080,000 4,363,400 3,486,357 10,000,000 8,080,000 4,363,400 3,486,357

Sunrise Bluechip Fund

250000 units of Rs 10 each 2,500,000 1962,500 2,500,000 2,185,000 2,500,000 1962,500 2,500,000 2,185,000

Siddhartha Equity Fund
150000 units of Rs 10 each

Siddhartha Investment Growth
Scheme I 10,000,000 9,030,000 10,000,000 9,790,000 10,000,000 9,030,000 10,000,000 9,790,000
1000000 units of Rs 10 each

1,500,000 1,414,500 1,500,000 1,482,000 1,500,000 1,414,500 1,500,000 1,482,000

Sanima Large Cap Fund

250000 units of Rs 10 each 2,500,000 2,230,000 2,500,000 2,330,000 2,500,000 2,230,000 2,500,000 2,330,000

Mega Mutual Fund -1

436340 units of Rs 10 each 4,363,400 3,486,357 10,000,000 9,270,000 4,363,400 3,486,357 10,000,000 9,270,000

Kumari Dhanabriddhi Yojana
2000000 units of Rs 10 each

Nabil Balanced Fund-3

20,000,000 20,080,000 20000000 20000000 20000000 20,080,000 20000000 20,000,000

16680 units of Rs 10 each 166,800 126,268 166,800 157,292 166,800 126,268 166,800 157,292
Sub-total 218,029910 207257071 157,446,335 150,782922 218,029910 207257071 157,446,335 150,782,922
Total 399,876,332 386,113,821 330,659,690 262635195 399,876,332 386,113,821 330,659,690 262,635,195

*Investment not yielding dividend in last 3 financial year.
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Current Tax Assets Note 49

Current tax assets
Current year income tax assets 630,074,513 617,447,575 623,465,552 615,006,672

Tax assets of prior periods - - -

Current tax liabilities

Current year income tax liabilities 577,318,355 601,168,292 575,288,765 598,534,225
Tax liabilities of prior periods - - -
Total 52,756,158 16,279,283 48,176,787 16,472,447

Current Tax Assets is the net of the advance tax plus Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) and the corporate income tax liability computed as per
the provision of the Income Tax Act, 2058.

Investment in Subsidiaries Note 4.10

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries =

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries - - 244,045,905 17,500,000
Total investment - - 244,045,905 117,500,000
Less: Impairment allowances - - - -
Net carrying amount - - 244,045,905 117,500,000

4.10.1: Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

3lst Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3i1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Total - - - - - - - -

£4.10.2: Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries

3lst Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3lst Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Muklinath Capital Limited : : - - 2LLOLS905 244045905 17500000 117500000

2,440,450 shares of Rs. 100 each
Total - - - - 244,045905 244045905 117,500,000 117,500,000

4.0.3: Information relating to subsidiaries of the Bank

Particulars % of ownership held by the Bank % of ownership held by the Bank

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Muktinath Capital Limited - - 60.26% 5802%

4.10.4: Non controlling interest of the subsidiaries

3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Equity interest held by NCI (%) 39.74% 4198%
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year 9,651,529 (6,833,458)
Accumulated balances of NCI as on Asar end 165,627,897 79,732,073
Dividend paid to NCI - 15,300,000
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Investment in Associates Note 4.11

Investment in quoted associates -

Investment in unquoted associates 134,553,273 76,371,125 155,550,000 100,000,000
Total Investment 134,553,273 76,371,125 155,550,000 100,000,000
Less: Impairment allowances - - - -
Net Carrying amount 134,553,273 76,371,125 155,550,000 100,000,000

Muktinath Krishi Company Limited is recongised as the Associates as the Bank holds 27.78% of the shares of the company and Board of
Directors comprise of two Bank’s nominees. Investment in associates is accounted for using the equity method as per NAS 28 “Investment in
Associates” considering the current year audited financial statement of the associates.

4.11.1: Investment in unquoted associates

3lst Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3lst Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Muktinath Krishi Company Limited

15,55,500 Shares of Rs. 100 each 155,550,000 134,553,273 100,000,000 76,371125  155550,000 155,550,000 100,000,000 100,000,000
(PY 10,00,000 shares)
Total 155,550,000 134,553,273 100,000,000 76,371,125 155,550,000 155,550,000 100,000,000 100,000,000

Muktinath Krishi Company Limited is recongised as the Associates as the Bank holds 27.78% of the shares of the company and Board of
Directors comprise of two Bank’s nominees. Investment in associates is accounted for using the equity method as per NAS 28 “Investment in
Associates” considering the current year audited financial statement of the associates.

4.11.3: Information relating to Associates of the Bank

Particulars % of ownership held by the Bank % of ownership held by the Bank

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Muktinath Krishi Company Limited 27.78% 27.78% 27.78% 27.78%

4.11.4: Equity Value of Associates

3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079
Muktinath Capital Limited

Muktinath Krishi Company Limited 134,553,273 76,371,125

Investment Property Note 4.12

Investment Properties measured at Fair Value

Balance as on Ist Shrawan - - - -
Addition/(Disposal) during the year = - - _
Net Changes in fair value during the year - - - -
Adjustment/Transfer - - - -

Net Amount - - - -

Investment Properties measured at Cost

Balance as on Ist Shrawan 84,166,532 33,115,680 51,050,852 -
Addition/(Disposal) during the year 205,029,930 51,050,852 205,029,930 51,050,852
Net Changes in fair value during the year - - - -
Adjustment/Transfer - - - -
Net Amount 289,196,462 84,166,532 256,080,782 51,050,852
Total 289,196,462 84,166,532 256,080,782 51,050,852

Refer notes 5.3 for the borrowerwise details of Investment Property.
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets Note 4.14
7
.

“ it A

Cost

As on Ist Shrawan - 21,120,977 - - 21,120,977
Addition during the year -
Acquisition 15,715,343 - - 15,715,343

Capitalization - - - -
Disposal during the year - -
Adjustment/Revaluation -
|Balance as on Asar end 2079 - 36,836,320 - - 36,836,320 |

Addition during the Year -
Acquisition 356,166 356,166

Capitalization -
Disposal during the year - -
Adjustment/Revaluation -
|Balance as on Asar end 2080 - 37,192,486 - - 37,192,486 |

Amortisation and Impairment

As on Ist Shrawan - 1,743,226 - - 11,743,226

Amortisation charge for the year - 4,186,402 - - 4,186,402

Impairment for the year - - - -

Disposals =

Adjustment -

|As on Asar end 2079 - 15,929,628 - - 15,929,628 |
Impairment for the year -

Amortisation charge for the year 6,053,074 6,053,074

Disposals - =

Adjustment -

|As on Asar end 2080 - 21,982,702 - - 21,982,702 |

Capital Work in Progress - - - - -
Net Book Value =

As on Asar end 2079 - 20,906,691 - - 20,906,691
As on Asar end 2080 - 15,209,783 - - 15,209,783
- eak
:

“ 315t Asar 2080
Cost

As on Ist Shrawan - 19,455,507 - - 19,455,507
Addition during the year -
Acquisition 15,362,783 15,362,783

Capitalization - - - -
Disposal during the year - -
Adjustment/Revaluation -

Balance as on Asar end 2079 - 34,818,290 - - 34,818,290
Addition during the Year -
Acquisition 200,000 200,000

Capitalization -
Disposal during the year - -
Adjustment/Revaluation -

Balance as on Asar end 2080 - 35,018,290 - - 35,018,290
Amortisation and Impairment

As on Ist Shrawan - 11,106,907 - 14,152,056
Amortisation charge for the year - 3,773,772 - 3,773,772
Impairment for the year - =
Disposals =
Adjustment =
As on Asar end 2079 - 14,880,680 - - 14,880,680
Impairment for the year =
Amortisation charge for the year 5,600,294 5,600,294
Disposals - =
Adjustment =
As on Asar end 2080 - 20,480,974 - - 20,480,974

Capital Work in Progress - - - - -
Net Book Value -
As on Asar end 2079 - 19,937,610 - 19,937,610
As on Asar end 2080 - 14,537,316 - - 14,537,316

PSS
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Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities Note 4.15

3l1st Asar 2080

Net Deferred
Tax (Assets)/
Liabilities

Net Deferred
Tax Assets/
(Liabilities)

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

Deferred Tax
Assets

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

Deferred Tax
Assets

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items

Loans and Advances to BFls
Loans and Advances to Customers
Investment Properties

Investment Securities 4,552,982 - 4,552,982 4,128,753 - 4,128,753
Property and Equipment 12,657,202 - 12,657,202 12,278,863 - 12,278,863
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 53,313,727 - 53,313,727 52,997,580 - 52,997,580
Lease Liabilities 269,314,726 259,314,076 10,000,650 269,314,726 259,403,073 9,911,653
Provisions 4,441,809 - 4,441,809 4,441,809 - 4,441,809
Other Temporary Differences 103,945 (924,666) 1,028,611 - (924,666) 924,666
Deferred tax on temporary 344,384,391 258,389,410 85,994,981 343161731 258,478,407 84,683,324
differences

Deferred tax on carry forward of B B B B B ~
unused tax losses

Deferred tax due to changes in tax B B B B B _
rate

Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) 85994 981 84 683324
as on year end of 2080 e T
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as 102,240,662 92,450,588
on Shrawan 01
Origination/(Reversal) during the (16,245,68) (7767264)
year /£H9, 767,
Deferrgd Ta>.< expense (income) (17370,062) (25,848,480)
recognized in profit or loss

Deferred Tax expense (income) 33 615,743 33 615,743
recognized in OCI /Ol ,015,
Deferred Tax expense (income) ) )
recognized directly in Equity

933 @ o bR S
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32nd Asar 2079

Deferred Tax
Assets

Net Deferred
Tax (Assets)/
Liabilities

Net Deferred
Tax Assets/
(Liabilities)

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

Deferred Tax
Assets

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items

Loans and Advances to BFls
Loans and Advances to Customers
Investment Properties

Investment Securities 29,945,945 - 29,945,945 20,407,348 - 20,407,348
Property and Equipment 15,782,768 - 15,782,768 15,674,315 - 15,674,315
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 51,427,830 - 51,427,830 51,182,438 - 51,182,438
Lease Liabilities 266,765,794 261,680,271 5,085,523 266,765,794 261,577,902 5,187,891
Provisions 1,051,809 - 1,051,809 1,051,809 - 1,051,809
Other Temporary Differences - 1,053,213 (1,053,213) - 1,053,213 (1,053,213)
Deferred tax on temporary 364974146 262,733,483 102,240,662 355,081,703 262,631,115 92,450,588
differences

Deferred tax on carry forward of ) ) ) ) )
unused tax losses

Deferred tax due to changes in tax B B B B B ~
rate

Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) 102,240,662 92,450,588
as on year end of 2079

Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as 55,407,419 55,018,004
on Shrawan 01

Origination/(Reversal) during the 16,833,243 37432584
year

Deferrgd Ta>'< expense (income) 20,417,532 11,016,873
recognized in profit or loss

Deferre_d Ta>‘< expense (income) 26,415,711 26,415,711
recognized in OCI

Deferred Tax expense (income) ) _
recognized directly in Equity

Other Assets Note 4.16

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Assets Held for Sale
Other Non-Banking Assets
Bills Receivable

Accounts Receivable 49,052,576 23,827,067 2,910,420 3,741,000
Accrued Income 62,250 2,278,950 62,250 2,278,950
Prepayments And Deposit 340,656,362 96,381,739 340,139,959 94,182,746
Income Tax Deposit - - - -
Deferred Employee Expenditure 412,599,691 229,532,706 412,599,691 229,532,706
Other Assets 54,153,867 20,964,046 53,882,856 19,679,968
Total 856,524,747 372,984,507 809,595,176 349,415,369
Due to Banks and Financial Institutions Note 4.17

Money Market Deposits
Interbank Borrowing

Other Deposits from BFls 1,999,547,189 3,750,284,110 1,999,547,189 3,750,284,110
Settlement and Clearing Accounts - - = -
Other Deposits from BFls = - - -
Total 1,999,547,189 3,750,284,110 1,999,547,189 3,750,284,110

Other deposits from BFls includes the balance

PSS
=

MukTINATH Bikas Bank
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4.17.1 Nature wise segregation of other deposits from BFls

Current Deposits 20,289,040 137,698,720 20,289,040 137,698,720
Fixed Deposits 365,266,745 575,000,000 365,266,745 575,000,000
Call Deposits 1,613,991,404 3,037,585,390 1,613,991,404 3,037,585,390
Accrued Interest Payable - - - -
Total 1,999,547,189 3,750,284,110 1,999,547,189 3,750,284,110
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank Note 4.18
“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Refinance from NRB 958,975,088 958,975,088

Standing Liquidity Facility - - - -
Lender of Last Resort facility from NRB - - - -
Securities sold under repurchase agreements - - - -
Other Payable to NRB 215,874,848 74,004,468 215,874,848 74,004,468
Total 215,874,848 1,032,979,556 215,874,848 1,032,979,556
The amount payable to NRB shall include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity facility, lender of last resort, sale and repurchase
agreements, deposit from NRB etc.

The other payable from the NRB includes the amount received in line with the tripartite agreement between KfW Development Bank, Germany,
Nepal Rastra Bank, and Muktinath Bikas Bank under Sustainable Economic Development in Rural and Semi-Urban Areas- MSME Finance Phase
Il (SEDRA 11). This facility is received for refinancing sustainable ad target group-oriented loans to micro, small and medium-sized enterprises in
rural and semi-urban areas.

Derivative Financial Instruments Note 4.19

Held for Trading
Interest Rate Swap - - - -
Currency Swap - - - -
Forward Exchange Contracts - - - -
Others - - - -
Held for Risk Management
Interest Rate Swap = - - -
Currency Swap - - - -
Forward Exchange Contracts. - - - -
Others = - - _
Total - - = -
The bank does not have any derivative financial instrument as on reporting date.

9R¥ @ajﬁmwmramaﬁs
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Deposits from Customers Note 4.20

Institutions Customers:

Term Deposits 19,442,289,786 21,060,232,135 19,497,289,786 21,060,232,135
Call Deposits 5,928,572,487 5,959,320,371 6,012,423,649 5,959,320,371
Current Deposits 1,466,596,381 1,354,471,954 1,480,437,241 1,361,756,073
Other 155,077,884 1,572,237,411 155,077,884 1,572,237,411
Individual Customers:

Term Deposits 61,787,234,154 51,149,749,252 61,787,234,154 51,149,749,252
Saving Deposits 26,824,683,288 23,182,986,062 26,824,683,288 23,182,986,062
Current Deposits 666,953,388 368,459,055 666,953,388 368,459,055
Other 25,771,564 20,331,904 25,771,564 20,331,904
Total 116,297,178,932 104,667,788,144 116,449,870,954 104,675,072,263

Deposits from customer is carried at amortised cost thus includes the accrued interest payable on the deposits.

4.20.1: Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers

Nepalese Rupee 116,295,589,837 104,667,050,535 116,448,281,859 104,674,334,654
Indian Rupee = - = -
United State Dollar 1,589,095 737,608 1,589,095 737,608

Great Britain Pound = - - -
Euro - - - -
Japanese Yen = - - -
Chinese Yuan - - = -
Other - - - -
Total 116,297,178,932 104,667,788,144 116,449,870,954 104,675,072,263
The foreign currency deposit is converted to NPR equivalent by using closing rate of the reporting data as per NAS 21.

4.20.2: Nature wise segregation of other deposits from customers

Current Deposits 1,994,698,607 1,722,931,009 2,147,390,629 1,730,215,128
Saving Deposits 26,887,035,181 24,640,067,379 26,887,035,181 24,640,067,379
Fixed Deposits 80,797,845,014 71,728,018,274 80,797,845,014 71,728,018,274
Call Deposits 6,012,427,321 5,959,843,169 6,012,427,321 5,959,843,169
Margin Deposits 118,493,884 89,255,053 118,493,884 89,255,053
Accrued Interest Payable 486,678,925 527,673,260 486,678,925 527,673,260.42
Total 116,297,178,932 104,667,788,144 116,449,870,954 104,675,072,263
Borrowings Note 4.21

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government 18,750,000 25,016,438 18,750,000 25,016,438
Other Institutions - - - -
Other - - - -
Sub total 18,750,000 25,016,438 18,750,000 25,016,438

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Multilateral Development Banks - - - -
Other Institutions - - - -
Sub total - - = -
Total 18,750,000 25,016,438 18,750,000 25,016,438

PSS
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The borrowing includes the amount received from Nepal Government, Ministry of Youth and Sports as the refinancing for the concessional
rate loan to be provided by the Bank to deprived community engaged in agriculture, animal husbandry, small and micro enterprises and other
income generating activates. The outstanding amount as on year end amounts to 18,750,000.

Provisions Note 4.22

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Provisions for redundancy -
Provision for restructuring = - _ _

Pending legal issues and tax litigation 14,806,030 3,506,030 14,806,030 3,506,030
Onerous contracts - - - -
Other - - - -
Total 14,806,030 3,506,030 14,806,030 3,506,030

The provisions have been made on account of litigation disclosed in Note 4.28.5.

4.22.1: Movement in provision

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Balance at 1st Shrawn 3,506,030 3,732,070 3,506,030 3,732,070
Provisions made during the year 11,300,000 - 11,300,000 -
Provisions used during the year - - - -
Provisions reversed during the year - (226,040) - (226,040)
Unwind of discount - - - -
Balance at Asar end 14,806,030 3,506,030 14,806,030 3,506,030
Other Liabilities Note 4.23

 _ Gow | 2 Bak |
L wmm St e e
Liability for employees Defined Benefit Obligations 111,959,353 131,367,890 11,959,353 131,367,890
Liability for long-service leave 49,671,029 18,538,358 48,089,351 17,332,554
Short-term employee benefits 702,907 689,109 589,202 426,405
Bills Payable 1,503,768 1,539,036 1,503,768 1,539,036
Creditors and Accruals 116,078,635 24,177,811 9,609,297 14,050,154

Interest payable on Deposit = - - -
Interest payable on Borrowing - - = -
Liabilities on Deferred Grant Income = - - _

Unpaid Dividend 1,124,484 17,722,663 1,124,484 17,722,663
Liabilities under Finance Lease - - - -
Employee Bonus Payable 205,421,968 214,996,929 201,577,487 214,996,929
Other - - - -
- Customer Protection Fund (Refer Notes) 554,339,630 555,198,603 554,339,630 555,198,603
- TDS Payable 98,598,986 102,722,046 98,351,655 102,002,712
- Lease Liability under NFRS 16 905,399,368 897,543,126 897,715,753 889,219,312
- Lease Liability under Operating Lease (NAS 17) - - - -
- Interest Payable on Debenture 55,726,898 54,995,504 55,726,898 54,995,504
- Others 330,410,946 289,785,089 321,795,057 274,677,897
Total 2,430,937,973 2,309,276,165 2,302,381,934 2,273,529,660

Liabilities relating to employees benefits like liabilities for defined benefit obligation gratuity and pension fund, liabilities for long-service leave,
short-term employee benefits etc, Creditors and accruals, unearned income, unpaid dividend etc. are presented under this account head of
other liabilities.
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4.231: Defined benefit obligations

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Present value of unfunded obligations 160,048,704 148,700,444 160,048,704 148,700,444
Present value of funded obligations 16,609,896 21,907,681 16,609,896 21,907,681
Total present value of obligations 176,658,600 170,608,125 176,658,600 170,608,125
Fair value of plan assets 16,609,896 21,907,681 16,609,896 21,907,681
Present value of net obligations 160,048,704 148,700,444 160,048,704 148,700,444
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 160,048,704 148,700,444 160,048,704 148,700,444

4,23.2: Plan assets

Plan assets comprise :

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3lst Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Equity securities -

Government bonds - - - -
Bank deposit - - - -
Other 16,609,896 21,907,681 16,609,896 21,907,681
Total 16,609,896 21,907,681 16,609,896 21,907,681

Actual return on plan assets

4.23.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 170,608,125 123,962,522 170,608,125 123,962,522
Actuarial losses (40,588,494) 2,747,685 (40,588,494) 2,747,685
Benefits paid by the plan (16,560,516) (6,965,619) (16,560,516) (6,965,619)
Current service costs and interest 63,199,485 50,863,537 63,199,485 50,863,537
Defined benefit obligations at Asar end 176,658,600 170,608,125 176,658,600 170,608,125

4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 21,907,681 23,885,092 21,907,681 23,885,092
Adjustment to Opening Fund 3,492,417 1,261,119 3,492,417 1,261,19
Contributions paid into the plan -

Benefits paid during the year (14,651,972) (5,081,01) (14,651,972) (5,081,01)
Actuarial (losses) gains -

Expected return on plan assets 5,861,770 1,842,481 5,861,770 1,842,481
Fair value of plan assets at Asar end 16,609,896 21,907,681 16,609,896 21,907,681

4.23.5: Amount recognised in profit or loss

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Current service costs 48,133,072 40,020,363 48,133,072 40,020,363
Interest on obligation 13,226,616 8,808,661 13,226,616 8,808,661
Expected return on plan assets 11,053,146 (10,740,775) 11,053,146 (10,740,775)
Total 72,412,834 38,088,249 72,412,834 38,088,249

4.23.6: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gain)/loss (55,663,614) 13,680,493 (55,663,614) 13,680,493
Total (55,663,614) 13,680,493 (55,663,614) 13,680,493
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4.23.7: Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate 9.50% 900% 9.50% 900%
Expected return on plan asset 900% 9.00% 900% 9.00%
Future salary increase 4.00% 5.00% 4.00% 5.00%
Withdrawal rate 200% 3.00% 200% 3.00%

4.23.8 Disclosure of Customer Protection Fund

Customer Protection Fund is established with a aim to provide the relief and work for the welfare to the customers availing non collateral

based lending facilities from the Bank under the microfinance model with following salient features:

i.  The clients may make the voluntary payment of 1% of the credit facilities availed to avail the facility of the this fund.

ii. The objective of the fund is :
- to provide the financial relief to the customers in the inevitable circumstances from waiving off the loans to providing the financial support;
- to improve the socio economic status of the customers with the skills development program and
- to conduct various financial literacy programs to the backward community.”

ii. The separate committee under the coordination of the Chief Executive Officer has been formed for the operation and monitoring of the
fund.

The movement to/from the fund during the year is as follows:

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Opening Balance of the fund 555,198,603 505,285,230 555,198,603 505,285,230
Add: Contribution from the fund 22,889,652 89,939,561 22,889,652 89,939,561
Less: Withdrawal from the fund (23,748,625) (40,026,188) (23,748,625) (40,026,188)
Closing Balance of the fund 554,339,630 555,198,603 554,339,630 555,198,603
Debt Securities Issued Note 4.24

Debt securities issued designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Debt securities issued at amortised cost 1,246,917,782 1,246,489,292 1,246,917,782 1,246,489,291
Total 1,246,917,782 1,246,489,292 1,246,917,782 1,246,489,291
Subordinated Liabilities Note 4.25

Redeemable preference shares

Irredeemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities
component)

Other - - - -
Total - - - -
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Share Capital Note 4.26
Ordinary shares 6,420,900,273 5,657,180,857 6,420,900,273 5,657,180,857

Convertible preference shares (equity component only) - - - -

Irredeemable preference shares (equity component
only)

Perpetual debt (equity component only) = - _ _
Total 6,420,900,273 5,657,180,857 6,420,900,273 5,657,180,857

4.26.1: Ordinary shares

Authorized Capital
80,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each (Previous year : 80,000,000 Ordinary Shares 8,000,000,000 8,000,000,000
of 100 each)

Issued capital
64,209,003 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each (Previous year : 56,571,809 Ordinary Shares of 6,420,900,273 5,657,180,857
100 each)

Subscribed and paid up capital
64,209,003 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each (Previous year : 56,571,809 Ordinary Shares of 6,420,900,273 5,657,180,857
100 each)

Total 6,420,900,273 5,657,180,857

The reconciliation of the number of share outstanding and the amount of share capital as at 3lst Asar 2080 and 32nd Asar 2079 is as follows:

3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079
[ Nombers | Amount | Nombers | Amount |

Number/ Amount of shares outstanding at the 56,571,809 5,657180,857 48,115,508 4,811,550,803
beginning of the period

Add: Bonus shares issued 7,637,194 763,719,416 8,456,301 845,630,054
Add: Right share issued - - - -
Add/(Less): Others adjustments - - - _
Number/ Amount of share at the end of the period 64,209,003 6,420,900,273 56,571,809 5,657,180,857

4.26.2: Ordinary share ownership

3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079
[ Wombers | Amout | Nombers | Amount |

Nepal Government = - - -

Domestic ownership

"A" Class Licensed Institutions - - - -
Other Licensed Institutions = - - -

Other Institutions 1.81% 115,926,850 2.69% 152,170,745
Public 9819% 6,304,973,423 97.31% 5,505,010,112
Other = - = -
Foreign Ownership = - = -
Total 100.00% 6,420,900,273 100.00% 5,657,180,857
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4.26.3: List of principle shareholders holding 0.5% or more share of the total share of the bank

S S

1. Krishna Man Shrestha 1,367,864 213%
2. Tulasi Ram Dhakal 1,337,202 2.08%
3. Min Prasad Gurung 1,291,542 201%
4. Bharat Raj Dhakal 1,003,139 1.56%
5. Jagat Bandhu Aryal 897,910 1.40%
6. Khim Prakash Malla 891,448 1.39%
7. Hari Bahadur Gurung 883,950 1.38%
8. Gobind Gurung 863,057 1.34%
9. Narayan Kumar Shrestha 826,464 1.29%
10. Shanta Sharma 740,247 115%
11. Khagendra Raj Regmi 712,484 1M%
12. Dil Kumari Regmi 629,641 098%
13. Sumit Kumar Agarwal 621,586 097%
14. Sashikant Agrawal 599,438 093%
15. Prakash Prasad Shrestha 583,679 091%
16. Gajendra Man Shrestha 582,764 091%
17. Bharat Prasad Lamsal 472,263 0.74%
18. Sandhya Poudel 453,721 0.71%
19. Naresh Kumar Sharma Pokhrel 424,826 0.66%
20. Sher Bahadur Rana 405,098 0.63%
21. Rama Devi Sharma 405,031 0.63%
22. Rudra Bahadur B K 402,029 0.63%
23. Bimala Sharma Pokhrel 381,606 0.59%
24. Shiba Kumar Adhikari 366,098 0.57%
25. Narayan Prasad Sharma 359,661 0.56%
26. Sitaram Kaphle 342,848 0.53%
27. Punya Prasad Pokharel 322,771 0.50%
Reserves Note 4.27

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Statutory General Reserve 1,481,105,767 1,229,606,288 1,477,131,305 1,227,88,288
Exchange Equilisation Reserve 2,613,952 1,916,932 2,613,952 1,916,932
Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve 14,055,925 14,066,185 13,814,579 13,955,383
Capital Redemption Reserve - - - -
Regulatory Reserve 665,751,880 342,160,759 665,751,880 342,160,759
Investment Adjustment Reserve 50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000
Capital Reserve - - - -
Assets Revaluation Reserve - - - -
Fair Value Reserve (9,076,882) (42,710,590) (9,633,757) (47,617146)
Dividend Equalisation Reserve - - - -
Debenture Redemption Reserve - - - -
Actuarial Gain 51,418,912 12,454,382 51,418,912 12,454,382
Special Reserve - - - -
Staff Skill Development Fund 17,123,114 13,829,392 17,123,114 13,829,392
Other Reserve - - - -
Total 2,272,992,668 1,621,323,346 2,268,219,984 1,613,887,989
The brief description of the reserves are as follows:

930 @ Jfepoe R b



Overview | Leadership Insight | Sustainability Review | Statutory Reports  Financial Reports

Statutory General Reserve

Pursuant to Section 44 of the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073 banks and financial institutions are required to allocate 20% of the net
profits of each fiscal year to the general reserve until the reserve is twice the paid up capital and thereafter minimum 10% of the net profit as
this reserve being made pursuant to the statute, is not available for distribution. In line with the legal requirement the Bank has appropriated
following amount in the Statutory General Reserves:

T picuiars T Sist Asar 2080 | 32nd Asar 2079

Opening Balance of Statutory General Reserves 1,227,188,288 955,252,321
20% of Net Profit appropriated as per BAFIA 249,943,017 271,935,967
Closing Balance of Statutory General Reserves 1,477,131,305 1,227,188,288

Exchange Equilisation Reserve

Section 45 of the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073 requires every banks and financial institutions to set aside the 25% of the of the
revaluation profits earned as a result of fluctuations in the exchange rates of foreign currencies, other than the Indian currency. Following is
the movement of Exchange Equilisation Reserves:

Opening Balance of Exchange Equilisation Reserve 1,916,932 1,916,932
25% of revaluation gain appropriated as per BAFIA 697,020 -
Closing Balance of Exchange Equilisation Reserve 2,613,952 1,916,932

Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve

NRB Directive 6 requires BFls to create Corporate Social Responsibility Fund and appropriate an amount equivalent to 1% of net profit annually
into this fund for covering expenditure related to CSR activities in the subsequent year. Accordingly, the bank has allocated the amount of NPR
12,482,263 to corporate social responsibility reserves for this year.

e particotars it Asar 2080 | 32nd Asar 2079

Opening Balance of Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve 13,955,383 1,564,351
1% of net profit appropriated as per NRB Unified Directives 12,482,263 13,418,053
Less: CSR expenses during the year (12,623,067) (11,027,021
Closing Balance of Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve 13,814,579 13,955,383

Regulatory Reserve

Regulatory Reserve is the statutory reserve made as per Directive No. 4 of the Nepal Rastra Bank. The regulatory reserve comprise of the
interest income recognized against interest receivables, difference in loan loss provision as per NRB directive and impairment on loan and
advance as per NFRS, amount equal to deferred tax assets, actuarial loss recognized in other comprehensive income, difference in provision
on investment securities as per Directive No.8 and as per NFRS, amount of the non banking assets recognised and other adjustment occurred
as a result of NFRS conversion.

he movement in Regulatory Reserves is as follows:

T eamcas | SistAsar2080 | 32nd Asar2079 | 3istAsar 2078

Opening Balance of Regulatory Reserves 342,160,759 119,980,792 86,274,161
Interest Receivable on Loans and Advances 240,172,918 104,968,201 38,779,869
Change in Fair value on equity instrument (37,983,389) 47617146 (14,790,600)
Deferred Tax Assets (7,767,264) 37,432,584 9,717,362
Non Banking Assets 129,168,856 32,162,036 -
Closing Balance of Regulatory Reserves 665,751,880 342,160,759 119,980,792

The component wise break-up of the regulatory reserve is as follows:

Interest Fair Value Loss Deferred Tax Total
Receivable recognised in OCI Assets

Balance as on Asar 3lst, 2076 21,876,083 53,867,602 39,066,937 114,810,622
Addition during the year FY 2076-77 4,306,836 (39,077,002) 6,233,705 - (28,536,461)
Balance as on Asar 3lst, 2077 26,182,919 14,790,600 45,300,643 - 86,274,161
Addition during the year FY 2077-78 38,779,869 (14,790,600) 9,717,362 - 33,706,631
Balance as on Asar 3lst, 2078 64,962,788 - 55,018,004 - 119,980,792
Addition during the year FY 2078-79 104,968,201 47,617,146 37,432,584 32,162,036 222,179,967
Balance as on Asar 32nd, 2079 169,930,989 47,617,146 92,450,588 32,162,036 342,160,759
Addition during the year FY 2079-80 240,172,918 (37,983,389) (7,767,264) 129,168,856 323,591,121
Balance as on Asar 3lst, 2080 410,103,907 9,633,757 84,683,324 161,330,892 665,751,880
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Investment Adjustment Reserve

Directive No. 8 of Nepal Rastra Bank’s Unified Directives requires, the Bank has to create the investment reserve of an amount equivalent to the
investment in the equity shares if the shares remained unquoted for 3 years from the date of investment Accordingly, the bank had created
the reserve amounting to NPR 50,000,000 against the investment in following company.

[ Pamcvls | 3lstAsar2080 | 32nd Asar2079 |
Muktinath Krishi Company Limited 50,000,000 50,000,000
Closing Balance of Investment Adjustment Reserves 50,000,000 50,000,000

Fair Value Reserve
The fair value reserve is created as the part of the compliance of NFRS which comprise of the amount resulting from the fair value recognition
of the investment securities which are carried through the other comprehensive income.

T hicotars [ Sist Asar 2080 | 320 Asar 2079

Opening Balance of Fair Value Reserve (47,617146) 12,952,121
Appropriations during the year 37,983,389 (60,569,267)
Closing Balance of Fair Value Reserves (9,633,757) (47,617,146)

Fair value reserves comprise of :

T hnicas TSt Asar 2000 | 32nd Asar 2079

Fair Value Reserve created as a result of change in fair value of instruments routed through OCI (9,633,757) (47,617146)
Fair Value Reserve created as a result of the application of equity method of accounting of B B
Associates

Closing Balance of Fair Value Reserves (9,633,757) (47,617,146)

Debenture Redemption Reserve

The bank has issued debentures worth Rs. 1.25 billion having the maturity of 7 years during financial year 2078/79. NRB Directive 16 requires
the bank to create the Debenture redemption reserve on all the years till maturity of debenture on proportionate basis except for the year
of issue and redemption of debenture (ie. from FY 2079/80 to FY 2084/85). However, the Directive offers the relaxation in this regard with
banks and financial institutions meeting the minimum capital requirement and having maturity period of debenture more than 5 years may not
allocate the amount to debenture redemption reserve for the distribution of bonus shares for particular fiscal year and needs to allocate the
amount to other remaining years proportionately. Accordingly, the bank has not allocated the amount to debenture redemption reserve for FY
2079/80 for the purpose of distribution of bonus shares.

| Pamcvls | 3lstAsar2080 | 32nd Asar2079 |
Opening Balance of Debenture Redemption Reserve - -

Appropriations during the year - -

Closing Balance of Debenture Redemption Reserve = -

Actuarial Gain
Actuarial Gain reserve is created for the actuarial valuation of gratuity benefit to the employee of the Bank.

T i 3ist Asar 2080 | 52nd Asar 2079

Opening Balance of Actuarial Gain 12,454,382 22,030,727
Actuarial gain/(loss) on employee's defined benefit obligation valuation 38,964,530 (9,576,345)
Closing Balance of Actuarial Gain 51,418,912 12,454,382

Staff Skill Development Fund

Nepal Rastra Bank Directive No. 6, requires the Bank and Financial Institutions to spend at least 3% of the previous year’s salary and allowance
for the training and skill development of the employees. Any unspent amount shall be appropriated to the reserves and carrried forward till
the year it is spent.

T hicars 1 Sist Asar 2080 | 32nd Asar 2079

Opening Balance of Staff Skill Development Fund 13,829,392 -
Less: Expense made from this reserves = -
Add: This year additions to reserves 3,293,722 13,829,392
Closing Balance of Staff Skill Development Fund 17123114 13,829,392
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Contingent liabilities and commitments Note 4.28
Contingent liabilities 917,985,627 766,131,276 917,985,627 766,131,276
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 2,425,708,747 3,322,229,327 2,425,708,747 3,322,229,327

Capital commitment = - - _
Lease Commitment - - - -
Litigation - - = -
Total 3,343,694,374 4,088,360,603 3,343,694,374 4,088,360,603

4.28.1: Contingent Liabilities

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3lst Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Acceptance and documentary credit 226,989,890 103,511,603 226,989,890 103,511,603
Bills for collection - -

Forward exchange contracts - -

Guarantees 690,995,737 662,619,673 690,995,737 662,619,673
Underwriting commitment - - - -
Other commitments - - - -
Total 917,985,627 766,131,276 917,985,627 766,131,276

4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Undisbursed amount of loans 787,050,000 1,143,632,800 787,050,000 1,143,632,800
Undrawn limits of overdrafts 1,638,658,747 2,178,596,527 1,638,658,747 2,178,596,527
Undrawn limits of credit cards - - - -
Undrawn limits of letter of credit - - - -
Undrawn limits of guarantee = - - -
Total 2,425,708,747 3,322,229,327 2,425,708,747 3,322,229,327

4.28.3: Capital commitments
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial statements is as follows:

3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Capital commitments in relation to Property and
Equipment

Approved and contracted for = - - -
Approved but not contracted for - - - -
Sub total = - - -
Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for - - - -
Approved but not contracted for - - - _
Sub total = - - -
Total - - = -
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4.28.4: Disclosure pursuant to NFRS 16, Leases

The Bank recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at

cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date. The

right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method .

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted

the Bank’s incremental borrowing rate.

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3lst Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

a. Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows

Upto one Year 180,388,073 149,863,236 180,388,073 149,863,236
More than one year to five Years 916,483,332 691,834,096 916,483,332 691,834,096
More than five years 366,474,537 593,253,974 366,474,537 593,253,974
Total Undiscounted cash flows as at year end 1,463,345,942 1,434,951,305 1,463,345,942 1,434,951,305
b. Lease Liabilities included in the statement of financial position
Current 153,765,502 142,068,037 152,070,728 142,068,037
Non current 751,633,867 755,475,090 745,645,024 747,151,275
Total Lease Liability 905,399,368 897,543,126 897,715,753 889,219,312
c. Reconciliation of Right To Use Assets
Right To Use Assets
Right of Use as of st Shrawan 880,591,384 692,922,001 871,926,341 692,922,001
Addition during the year 107,931,313 269,660,775 107,140,757 258,270,372
Disposal during the year (28,815,338) - (28,815,338) -
Depreciation (87,643,491) (81,991,392) (85,574,851) (79,266,031)
Closing Balance 872,063,868 880,591,384 864,676,909 871,926,341
d. Reconcilation of Lease Liabilites
Opening Lease Liabilities 1st Shrawan 897,543,126 692,922,001 889,219,312 692,922,001
Addition during the year 107,140,757 272,890,016 107,140,757 258,270,372
Disposal during the year (26,437,804) - (26,437,804) -
Interest 93,325,392 88,233,135 92,336,600 87,890,175
Closing Balance 905,399,368 897,543,126 897,715,753 889,219,312
e. Discount Rate 9.52% 9.24% 9.52% 9.24%
f. Actual Rental Paid during the year 195,483,455 170,373,956 193,060,171 167,186,076

4.28.5: Litigation

1. The Bank has filed the case against the suspended staffs for the misappropriation of the bank’s funds by creating the fictitious borrowers.

The district court has given its decision in favor of the bank and ordered the defendants to return the misappropriated funds. The defendants

have further appealed to the High Court against the decision of the district court which is again decided in favour of bank. The provision of
NPR 3,732,070 has been made for the possible liabilities at the initial year of the dispute itself and NPR 3,506,030 has remained outstanding

as on year end.

2. The Bank has initiated the legal proceedings against the non recoverability of the amount transferred erronrously to the defedants accounts

maintained with other Banks of NPR 11.3 Million due to technical error in electronic cheque clearing system at the Kathmandu District Court
In this regards, the Kathmandu District Court has issued an order to defendent bank to withhold the amount until the final decision. The case
is now sub-judice under Kathmandu District Court Considering the contingency in the recoverability of amount under litigation, the Bank

has made provision of NPR 11.3 million.

The Bank does not have any other litigation except the cases in ordinary course of business. The Bank does not anticipate any financial liability

in these pending lawsuits.

93¥

@qmmﬁamr%ms



Overview | Leadership Insight | Sustainability Review | Statutory Reports  Financial Reports

Interest Income Note 4.29

| Gow |  Bank |
el e T | S | SR
Cash and Cash Equivalent 89,395,974 80,391,745 89,395,974 80,391,745
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - 395,452 - 395,452
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Loan and Advances to Bank and Financial Institutions 451,065,849 308,783,185 451,065,849 308,783,185
Loans and Advances to Customers 13,560,869,165 10,352,658,711 13,560,869,165 10,352,658, 711
Investment Securities 1,268,310,157 731,365,106 1,238,590,118 726,619,467
Loan and advances to Staff 135,315,207 94,367,738 135,315,207 94,367,738
Other Interest Income - - - -
Total 15,504,956,352 11,567,961,936 15,475,236,312 11,563,216,298

Refer Note 13(a) for interest income recognition criterion.

Interest Expense Note 4.30

. Gow | 2 Bak |
L wmm et
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 32,510,776 10,454,332 32,510,776 10,454,332
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 84,150,056 98,481,567 84,150,056 98,481,567
Deposits from Customers 1,043,675,458 7.932,103,346 1,051,331,204 7.932,604,412
Borrowing 1,438,718 16,438 1,438,718 16,438
Debt Securities Issued 109,374,998 103,989,998 109,374,998 103,989,998
Subordinated Liabilities - - - -
Other Charges - Interest under NFRS 16 93,325,392 87,890,175 92,336,600 87,890,175
Total 1,364,475,399 8,232,935,856 1,371,142,353 8,233,436,921
Fees and Commission Income Note 4.31

 _ Gow | 2 Bank |
T
Loan Administration Fees 351,592,480 331,647,191 351,592,480 331,647,191
Service Fees 161,939,019 92,465,556 161,939,019 92,465,556
Consortium Fees - 3,665,299 - 3,665,299
Commitment Fees 390,401 463,499 390,401 4L63,499
DD/TT/Swift Fees 38,000 12312 38,000 12312
Credit Card/ATM lIssuance and Renewal Fees 32,354,568 23,633,436 32,354,568 23,633,436
Prepayment and Swap Fees 8,993,149 11,282,089 8,993,149 11,282,089
Investment Banking Fees 789,051 797120 = -
Asset Management Fees 2,997,049 12,613,124 - -
Brokerage Fees - - - -
Remittance Fees 19,912,560 18,639,935 19,912,560 18,639,935
Commission on Letter Of Credit 1,923,289 852994 1,923,289 852,994
Commission on Guarantee Contracts Issued 10,918,006 1,328,185 10,918,006 11,328,185
Commission on Share Underwriting/Issue 4,699,729 - - -
Locker Rental 669,000 611,250 669,000 611,250
Other Fees and Commission Income 30,931,918 26,100,324 4,164,971 2,780,718
Total 628,148,220 534,223,114 592,895,444 497,493,264
Fees and Commission Expense Note 4.32

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

ATM Management Fees -

VISA/Master Card Fees 59,645,914 40,415,663 59,645,914 40,415,663
Guarantee Commission - - - -
Brokerage - - - -
DD/TT/Swift Fees - - - -
Remittance Fees and Commission - - - -
Other Fees and Commission Expense 12,320,233 15,734,055 7,552,705 9,535,866
Total 71,966,148 56,149,718 67,198,619 49,951,529
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Net Trading Income

Note 4.33

Changes in Fair Value of Trading Assets 30,381,224 (32,193,946)

Gain/loss on Disposal of Trading Assets (27,024,759) 3,671,906 - -
Interest Income on Trading Assets - - - -
Dividend Income on Trading Assets - - = -
Gain/loss Foreign Exchange Translation 11,340,911 8,444,762 11,340,911 8,444,762
Other = - -
Total 14,697,376 (20,077,278) 11,340,911 8,444,762

Trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realized interests, dividends and foreign
exchange differences as well as unrealized changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities are presented under this head.

Other Operating Income

Note 4.34

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Foreign Exchange Revaluation Gain 2,788,080 (499,069) 2,788,080 (499,069)
Gain/loss on sale of Investment Securities - 9,678,379 - 9,678,379
Fair value gain/loss on Investment Properties - - - -
Dividend on Equity Instruments 4,476,490 12,191,363 4,244,224 31,593,805
Gain/loss on sale of Property and Equipment 751,758 1,085,637 794,682 1,085,637
Gain/loss on sale of Investment Property - - - -
Operating Lease Income = - = -
Gain/loss on sale of Gold and Silver - - - -
Other Operating Income - -
- Share of Profit of Associates 2,075,272 (28,535,431) - -
- Provision written back - 226,040 - 226,040
- Grant Income 695,738 1,750,000 695,738 1,750,000
- Other Income 2,897,041 3,043,708 2,897,041 3,043,708
Total 13,684,380 (1,059,372) 11,419,765 46,878,501
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses Note 4.35

3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Impairment charge/(reversal) on Loan and Advances
to BFls

Impairment charge/(reversal) on Loan and Advances to
Customers

(2,548,932)

701,224,742

Impairment charge/(reversal) on Financial Investment -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on Placement with BFIs -

Impairment charge/(reversal) on Property and
Equipment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on Goodwill and
Intangible assets

Impairment charge/(reversal) on Investment Properties -

(9,878,120) (2,548,932) (9,878,120)

84,590,308 701,224,742 84,590,308

Total 698,675,809

74,712,188 698,675,809 74,712,188

13%
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Personnel Expenses

Note 4.36

Salary 541,242,256 451,930,404 534,038,809 4L44,234,087
Allowances 482,320,363 377,130,740 474,569,845 371,039,631
Gratuity Expense 38,333,245 36,811,622 38,333,245 36,811,622
Provident Fund 47,693,996 38,985,482 46,224,507 37,690,988
Uniform - 16,220,500 - 16,220,500
Training & Development Expense 21,542,099 8,555,676 21,164,489 8,201,596
Leave Encashment 33,517,864 15,931,120 32,754,204 15,242,647
Medical = - = -
Insurance 9,178,432 6,045,367 8,785,478 6,045,367
Employees Incentive 771,000 5,673,003 771,000 5,673,003
Cash-Settled Share-Based Payments - - - -
Pension Expense - - - -
Finance Expense under NFRS 78,669,083 58,260,039 78,669,083 58,260,039
Other Expenses related to Staff 1,702,400 2,369,300 1,702,400 2,369,300
Subtotal 1,254,970,738 1,017913,253 1,237,013,061 1,001,788,780
Employees Bonus 204,990,777 214,565,739 201,146,297 214,565,739
Grand Total 1,459,961,516 1,232,478,992 1,438,159,358 1,216,354,519

Employees Bonus is provided at 10% of net profit before bonus and taxes as per the requirement of Bonus Act, 2030. Expenses covered
under this head include employees’ salary, allowances, pension, gratuity, contribution to provident fund, training expenses, uniform expenses,
insurance, staff bonus, finance expense under NFRS, cash-settled share-based payments etc. Staff Loans are fair valued using the market rates.

Other Operating Expenses

Note 4.37

3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3lst Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Directors' Fee 2,139,500 1,870,000 1,729,500 1,585,000
Directors' Expense 1,387,289 1,395,530 1,362,327 1,373,311
Auditors' Remuneration 1,650,720 1,623,330 1,500,000 1,500,000
Other Audit Related Expense - 13,035 - 13,035
Professional and Legal Expense 2,592,493 1,423,128 2,574,413 1,423,128
Office Administration Expense 403,979,694 361,902,453 399,050,738 360,054,582
Operating Lease Expense 28,517,058 17,665,800 28,517,058 17,322,840
Operating Expense of Investment Properties - - - -
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 12,657,780 11,083,176 12,623,067 11,027,021
Onerous Lease Provisions - - - -
Other 16,534,638 6,684,647 13,677,534 -
Total 469,459,172 403,661,099 461,034,637 394,298,916

All operating expense other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized and presented under this head. The expenses covered

under this account head includes office administration expense, other operating and overhead expense, directors’ emoluments, remuneration

and non audit fee paid to auditors, professional and legal expense, branch closure cost expense, redundancy cost expense, expense of

restructuring, impairment of non financial assets, expense of corporate social responsibility, onerous lease provisions etc. Further,the details of

the office administration expenses is presented in Note 4.371.
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Office Administration Expense Note 4.371
| Gow |  Bank |
el e T | S | SR
Water & Electricity 34,288,837 30,710,033 33,744,377 30,710,033
Repair & Maintenance
(@) Building 7,550 18,110 7,550 18,110
(b) Vehicle 7,423,352 768,724 7,423,352 768,724
(c) Office Equipment & Furniture 4,832,052 3,955,796 4,453,330 3,955,796
(d) Computer & Accessories 367,601 337095 367,601 337095
(e) Others 3,120,542 2,898,742 3,120,542 2,476,893
Insurance 8,834,424 5,271,543 8,790,127 5,271,543
Postage, Telex, Telephone & Fax 55,723,684 51,962,210 55,314,998 51,962,210
Printing, Stationery & Small Purchases 35,276,311 32,418,505 35,061,171 32,418,505
Newspaper, Books and Journals 60,870 36,572 38,470 36,572
Advertisement 9,835,552 9,090,751 9,676,494 9,090,751
Donation - - - -
Security Expenses 65,233,602 53,911,763 65,024,752 53,650,523
Deposit and Loan Insurance Guarantee Premium 44,294,764 45,335,103 44,294,764 45,335,103
Travel Allowance & Expenses 14,486,709 11,332,887 14,404,152 11,332,887
Entertainment 177,343 - - -
Annual/Special General Meeting Expenses 3,039,406 2,585,414 2,988,293 2,585,414
Covid Protection and Prevention - - - -
Others:
Business Promotion & Sponsorship 25,130,889 22,867,995 24,821,317 22,867,995
Cleaning & Sanitation 4,543,525 3,758,976 4,543,525 3,758,976
Fuel & Gas 24,277,262 17,044,309 24,170,926 17,044,309
Official Program Expenses 4,876,115 6,131,958 4,876,115 6,131,958
Renewal & Registration 13,287,669 13,328,256 12,184,527 13,212,421
Small Office Utilities 3,897,710 5,113,005 3,897,710 5,113,005
Software Subscription & Support 25,668,932 19,882,442 24,768,722 18,840,997
Share Related Expenses 2,755,856 3,654,876 2,755,856 3,654,876
Tea, Coffee and Snacks 11,219,301 9,447,504 11,219,301 9,447,504
Plant & Property Written Off 746,361 3,156,559 746,361 3,156,559
Other Administrative Expenses 573,473 483,326 356,405 475,825
Total 403,979,694 361,902,453 399,050,738 360,054,582
Depreciation and Amortisation Note 4.38
. Gow | 0 Bak |
= N s i sooom s acran
Depreciation on Property and Equipment 145,982,720 135,958,872 142,933,735 130,865,474
Depreciation on Right To Use Assets 87,664,120 79,266,031 85,574,851 79,266,031
Depreciation on Investment Property - - - -
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 6,053,074 4,186,402 5,600,294 3,773,772
Total 239,699,913 219,411,305 234,108,880 213,905,277
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Non Operating Income Note 4.39

Recovery of loan written off -
Other income - - - -

Total - - = -
Non Operating Expenses Note 4.40
Loan Written off 10,256,102 2,281,822 10,256,102 2,281,822

Redundancy Provision = - - -
Expense of Restructuring - - - -
Other Expense = - - -

Total 10,256,102 2,281,822 10,256,102 2,281,822
Income Tax Expenses Note 4.41
Current tax expense 589,775,311 602,937,303 587,938,885 600,303,236
Current year 577,219,308 601,168,292 575,288,765 598,534,225
Adjustments for prior years 12,556,003 1,769,011 12,650,120 1,769,011
Deferred tax expense (17,370,062) (20,417,532) (25,848,480) (1,016,873)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (17,370,062) (20,417,532) (25,848,480) (1,016,873)

Changes in tax rate - - - -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - - - -
Total income tax expense 572,405,249 582,519,771 562,090,406 589,286,363

4.41.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

“ 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Profit before tax 1,846,992,269 1,859,417,420 1,810,316,674 1,931,091,650
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 554,097,680.67 557,825,226 543,095,002 579,327,495
:Aa()j(d‘;:?;oeszect of expenses that are not deductible for 23,424,549 46,492,810 31,804,423 25,768,618
Less: Tax effect on exempt income 940,985 3,248,861 248,724 6,561,887
Add/less: Tax effect on other items 638,064 9917 638,064 -
Total income tax expense 577,219,308 601,168,292 575,288,765 598,534,225
Effective tax rate 31.25% 32.33% 31.78% 3099%
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Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the year ended 3lst Asar 2080 (As per NRB Regulation)

Figures in NPR

3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Net profit or (loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss 1,248,226,268 1,341,805,287
Realized gain on sale of equity instruments classified under OCI 1,488,816 3,602,397
Appropriations:
a. General Reserve (249,943,017) (271,935,967)
b. Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Fund (697,020) -
c. Capital Redemption Reserve - -
d. Corporate Social Responsibility Fund (12,482,263) (13,418,053)
e. Staff Skill Development Fund (3,293,722) (13,829,392)
f. Other

- Investment Adjustment Reserve - (50,000,000)

- CSR Expenses routed through Statement of Profit & Loss 12,623,067 11,027,021
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 995,922,130 1,007,251,294
Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (240,172,918) (104,968,201)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) = -
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) = -
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+) (129,168,856) (32,162,036)
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) 7,767,264 (37,432,584)
f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) - -
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) - -
h. Actuarial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) - -
i. Other (+/-)
- Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments 37,983,389 (47,617,146)
Net profit for the year ended available for distribution 672,331,008 785,071,327
Opening Retained Earnings as on Shrawan 12079 805,522,228 896,315,651
Adjustment (+/-) - 14,272,149
Distribution: (803,915,175) (890,136,899)
Bonus shares Issued (763,719,416) (845,630,054)
Cash dividend paid (40,195,760) (44,506,845)
Total Distributable profit or (loss) as on Year end 673,938,061 805,522,228
Annualised Distributable Profit/Loss per share 10.47 13.88
9¥0 @ Jfepoe R b
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Risk Management

The robust risk management capabilities is imperative in order
to achieve an effective risk management framework and
contain the risks associated with the business, a fully functional
Risk Management Committee is responsible for identifying
reporting, controlling and managing credit risk, operational risk,
market risk & liquidity risk. The Risk Management Committee
oversees global, macro, micro and departmental level risk that
arise out of daily business operation as well as on periodic
basis and are put to the oversight of Senior Management, Risk
Management Committee and the Board committee to discuss
the reports thereon and issue instructions as appropriate.

Risk Management Committee:

The Risk Management Committee is an independent committee
of the Directors that has, as its sole and exclusive function,
responsibility for the risk management policies of the Bank and
oversight of implementation of risk management framework of
Bank. The committee assists the Board of Directors in fulfilling
its oversight responsibilities with regard to risk appetite that
the Bank is able and willing to assume in its exposures and
business activities, risk management, compliance framework,
and governance structure that supports it It periodically
reviews the risk management process to ensure its integrity,
accuracy, and reasonableness. It also reviews whether the
internal control and risk management system is adequate or
not to ensure well-ordered and prudent conduct of business.
The committee reviews the overall risk management structure
and monitor the effectiveness of the risk management system.

Risk Governance

The Bank implemented policies and procedures to mitigate
the risk at enterprises level arising to the Bank and has trained
risk culture among the employees by establishing ownership
mentality, capacity building programs, well defined job
responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical culture. The Risk
Management Committee is responsible for the establishment
of, and compliance with, policies relating to Operation risk &
Credit risk.

The Bank’s risk governance structure is such that the
responsibility for maintaining risk within the Banks risk blanket is
dropped down from the Board to the appropriate functional,
client business, senior management and committees. The
Board has set policies and procedures of risk identification,
risk evaluation, risk mitigation, and control/ monitoring in line
with NRB directives, and has effectively implemented the same
at the Bank. The effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control
system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its committees,
senior management, and internal audit committee.

Credit Risk

Credit risk management strategies include effectively managing
the risk of financial losses arising out of booking an exposure on
counterparty and also ensuring independence of the credit risk
function from the origination, trading and sales function. Credit

MukTINATH Bikas Bank

Note 5

risk is managed through a defined framework which sets out
policies, procedures and standards covering the measurement
and management of credit risk. Clear segregation of duties
has been established between transaction originator in the
business and the approvers in the risk function.

Credit Risk Mitigation (CRM)

The Bank follows the well defined procedures to manage and

mitigate the credit related risk at the various level:

» The credit applications are initially reviewed at the branch
where the branch assess the credit worthiness of the
proposed borrower and the quality of the security offered.

» As a second level of defense the Business Development
Officers have been appointed at the regional level to
independently oversee whether the proceeding of the
loan approval, creditworthiness and collateral offered
complies with the Bank’s and central Bank’s norms.

» The credit proposal, if exceeds the prescribed threshold
are then reviewed by the Risk Management Department
which evaluates the underlying risk of the proposal and
decides whether the proposal is within the risk appetite of
the Bank. This department is independent of the business
unit and reports directly to the Board level committee,
Risk Management Committee.

»  After due review and identification of the underlying risk by
the Integrated Risk Management Department, the proposal
passes through different approving authorities depending
upon the type of the proposal(funded or unfunded), level
of underlying risk and amount of the proposal.

» Once the proposal is approved by the prescribed
approving authority, the execution of security documents,
post approval proceeding are initiated and completed at
the branch level. The Credit Administration Department
reviews the security documents to ensure compliance with
the Bank’s and Central Bank’s norms before disbursement
of the credit facilities.

» As a measure to mitigate the risk after disbursal, the
Bank monitors and reviews on quarterly to annual
basis depending upon the type of the facilities. The
separate Enforcement Unit under the Risk Management
Department has been stabilised to check the post
disbursal compliances. The level of risk and early warning
signals (EWS) are identified on every review and necessary
actions are taken if required.

» The internal audit function of the Bank on the periodic basis
independently observes the compliance and the status of
the borrowers and recommends the management with
the best practices that has to be adopted. The internal
audit department directly reports the Audit Committee
which is a board level committee.

» On the portfolio level, the Bank’s risk management
strategies includes diversifying the borrowing pool, risk
based pricing, establishing the suitable exposure limits
for borrowers and group of borrowers to ensure the risk
exposure is under the risk appetite expressed by the Risk
Management Policy of the Bank.

%9
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Operational Risk

Operational risk stems from the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems
or from external events. Operational risk is recognized as
a separate risk category which the Bank manages through
Risk Management Policy approved by the Board. The primary
oversight body for the management of operational risk is the
Risk Management Committee. The Bank has also in place
the dedicated Integrated Risk Management Department for
monitoring and reporting the operational risk faced by the
Bank. The Bank have “Operational Risk Monitoring & Reporting
Framework 2079” to identify and mitigate the operational risk
at Bank as a whole, implementing control points and creating
measures for any hostile circumstances.

Risk management generally encompasses the process of
identifying risks to the Bank, measuring exposures to those
risks, ensuring that the risk is below the risk appetite of the
Bank and monitoring program is in place, monitoring risk
exposures and corresponding capital needs on an ongoing
basis, taking steps to control or mitigate risk exposures and
reporting to Risk Management Committee and the Board
on the Bank’s risk exposures and capital positions. Internal
controls are typically embedded in a Bank’s day-to-day
business and are designed to ensure, to the extent possible,
that Bank activities are efficient and effective, information is
reliable, timely and complete and the Bank is compliant with
applicable laws and regulation.

[ Risk | Potential Risk Risk Mitigants

Overriding the implemented standard

Internal Process Risks :
operating procedures and processes.

The Bank has implemented the well defined set of polices and
processes for the execution of the every type of task in branch
and department The compliance to the same is examined by
Internal Audit Department on an ongoing basis.

Untrained or underdeveloped staffs

Poor HR management

Fraud and Misappropriations

People Risks
Absenteeism and late attendance

Attrition Risk

Ensure employees are well trained on the basis of their
functions.

Ensuring right and adequate staff at the right place.
Regular internal check and reconciliations.

Checked through the implementation of bio metric attendance
device and human resource software.

Formal process are in place for succession planning. Further
the various staffs facilities have been extended to the
employees to retain, motivate and reduce the attrition risks.

Physical Threats

. Cyber Attacks
"Information System
Risks" Infrastructure failures

Loss of Data

CCTV, access door, panic alarm is placed in various places.
Use of firewall, antivirus, other software and regular monitoring.

Separate disaster recovery site (near site and far site) has been
set up.

Data back up is kept on regular basis.

The Bank has in place the “Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Policy” which set outs the contingency and alternative plans in
case system failure due to external and internal events and ensure minimum down time. The Bank’s systems is regularly updated to

keep pace with information requirement

Compliance Risks Breach of laws and regulations.

To ensure the compliance with all regulatory requirements
including reporting impact of regulatory changes separate
Compliance Department has been set up.

Theft or Destruction of Bank’s Assets
External Events
Natural Disaster Risk

Physical security of the Bank is under 24 hour surveillance both
vide CCTV and security guard.

“Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Policy” are followed in
case of the unfavourable circumstances due to natural disasters.

Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk to a Bank resulting from movements
in market prices, in particular, changes in interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, and equity and commodity prices. The main
market risk factors include interest rates, foreign exchange rates
and other market benchmarks. The main objective is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
levels in line with the Bank’s risk appetite. The risks subject to
this requirement are as follows:

The Bank has developed a comprehensive framework for
market risk management which includes limits, KRIs and risk
management tools. Moreover, the Bank conducts stress testing
and sensitivity analysis to review the Bank’s performance under

various stress conditions. The Treasury Department and the
Chief Financial Officer monitors the asset and liability positions
under the supervision of ALCO.

The Bank recognizes market risk as the possibility for loss
of earnings or economic value to the Bank caused due to
adverse changes in the market level of interest rates or prices
of securities (equity), foreign exchange rates and volatilities of
those prices. Bank has an Asset Liability Management Committee
(ALCO) which meets periodically to discuss product pricing
for deposits and advances and maturity profiles of assets and
liabilities, articulating interest rate, view of Bank, funding policy,
transfer pricing policy and balance sheet management
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that a company or Bank may be
unable to meet short term financial demands. This usually
occurs due to the inability to convert a security or hard
asset to cash without a loss of capital and/or income in the
process. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the
Bank might be unable to meet its payment obligations when
they fall due, as a result of mismatches in the timing of the
cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances. Such
scenarios could occur when funding needed for liquid asset
positions is not available to the Bank on acceptable terms.

The Bank measures the liquidity by the various financial ratios.
The favourable liquidity ratios are the outcome of the effective

liquidity management policies of the Bank. The Bank monitor
these ratios closely and determine whether the liquidity
management strategies and policies adopted by are appropriate
in circumstances. These ratios also function to fill the void
that may exists between the changing economic environment
vis-a-vis the Bank liquidity management policies. The liquidity
risk is daily monitored by the Treasury Department and
the liquidity ratio is also maintained above the regulatory
requirement

The following table depicts the maturity profile of the assets
and liabilities as at the closing date which is closely monitored
to determine the liquidity level:

[ Particulars | 190 Days | 91-180 Days | 181-270 Days | 271-365 Days| Over 1 Year | Total Amount

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalent 5,268,540 - - - - 5,268,540
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 3,732,132 - - - - 3,732,132
Loans and Advances 9,477,843 5,511,480 5,513,431 3,m,526 73,379,125 96,993,405
Investment Securities - - - - 22,084,609 22,084,609
Current Tax Assets - - - 48,177 - 48,177
Investment in Subsidiaries - - - - 244,046 244,046
Investment in Associates - - - - 155,550 155,550
Investment Property 256,081 256,081
Property and Equipment - - - - 1,919,851 1,919,851
Goodwill and Intangible Assets - - - - 14,537 14,537
Deferred Tax Assets - - - - 84,683 84,683
Other Assets 2,910 62 - - 806,623 809,595
Total Assets 18,481,426 5,511,542 5,513,431 3,159,703 98,945,106 131,611,207
Liabilities
Due to BFls 1,999,547 - - - - 1,999,547
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - - 215,875 215,875
Deposits from Customers 27,553,032 19,149,705 14,936,629 14,963,480 39,847,025 116,449,871
Provisions - - - - 14,806 14,806
Debt Securities Issued - - - - 1,246,918 1,246,918
Other Liabilities 109,465 201,146 - - 2,010,521 2,321,132
Total Liabilities 29,662,044 19,350,851 14,936,629 14,963,480 43,335,145 122,248,149
Net Assets (11,180,618)  (13,839,309) (9,423,198) (11,803,778) 55,609,961 9,363,058
Cumulative Assets (11,180,618)  (25,019927) (34,443,125) (46,246,902) 9,363,058 0.00

Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is the risk of potential harm to the Bank’s
name and reputation as well as the risk to earnings, capital, or
liquidiity resulting from any associations, actions, or inactions that
may be viewed as inappropriate, unethical, or at inconsistent
with the Bank’s values and principles. The Operational Risk
Management unit of the Bank evaluates reputational risks using
data obtained through procedures like loss event and near-
miss identification, peer group comparison, and assessments
of issues like employee conduct and competency, customer
service and grievances. The Integrated Risk Management
Department keeps track of reputational risk using a risk
framework and mitigating measures. The Bank makes an
ongoing effort to maintain and raise the calibre of its services.

MukTINATH Bikas Bank

Money Laundering and Terrorism Financing Risk
Both money laundering and terrorism financing can have
serious consequences for banks and financial institutions,
including reputational damage, financial losses, and legal and
regulatory penalties.

To mitigate these risks, the Bank has implemented a range
of measures, such as customer due diligence, transaction
monitoring, and suspicious activity reporting. These measures
are designed to identify and prevent the flow of illicit funds
through the financial system. The Bank also have the robust
and effective programs in place to identify and prevent money
laundering and terrorism financing. This includes ongoing
training for employees, regular assessments of the effectiveness
of their programs, and the development of strong relationships
with regulatory authorities and law enforcement agencies.
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Capltal Management

The Bank manages its capital to meet regulatory norms and current and future business needs considering the risks in its business.
For the purpose of effective management of the capital the bank has formulated and implemented the Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Procedure (ICAAP) which encompasses policies, processes and methodologies to determine the adequate level of
capitalisation for the Bank to meet regulatory norms and current and future business needs under normal as well and under stress
scenarios. The board of directors on the frequent interval monitor the capital adequacy position and the risk weighted assets and
take a necessary steps as appropriate.

The Bank capital comprise of the fully paid equity shares, statutory reserves and other reserves. During the reporting period the
bank has not raised the capital through the hybrid capital instrument

Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

Tier 1 Capital and a breakdown of its components is as follows: Rs. in ‘000
e B e el
Paid up Equity Share Capital 6,420,900 5,657,181
i.  Share Premium -
ii.  Statutory General Reserves 1,477,131 1,227,188
iv.  Retained Earnings 673,938 805,522

v.  Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(loss) - -
vi. Capital Redemption Reserve = -
vii.  Capital Adjustment Reserve = -
viii. ~ Dividend Equalization Reserves - -
ix. ~ Other Free Reserve - -
X.  Less: Goodwill - -
xi. Less: Deferred Tax Assets = -
xii.  Less: Intangible Assets (14,537) (19,938)
xii. ~ Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions - -
xiv.  Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests (399,596) (217,500)
xV. Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits = -
xvi.  Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments - -
xvii.  Less: Reciprocal crossholdings - -
xviii. Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized = -
xix. Less: Other Deductions - -
Total Tier 1 Capital 8,157,836 7,452,454

Tier 2 Capital and a breakdown of its components is as follows: Rs. in ‘000

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

i. Subordinated Term Debt 1,250,000 1,250,000
ii. Hybrid Capital Instruments - -
iv. General loan loss provision 1,409,296 1,200,657
v. Exchange Equalization Reserve 2,614 1917
vi. Investment Adjustment Reserve 50,000 50,000

vii. Asset Revaluation Reserve = -
vii. ~ Other Reserves - -
Total Tier 2 Capital 2,711,910 2,502,574

Details of Subordinated Term Debt including Hybrid Capital Instruments.

Following is the details of subordinate term debts raised by the Bank: Rs. in ‘000
o A Outstanding Amount recokned

i. 875% Muktinath Debenture/ Rinpatra 2084/85 7 Years 1250000 1250000
Total Tier 2 Capital 1250000 1250000

The Bank has not raised any funds through the hybrid capital instruments.
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Deductions from Capital: Rs. in ‘000
[sn =  partulars | 3ist Asar 2080 | 32nd Asar 2079 |
i. Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests* 399,596 217,500
ii. Intangible Assets 14,537 19,938
Total Deductions 414,133 237,438

* Investment made in Bank’s subsidiary, Muktinath Capital Limited and Bank’s associate company, Muktinath Krishi Company Limited.

Total Qualifying Capital: Rs. in ‘000
(SN~ paticols | 3istAsar2080 | 32nd Asar 2079 |
i. Core Capital (Tier 1) 8,157,836 7,452,454
ii. Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 2,711,910 2,502,574
Total Capital Fund 10,869,746 9,955,027
Capital Adequacy Ratio: Rs. in ‘000
D T
i. 875% Muktinath Debenture/ Rinpatra 2084/85 6.00% 8.84% 8.83%
i. Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 10.00% 1N.77% 1.80%

Risk Exposure
Risk Weighted Exposures and Capital Adequacy Table Rs. in ‘000

[N s 1 it Asar 2080 | 32nd Asar 2079

1. Risk Exposures:

Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 87,024,959 79,790,403

Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 5,257,813 4,582,400

Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 34,158 13,774

Risk Weighted Exposures under Credit, Operational and Market Risk 92,316,929 84,386,577

Adjustments under Pillar Il - -

Total Risk Weighted Exposures 92,316,929 84,386,577

2. Capital Fund

Core Capital (Tier 1) 8,157,836 7,452,454

Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 2,711,910 2,502,574

Total Capital Fund 10,869,746 9,955,027
3. Capital Adequacy Ratios

Total Core Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 8.84% 8.83%

Total Capital Fund to Total Risk Weighted Exposures N77% 11.80%

Risk weighted exposures under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk Rs. in ‘000

N . Y T M

Claims on Government and Central Bank
i. Claims on Other Official Entities - -

ii. Claims on Banks 1,265,067 1,862,897
iv. Claims on Domestic Corporates and Securities Firms 15,127,089 13,269,363
v. Claims on Regulatory Retail Portfolio 35,092,569 32,193,566
vi. Claims Secured by Residential Properties 8,682,711 723,297
vii. Claims Secured by Commercial Real Estate L40,714 1,590,240
vii. Past Due Claims 2,127,362 460,765
ix. High Risk Claims 20,245,747 20,124,252
x. Other Assets 3,111,375 2,098,373
xi. Off Balance Sheet Items 932,323 851,104
Total Credit Risk 87,024,959 79,573,857
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3. Types of eligible credit risk mitigants used and the benefits availed under CRM:

Rs. in ‘000

T S ok sing e 207

Deposits with Banks
i. Deposits with other banks/financial institutions
ii. Gold
iv. Government and NRB Securities
v. Guarantee of Government of Nepal
vi. Securities/Guarantee of other Sovereigns
vii. Guarantee of Domestic Banks
vii. Guarantee of Multilateral Development Banks
ix. Guarantee of Foreign Banks

1,697,652 2,922,671

643,077 534,451

Total Credit Risk Mitigants

2,340,729

3,457,122

4. Amount of Performing and Non Performing Loans & Advances and Provisions

Rs. in ‘000

3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

A. Performing Loans

i. Good Loans 91,292,721 1,157,786 87,533,342 1,104,702.96
ii. Restructured Loans classified as Good 1,577,552 78,878 1,151,085 57,554.24
jii. Watchlist 3,515,140 172,632 778,170 38,399.51
Sub -Total 96,385,412 1,409,296 89,462,596 1,200,657
B. Non-performing Loans
i. Restructure/Reschedule Loan - - - -
ii. Substandard Loan 260,548.20 64,587.60 127,330 31,833
ii. Doubtful Loan 348,78313 171,672.29 13,872 6,876
iv. Loss Loan 344,502.06 343,025.65 50,540 50,540
Sub -Total 953,833.39 579,285.54 191,741.85 89,248.88
Total 97,339,246 1,988,581 89,654,338 1,289,906
5. Non Performing Assets Ratios: in %

(x| = pcutars T Sist Asar 2080 | _32nd Asar 2079

As per Revised Assets Classification norms of NRB

i. Gross NPA to Gross Loan and Advances 098% 0.21%
i. Net NPA to Net Loan and Advances 0.38% 0%
6. Movement on Provision for Good and Non Performation Loans: Rs. in ‘000

[SN] " “partculas | 3istAsar 2080 | 32nd Asar 2079 | Change in %

For loan classifies as Good

i. Pass 1,236,664 1,162,257 6.40%
ii. Watchlist 172,632 38,400 34957%
For loan classifies as NPA
i. Substandard Loan 64,588 31,833 102.90%
i. Doubtful Loan 171,672 6,876 2396.55%
ii. Loss Loan 343,026 50,540 578.72%
Total 1,988,581 1,289,906 54.16%
7.  Write off of Loans Rs. in ‘000

[ T partcutars | it Asar 2080 | 32nd Asar 2079

i. Write Off of Loans

10,256,102 2,281,822

Total Credit Risk Mitigants

10,256,102

2,281,822

@agmmfamaﬁs
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P
=

Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk

A. Balance Sheet Exposures 5;3';
Cash Balance 1,497,590
Balance With Nepal Rastra Bank 3,732,224
Gold -
Investment in Nepalese Government Securities 21,303,475

All Claims on Government of Nepal -
Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities -
All claims on Nepal Rastra Bank -
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA 0-1) -
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA -2) -
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA -3) -
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA-4-6) -
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA -7) -

Claims On BIS, IMF, ECB, EC and MDB's recognized by
the framework

Claims on Other Multilateral Development Banks -
Claims on Domestic Public Sector Entities -
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1) -
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2) -
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6) -
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 7) -

Claims on domestic banks that meet capital adequacy

. 6,325,337
requirements

Claims on domestic banks that do not meet capital

adequacy requirements

Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0-1) -
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2) -
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 3-6) -
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7) -

Claims on foreign bank incorporated in SAARC region
operating with a buffer of 1% above their respective -
regulatory capital requirement

Claims on Domestic Corporates (Credit rating score
equivalent to AAA)

Claims on Domestic Corporates (Credit rating score
equivalent to AA+ to AA-)

Claims on Domestic Corporates (Credit rating score
equivalent to A+ to A-)

Claims on Domestic Corporates (Credit rating score
equivalent to BBB+ & below)

Claims on Domestic Corporates (Unrated) 15,253,089
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0-1) -

Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 2) -
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 3-6) -
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 7) -
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not Overdue) 48,540,562
Claims fulfilling all criterion of regularity retail except granularity -

Claims secured by residential properties 14,164,011
Claims not fully secured by residential properties -
Claims secured by residential properties (Overdue) 229967
Claims secured by Commercial real estate L4L0,714
‘F;?;tp SrL;ee Sc)laims (except for claims secured by residential 1,822,621
High Risk claims 13,961,424

Specific

Provision

45,662

404,380

Eligible
CRM

126,000

1,750,469

464,260

Net
Value
1,497,590
3,732,224
21,303,475

6,325,337

15,127,089

46,790,093

14,164,011

184,305
LLO,71L

1,418,241

13,497,165

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
20%
50%
100%
150%

0%
100%
100%
20%
50%
100%
150%

20%

100%

20%
50%
100%
150%

20%

80%

85%

90%

100%

100%
20%
50%
100%
150%
75%
100%
60%
150%
100%
100%

150%

150%

Rs. in ‘000
Risk
Weighted
Exposures

1,265,067

15,127,089

35,092,569

8,498,406

184,305
LLOTL

2,127,362

20,245,747
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Specific | Eligible

A. Balance Sheet Exposures Provision] CRM

Risk
Weighted
Exposures

Lending Against Securities (Bonds) - - - - 100% -
Lending Against Shares(upto Rs. 2.5 Million) 364,019 - - 364,019 100% 364,019
'Invgstr.nents' in eguity and other capital instruments of 381674 . B 38,674 100% 381674
institutions listed in stock exchange

!nvgstments in e‘qwtyAand other capital instruments of 27086 B B 27086 150% 40,629
institutions not listed in the stock exchange

Staff loan secured by residential property 1177727 - - 1177727 50% 588,863
Interest Receivable/claim on government securities 394,353 - - 394,353 0% -
Cash in transit and other cash items in the process of B B B B 20% B
collection ?

Other Assets 2,612907 876,717 - 1,736190  100% 1,736,190
Total (A) 132,228,780 1,326,759 2,340,729 128,561,292 86,092,635

Book Specific | Eligible
Value Provision| CRM

B. Off Balance Sheet Exposures

Risk
Weighted

Exposures

Revocable Commitments - - - - 0% -
Bills Under Collection - - - - 0% -
Forward Exchange Contract Liabilities - - - - 10% -
dé%girgn;zrftr;tfpgit;l Original Maturity Upto 6 months 133,662 ) B 133,662 20% 26,732
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) - - - - 20% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) - - - - 50% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) - - - - 100% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) - - - - 150% -
dlcfn eitoi?gtun;grt;a\r/&th Original Maturity Over 6 months 93,328 ) B 93,328 50% 16,664
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) - - - - 20% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) - - - - 50% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) - - - - 100% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) - - - - 150% -
d@iss(?;:décffr:’zg:s;?;e Bond and Counter guarantee 302,670 - 14290 288380 40% 115,352
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) - - - - 20% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) - - - - 50% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) - - - - 100% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) - - - - 150% -
Underwriting commitments - - - - 50% -
Lending of Bank's Securities or Posting of Securities as o
collateral ) ) ) - 100% )
Repurchase Agreements, Assets sale with recourse - - - - 100% -
Advance Payment Guarantee 386,009 - 7168 378,841 100% 378,841
Financial Guarantee - - - - 100% -
Acceptances and Endorsements - - - - 100% -
Unpaid portion of Partly paid shares and Securities - - - - 100% -
Irrevocable Credit commitments (short term) 1,823,672 - - 1,823,672 20% 364,734
Irrevocable Credit commitments (long term) - - - - 50% -
" Claims on foreign bank incorporated in SAARC region
operating with a buffer of 1% above - - - - 20% -
their respective regulatory capital requirement”
Other Contingent Liabilities - - - - 100% -
Unpaid Guarantee Claims - - - - 200% -
Total (B) 2,739,340 - 21,458 2,717,882 932,323
Total RWE for Credit Risk (A) +(B) 134,968,120 1,326,759 2,362,187 131,279,174 87,024,959
@ Jfepoe R b
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10. Movement on Provision for Good and Non Performation Loans: Rs. in ‘000

PSS
=

T eaeas | wem | om0

Net Interest Income 2,259,384 2,788,641 3,329,779
Commission and Discount Income 509,630 605,019 497,493
Other Operating Income 35,657 422,197 46,879
Exchange Fluctuation Income 6,259 6,243 8,445
Addition/Deduction in Interest Suspense during the period - - -
Gross income (a) 2,810,930 3,822,099 3,882,596
Alfa (b) 15% 15% 15%
Fixed Percentage of Gross Income [c=(axb)] 421,640 573,315 582,389
Capital Requirement for operational risk (d) (average of c) 525,781
Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times (e) 10
Equivalent Operational Risk Weight Exposure [f=(dxe)] 5,257,813
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk Rs. in ‘000
T i e R
Indian Rupee - -
United States Dollar 6384 131.30 8,382 8,382
Great Britain Pound 1093 166.21 1,816 1,816
Euro 21918 14216 31,158 31,158
Thai Baht 20091 377 757 757
Swiss Franc 413 14529 600 600
Australian Dollar 8.27 90.00 Tht T4t
Canadian Dollar 595 9872 587 587
Singapore Dollar 1.65 97.78 161 161
Japanese Yen 2,000.00 093 1,867 1,867
Hong Kong Dollar 1.24 16.77 21 21
Danish Kroner 4.40 1907 84 84
Swedish Kroner - - - -
Saudi Arabian Riyal 40397 35.00 14,137 14137
Qatari Riyal 172.45 3604 6,215 6,215
Emirati Dirham 199 3578 71 71
Malaysian Ringgit 391 28.31 m m
South Korean Won 575.00 010 59 59
Chinese Yuan 585 18.32 107 107
Kuwaiti Dinar 1.89 42731 808 808
Bahraini Dinar 181 34903 631 631
(a) Total Open Position 68,316 68,316
(b) Fixed Percentage 5%
(c) Capital Charge for Market Risk (=axb) 3,416
(d) Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times 10
(e) Equivalent Market Risk Weight Exposure (=cxd) 34,158

MukTINATH Bikas Bank 949
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5.3 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
The financial assets and liabilities are classified in Amortised Cost, fair value through profit and loss and fair value through other
comprehensive income. The following table exhibit the the classification of financial assets and liabilities:

3lst Asar 2080

Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent 5,326,084,785 - - 5,326,084,785
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 3,732,132,133 - - 3,732,132,133
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Other Trading Assets - 48,618,603 - 48,618,603
Loans and Advances to BFls 2,536,439,270 - - 2,536,439,270
Loans and Advances to Customers 94,456,965,952 - - 94,456,965,952
Investment Securities 21,883,725,127 - 386,113,821 22,269,838,948
Other Assets 807,641,638 - - 807,641,638
Total Financial Assets 128,742,988,905 48,618,603 386,113,821 129,177,721,329
Financial Liabilities

Due to Banks and Financial Institutions 1,999,547189 - - 1,999,547,189
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 215,874,848 - - 215,874,848
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Deposits from Customers 16,297,178,932 - - 16,297,178,932
Borrowings 18,750,000 - - 18,750,000
Other Liabilities 1,363,908,223 217,293,996 (55,663,614) 1,525,538,605
Debt Securities Issued 1,246,917,782 - - 1,246,917,782
Total Financial Liabilities 121,142,176,974 217,293,996 (55,663,614) 121,303,807,355

3l1st Asar 2080

Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI

Cash and Cash Equivalent 5,268,539,748 - - 5,268,539,748
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 3,732,132,133 - - 3,732,132,133
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Other Trading Assets - - - -
Loans and Advances to BFls 2,536,439,270 - - 2,536,439,270
Loans and Advances to Customers 94,456,965,952 - - 94,456,965,952
Investment Securities 21,698,495,679 - 386,113,821 22,084,609,500
Other Assets 760,822,253 - - 760,822,253
Total Financial Assets 128,453,395,035 - 386,113,821 128,839,508,856
Financial Liabilities

Due to Banks and Financial Institutions 1,999,547,189 - - 1,999,547,189
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 215,874,848 - - 215,874,848
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Deposits from Customers 116,449,870,954 - - 16,449,870,954
Borrowings 18,750,000 - - 18,750,000
Other Liabilities 1,244,617,478 215,712,318 (55,663,614) 1,404,666,181
Debt Securities Issued 1,246,917,782 - - 1,246,917,782
Total Financial Liabilities 121,175,578,250 215,712,318 (55,663,614)  121,335,626,954

94 @ o bR S
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32nd Asar 2079

Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent 8,145,516,992 - - 8,145,516,992
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 2,865,440,399 - - 2,865,440,399
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Other Trading Assets - 63,796,298 - 63,796,298
Loans and Advances to BFls 2,726,799,773 - - 2,726,799,773
Loans and Advances to Customers 86,811,948,415 - - 86,811,948,415
Investment Securities 17,698,746,464 - 262,635,195 17,961,381,659
Other Assets 338,300,380 - - 338,300,380
Total Financial Assets 118,586,752,423 63,796,298 262,635,195 118,913,183,917
Financial Liabilities

Due to Banks and Financial Institutions 3,750,284,110 - - 3,750,284,110
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 1,032,979,556 - - 1,032,979,556
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Deposits from Customers 104,667,788,144 - - 104,667,788,144
Borrowings 25,016,438 - - 25,016,438
Other Liabilities 1,261,826,790 136,225,756 13,680,493 1,411,733,039
Debt Securities Issued 1,246,489,292 - - 1,246,489,292
Total Financial Liabilities 111,984,384,330 136,225,756 13,680,493 112,134,290,578

32nd Asar 2079

Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI

PSS
=

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent 8,101,009,812 - 8,101,009,812
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 2,865,440,399 - - 2,865,440,399
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Other Trading Assets - - - -
Loans and Advances to BFls 2,726,799,773 - - 2,726,799,773
Loans and Advances to Customers 86,811,948,415 - - 86,811,948,415
Investment Securities 17,673,746,464 - 262,635,195 17,936,381,659
Other Assets 314,810,890 - - 314,810,890
Total Financial Assets 118,493,755,753 - 262,635,195 118,756,390,949
Financial Liabilities

Due to Banks and Financial Institutions 3,750,284,110 - - 3,750,284,110
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 1,032,979,556 - - 1,032,979,556
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Deposits from Customers 104,675,072,263 - - 104,675,072,263
Borrowings 25,016,438 - - 25,016,438
Other Liabilities 1,235,609,904 135,019,951 13,680,493 1,384,310,348
Debt Securities Issued 1,246,489,291 - - 1,246,489,291
Total Financial Liabilities 111,965,451,562 135,019,951 13,680,493 112,114,152,007
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5.4 Operating Segment Information
1. General information
Factors that management used to identify the entity’s reportable segments
An operating segment is a component of the Bank that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue and incur
expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Bank’s other components, whose operating
results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources allocated to each segment
and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Based on the nature of the business, transactions, products and services, the management have identified three reporting segment

for the purpose of financial reporting:

i.  Banking Operation
The banking of the Bank provides the customer with the services like personal and corporate banking, corporate and retail
credit, project financing, hire purchase financing, trade financing, foreign currency operations, issuing of debit cards, internet
banking, mobile banking, money remittance facilities and other incidental services. The income includes all the revenue
generated for providing aforesaid services while expenses includes interest income, personnel expenses and operating
expenses including the impairment charges created on the assets of the segment

ii. Treasury Operation
Treasury function of the bank manages the liquidity on the branch level and of the banks as a whole. This segment encompasses
the incomes derived from government securities, treasury bills, dividend on investment securities, forex trading and revaluation
gain/loss. The interest cost of borrowing, personnel expenses, depreciation, provisions on the securities and other operating
expenses are the cost included in this segment

ii. Digital Banking Operation
Digital Banking Operation encompasses the revenue generated through the mobile banking, internet banking, different wallets,
remittances and processing of digital transactions.

2. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities

[ Pl | Banking | Treasury | Dighal Banking

Revenues from external customers 14,620,928,660 1,346,359,307 123,604,466 16,090,892,433
Inter Segment Expenses/revenues - - - -
Net Revenue 14,620,928,660 1,346,359,307 123,604,466 16,090,892,433
Interest Revenue 14,147,250,220 1,327,986,092 - 15,475,236,312
Interest Expense 11,143,667,804 227,474,549 - 11,371,142,353
Net interest expenses/revenue 3,003,582,417 1,100,511,543 - 4,104,093,960
Depreciation and Amortisation 233,840,671 31,318 236,891 234,108,880
Segment Profit /(Loss) 586,231,983 1,100,480,225 123,604,466 1,810,316,674
Impairment of Assets 1,988,581,396 - - 1,988,581,396
Segment Assets 101,623,920,172 29,987,286,883 - 131,611,207,055
Segment Liabilities 120,766,606,107 1,481,542,630 - 122,248,148,737

3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
Revenues from external customers comprise of gross interest revenue, gross fee and commission revenue, net trading revenue,
other operating incomes and intersegment revenue.

The transaction between the department are recorded using the interbranch and interdepartmental account These accounts are

reconciled and interdepartmental balances are cancelled out at each reporting date. The interdepartmental revenue and expenses
are the transfer pricing of the funds which is calculated using the bank’s policy.
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4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

PSS
=

Revenues from external customers comprise of gross interest revenue, gross fee and commission revenue, net trading revenue,

other operating incomes and intersegment revenue.

a. Revenue

Total revenues for reportable segments 16,090,892,433
Other revenues -
Elimination of intersegment revenues -
Entity’s revenues 16,090,892,433

b. Profit or loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segments 1,810,316,674
Other profit or loss -
Elimination of intersegment profits -
Unallocated amount -
Profit before income tax 1,810,316,674

c. Assets

Total assets for reportable segments 131,611,207,055
Other assets -
Unallocated amounts -
Entity’s assets 131,611,207,055

d. Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments
Other liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

122,248,148,737

Entity’s liabilities

122,248,148,737

Information about products and services

Funded and Non Funded Credit Facilities 14,521,067,546
Treasury Operations 1,346,359,307
Remittance 19,912,560
Service Fees 162,608,019
Digital Banking Services 32,392,568
Other Allied Products and Services 8,552,432
Total Revenue 16,090,892,433

Information about geographical areas
Revenue from following geographical areas

Koshi Province 943,092,818
Madesh Pradesh 713,718,472
Bagmati Pradesh 7,463,995,688
Gandaki Pradesh 5,016,872,703
Lumbini Pradesh 1,599,805,025
Karnali Pradesh 130,456,103
Sudur Paschim Pradesh 222,951,623
Total 16,090,892,433

Information about major customers
The Bank do not have any customer, which generate more than 10% of the entity’s revenue.
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Share options and share based payment
A share-based payment is a transaction in which the bank receives goods or services either as consideration for its equity instruments

or by incurring liabilities for amounts based on the price of the entity’s shares or other equity instruments of the entity. The Bank do

not extend the share options and share based payment to any of its employees. Thus, during the reporting period the bank does not

have any transactions that are to be accounted as per NFRS 2 “ Share based payments”.

Contingent liabilities and commitment
Comprehensive disclosure of the contingent liabilities and commitments are made on Note 4.28.

Related Party Disclosures
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the reporting entity (“the Bank”) by virtue of having control or joint control,

significant influence or being key managerial personnel of the entity as defined in “NAS 24 Related Party Disclosures”. The Bank has

identified the following related parties and transactions with them.

List of related party
The following parties have been identified as the related party transaction as per NAS 24:

Name of the Related Party Relationship

Muktinath Capital Limited Subsidiary Company
Muktinath Krishi Company Limited Associate Company
Bharat Raj Dhakal Chairman

Gajendra Man Shrestha Director

Rabindra Man Shrestha (retired w.e.f 31st Bhadra 2080) Director

Shalikgram Mishra Director

Nirmala Kumari KC Karki Female Director

Shyam Sundar Sharma Independent Director
Pradyuman Pokharel, Chief Executive Officer Key Managerial Personnel
Samir Sekhar Bajracharya, Deputy Chief Executive Officer Key Managerial Personnel
Til Bahadur Gurung, Assistant Deputy Chief Executive Officer Key Managerial Personnel
Govinda Bahadur Raut, Assistant Chief Executive Officer Key Managerial Personnel

Related Party Transactions
Board of Directors Allowances and Facilities

No of e

Board Meeting 22 1,438,000
Audit Committee Meeting 8 116,000
Risk Management Committee 4 58,000
Assets Money Laundering Prevention Committee 5 37,500
Employees Facilities Committee 2 15,000
Building Construction Committee 12 65,000
Total 1,729,500

In addition to above meeting allowance, the following amount have been paid to directors:

Chairman Other Directors Ll A o
Paid

Reimbursement for Mobile Expenses 4,000 per month 4,000 per month 480,000
Reimbursement for Newspaper & Magazines 2,500 per month 2,500 per month 360,000

Key Managerial Personnel’s Emoluments and Facilities

Assistant Asst. Deputy

Chief Chief 27 () Chief
. . Executive Executive
Executive Executive Officer Officer
Officer Officer
Salary and Allowances 1,534,900 4,716,600 6,071,400 9,500,000
Provident Fund 28,140 213,840 300,960 600,000
Leave and Gratuity - 143,100 201,400 375,000
Statutory Bonus 766,942 908,175 1,278,918 2,614,907
Total 2,329,982 5,981,715 7,852,678 13,089,907

In addition to above, the key managerial personnel are entitled to other benefits as per the policy of the Bank.
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Subsidiary and Associate Company
The transaction with the subsidiary and associate company during the year are as follows:

Muktinath Capital Limited Deposits outstanding 152,692,022
Muktinath Capital Limited Interest paid on deposits 7,655,746
Muktinath Capital Limited Service fees for acting as Registrar to Shares & Debentures 450,000
Muktinath Capital Limited Corporate Action fees 155,860
Muktinath Capital Limited Addition of Capital 126,545,905
Muktinath Krishi Company Limited Deposits outstanding in current, call & fixed accounts 4,737,668
Muktinath Krishi Company Limited Interest paid on deposits 2,425,629
Muktinath Krishi Company Limited Addition of Capital 55,550,000

Apart from the above transactions the Muktinath Capital Limited has been managing the portfolio of NPR 200 Millions on behalf
of the Bank.

Merger and Acquisition
The bank has neither entered into merger not acquired any bank and financials institutions during the reporting period.

Additional disclosure of non consolidated entities

The group financials includes the figures of the Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited and its subsidiary Muktinath Capital Limited as per the
provisions of NFRS 10 : Consolidated Financial Statements. There are no such entities which are required to be consolidated but not
done during the year.

Events after reporting date
Events after the reporting period are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period
and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. The Bank follows NAS-10 “Events after the Reporting Period” to
account for and report the events that have occurred after the reporting period. Such events may be adjusting and non-adjusting and
are disclosed below.
a. Adjusting Events
Recovery of Interest after reporting date and up to Shrawan 15, 2080
The Nepal Rastra Bank Directive requires the Bank and Financial Institutions to transfer the equivalent amount of interest on loans
and advances accounted as an interest income under the accrual basis of accounting but not recovered up to the end of reporting
period to the Regulatory Reserve from the Retained Earnings. However, the same directives has relaxed this provision with which
Bank may not appropriate such amount in case it is recovered within the 15 days after the year end, i.e. 15th Shrawn.

In line with the aforesaid relaxation the gross amount of NPR 225,634,203 which was otherwise required to be appropriated to the
Regulatory Reserves has not been so appropriated. The details are as follows:

Accrued interest receivable (except for the staff loans) 998,691,247 442,506,776
Less: Cessation of the interest on loan (Refer Notes 5.17) 122,098,462 24,272,803
Less: Interest recovered up to 15th Shrawn as per Directives No. 4 225,634,203 148,502,246
Amount required to be appropriated to Regulatory Reserves (before staff bonus & tax) 650,958,582 269,731,728
Amount already appropriated to Regulatory Reserves (before staff bonus & tax) 269,731,728 103,115,536
Gross appropriations to the Regulatory Reserves (before staff bonus & taxes) 381,226,854 166,616,192
Net appropriations to the Regulatory Reserves for unrecovered interest 240,172,918 104,968,201
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b. Non Adjusting Events

Dividend Declaration

Subsequent to the reporting date, the Board of Directors of the Bank has proposed the distribution of 9.75% of the existing paid up
capital as Bonus Shares amounting NPR 626,037,777. and 0.5132% of the existing paid up capital as cash dividend for tax pupose
amounting NPR 32,949,357 vide 3l1ith Board meeting dated 5th Poush 2080 from the retained earnings up to FY 2079/80. The
proposed distribution is subject to the approval by Annual General Meeting of the shareholders.

The amount of the dividend proposed in current year and previous year is as follows:

3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Stock Dividend 975 626,037,777 13.50 763,719,416
Cash Dividend 0.5132 32,949,357 071 40,195,759
Total 10.2632 658,987,133 14.21 803,915,174

Additional Disclosures
a. Loans and Advances extended to Promoters:

The Bank has not extended any loans to promoters during the year.

b. Staff Skill Development Fund

The Bank and Financial Institution are required to allocate and spent at least 3% of the previous year salary and allowances for the
staff skill development as per Directive 6 of the Nepal Rastra Bank Directives. In case the allocated amount isn’t spent, the same
has to be carried forward to the next financial year in a Staff Skill Development Fund. In line of this requirement, the movement
on the Skill Development Fund is as follows:

Opening Staff Skill Development Fund 13,829,392 -
3% of the previous year salary and allowances 24,458,212 22,030,987
Total amount incurred for employee training and skill development program 21,164,489 8,201,596
Excess/(Deficit) amount incurred for employee training and skill development program 3,293,722 13,829,392
Staff Skill Development Fund carried forward to next year 17,123,114 13,829,392

Corporate Social Responsibility Fund
Clause 13 of the NRB Directive No.6. requires the Bank to allocate 1% of its net profit to the corporate social responsibility fund and
spent the same for the social causes. The details of the movement of the Corporate Social Responsibility Fund is presented below:

Opening Corporate Social Responsibility Fund 13,955,382 11,564,350
Less: Expenses incurred from CSR Fund during the year 12,623,067 11,027,021
Add: Amount allocated to CSR Fund from current year net profit 12,482,263 13,418,053
CSR Fund available for next financial year 13,814,578 13,955,382

Province wise and Sectorwise Corporate Social Responsibility Fund spending is as follows:

Koshi Province 1,618,574 Social Projects and Literacy Program 4,304,911

Madesh Pradesh 755,730 Direct Donation 35,000

Bagmati Pradesh 6,202,179 Sustainable Development Goals 7134,808

Gandaki Pradesh 2,410912 Expenses against COVID 322,494

Lumbini Pradesh 792,577 Donation to Orphanage & Old Age 488,793

Home

Karnali Pradesh 232,625 Kholau Khata Abhiyan, 2076

Sudur Paschim Pradesh 610,470 Others 337,061

Total 12,623,067 Total 12,623,067
@ Jfepoe R b
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d. Unpaid Dividend
The total cash dividend of NPR 15,390,944 which was approved by AGM of the bank during various previous years is still payable
to shareholders as at reporting date. The details are as follows:

Total dividend payable in the books of Bank outstanding for more than 5 years 1,124,484 1,421,296
Total dividend payable with Bank's RTS Muktinath Capital Limited outstanding for less 14,266,460 16,301,366
than 5 years

Total Unpaid Dividend 15,390,944 17,722,663

512 Earning Per Share

The earnings per share calculated on the basis of the provision of NAS 33, Earnings per Share is as follows:

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 1,248,226,268 1,341,805,287
Number of ordinary shares as at year end (Face Value NPR 100/-) 64,209,003 64,209,003
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for computing EPS 64,209,003 64,209,003
Basic earnings per equity share 1944 209 (Restated)
Diluted earning per share 19.44 209 (Restated)

513 Non-Banking Assets
Non-Banking Assets (NBA) are the assets obtained as security for loans & advances and subsequently taken over by the Bank. The
following are the list of properties assumed by the Bank as the non banking assets during the course of debt recovery :

m Date of assuming NBA 3l1st Asar 2080 32nd Asar 2079

Oshon Fancy Stores 26/06/2022 14,032,658 14,032,658
Ramii Poudel 12/04/2022 6,988,004 6,988,004
Shree Laxmi Bag Store 04/07/2022 7,333,470 7,333,470
Dilliram Oli 07/07/2022 10,716,273 10,716,273
Dipesh Guragain 15/07/2022 8,234,476 8,234,476
Laxmi & Naitik Enterprises 15/07/2022 3,745,970 3,745,970
K.C. Falful Tatha Tarkari Pasal 16/11/2022 3,959,876 -
Dhanraj Pakhrin 27/11/2022 10,410,095 -
Gyan Sarathi Vidhyapitha Pvt Ltd. 27/12/2022 53,362,590 -
Chaudhary Trade And Investment Pvt Ltd 05/04/2023 50,762,338 -
Sita Didi Fancy Stores 13/04/2023 6,020,751 -
Sita Kumari Kunwar 13/04/2023 8,643,968 -
Sita Agro Farm 13/04/2023 750,760 -
Saraswati Timilsina 13/04/2023 174,521 -
Us;:vy(l)(gran Arjun Sunchadi Gargahana 06/07/2023 14,105,347 B
Kalpana Shrestha 06/07/2023 mns -
Bageshwari Trade Concern PvtlLtd 11/07/2023 56,728,569 -
Total 256,080,782 51,050,852

Non-Banking assets (NBA) as disclosed above is reported under Investment Property in Notes 412 and is carried at the cost

514 Loan written off
The Bank has written off the following loans pertaining to unrecoverable bad debts during the year.

Name of the Borrower Written off Amount

Biru Bhai Traders and Construction 335,779
Sita Didi Fancy Stores 1,078,300
Rojina Shrestha 8,119,187
Pramila Devkota 294,088
Goma Devkota 143,641
Bharat Bahadur B.K. 285,107
Total 10,256,102

PSS
=
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Fair Value Hierarchy
The fair value hierarchy that the Bank has applied in measuring its financial assets and financial liabiliites is as follows:

Level ““
m- 3lst Asar 2080 | 32nd Asar 2079 | 31st Asar 2080 | 32nd Asar 2079

Financial Assets
i. Through FVTPL

Other Trading Assets Level 1 48,619 63,796 - -
ii. Through FVTOCI

Investment Securities - Quoted Level 1 19,646,168 16,124,454 19,460,938 16,099,454
Investment Securities - Unquoted Level 2 2,623,671 1,836,928 2,623,671 1,836,928
iii. At Amortised Cost

Cash and Cash Equivalent Level 3 5,326,085 8,145,517 5,268,540 8,101,010
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank Level 3 3,732,132 2,865,440 3,732,132 2,865,440
Placement with B&Fls Level 3 - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments Level 3 - - - -
Loans and Advances to BFls Level 3 2,536,439 2,726,800 2,536,439 2,726,800
Loans and Advances to Customers Level 3 94,456,966 86,811,948 94,456,966 86,811,948
Other Assets Level 3 807,642 338,300 760,822 314,811
Total Financial Assets 129,177,721 118,913,184 128,839,509 118,756,391

Financial Liabilities
i. Through FVTPL/FVTOCI

Liability for employees DBO Level 3 161,630.38 149,906.25 160,048.70 148,700.44
ii. At Amortised Cost

Due to B&Fis Level 3 1,999,547 3,750,284 1,999,547 3,750,284
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank Level 3 215,875 1,032,980 215,875 1,032,980
Derivative Financial Instruments Level 3 = - = -
Deposits from Customers Level 3 116,297,179 104,667,788 116,449,871 104,675,072
Borrowings Level 3 18,750 25,016 18,750 25,016
Other Liabilities Level 3 1,363,908 1,261,827 1,244,617 1,235,610
Debt Securities Issued Level 3 1,246,918 1,246,489 1,246,918 1,246,489
Total Financial Liabilities 121,303,807 112,134,291 121,335,627 112,114,152

Disclosure on Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance

MoU with iDE Nepal

The Bank has entered into agreement with iDE Nepal, a global organization that advances market-based approaches in agriculture;
access to finance; and water, sanitation, and hygiene (WASH) to increase household income by provided easy access to finance
in climate-smart agriculture technologies, with a focus on women and disadvantaged/marginalized groups, made possible through
a bundled service offering that combined non-traditional financial service (NTFS) loan and crop insurance products to stimulate
commercial vegetable production. The program included development and distribution of small-farmer, climate-smart agricultural
loans from Muktinath Bikas Bank through two mechanisms, one known as Business Correspondent/Wholesale Loan Model and Rural
Aggregation/Direct-to-Farmer Loan Model.

In pursuant to the terms of the agreement of iDE Nepal, the Bank has received the grant as the reimbursement of the expenses
incurred for the project and has accounted the grant received as per NAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance The following amount has been recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss Account as the grant income:

Name of the Borrower

iDE Nepal 695,738
Total 695,738

Disclosure pursuant to Guideline on Recognition of Interest Income, 2019

In line with the NRB’s Guideline on Recognition of Interest Income, 2019 which provides for the cessation of the the interest on loan,
in case where contractual payments of principal and/or interest of the loan are due for more than 12 months the Bank has suspended
to recognize the following amount as the interest income:

Interest Income Suspended 122,098,462 24,272,803
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518 Concentration of Deposits and Loans & Advances

3lst Asar 2080 | 32nd Asar 2079 | 31st Asar 2080 | 32nd Asar 2079

Total Amount Outstanding (Gross) 97,339,245,583  89,654,338,236 117,926,646,126  107,897,679,363
Highest exposure of single customers 859,256,200 839,256,200 2,681,577,428 3,029,922,454
Concentration of exposure to single customers 0.88% 094% 2.27% 2.81%
Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers 5,886,163,660 5,617,560,827 13,507,256,602 14,612,168,419
Concentration of exposure to twenty largest customers 6.05% 6.27% N.45% 13.54%

519 Additional Disclosures on Loans and Advances
i. COVID Relaxations Related
The Bank has extended various COVID related relaxations in line with NRB Directions and the internal product paper. The
outstanding and number of customers facilitated are as follows:

2 & Amount e & Amount
Customers Customers

Accrued Interest Received after Asar end 2080 till 15

43,026 225,634,203 41,277 148,502,246
Shrawn 80
Extension of moratorium period of loan provided to _ B B B
industry or project under construction
Restrgctured/Rescheduled Loan with 5% Loan Loss 266 1,577,551,823 1,566 151,084,848
Provision
Enhancement of Working Capital Loan by 20% to B B
COVID affected borrowers ALY 143,494,118
Enhancement of Term Loan by 10% to COVID affected B B 70 23,694,557
borrowers
Expiry Date of Additional 20% Workings Capital
Loan(COVID Loan) extended for up to 1 year with 5% - - 266 143,494,118
provisioning

Time Extension provided for repayment of principal
and interest for up to two years as per Clause 41 of - - - -
NRB Directives 2

The refinance and business continuity loan detail is as follows:

No. of No. of
- - 206

Refinance Loan 944,079,032
Business Continuity Loan - - - -

The subsidized loans details are as follows:

N C Amount e & Amount
Customers Customers

Subsidized Loan 5,783 516,732,777 6,086 6,401,524,299

5.20 Comparative Figures
Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year’s presentation.

As per our report of even date

Sanjiv Poudel Pradyuman Pokharel Bharat Raj Dhakal Bikesh Madhikarmi
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman Partner
CSC & Co.

Gajendra Man Shrestha Shaligram Mishra Nirmala Kumari KC Karki Shyam Sundar Sharma Chartered Accountants

Director Director Director Independent Director

Date : 5th Poush 2080
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Principal Indicators of last 5 Financial Year

FY FY FY
H AN AT A7 m 2075-76 2076-77 2077-78 | 2078-79 | 2079-80

1. Net Profit/ Gross Income 3400 25.37 30.51 35.01 2683
2. Earnings Per Share NPR 2794 16.56 2403 2372 1944
3. Market Value Per Share NPR 370 312 657 440 407
4, Price Earning Ratio Times 13.24 18.84 27.34 18.55 2094
5. Stock Dividend % 17.60 1.25 17.58 13.50 975
6. Cash Dividend % 093 4.26 093 07n 0.5132
7. Interest Income/ Total Interest Earning Assets % 1086 12.08 8.37 10.79 13.04
8. Staff Expenses/ Total Operating Expenses % 59.32 61.25 6592 64.89 65.36
9. Interest Expenses/ Total Interest Bearing Liabilities % 6.89 756 552 786 976
10.  Exchange Gain/ Total Income % 013 0.49 014 0.21 0.30
1. Staff Bonus/Total Staff Expenses % 19.78 14.31 16.56 17.64 1399
12.  Net Profit/Total Loans & Advances % 2.24 1.47 1.51 1.50 129
13. Net Profit/ Total Assets % 1.65 1.07 114 m 095
14.  Total Loans & Advances/Total Deposits % 82.61 8094 8276 8258 81.89
15.  Total Operating Expenses/Total Assets % 222 2.20 163 1.51 1.62

16.  Capital Adequacy (On Risk Weighted Assets)

a. Core Capital % 12.29 n97 994 883 884

b. Supplementary Capital % 115 126 125 297 294

c. Total Capital Fund % 13.44 13.23 1n19 1.80 n.77
7. Liquidity Ratio % 2588 2783 2407 2632 25.67
18.  Non-Performing Loan/ Total Credit (as per NRB Directives) % 007 0.259 0.23 0.21 098
19.  Base Rate % 1.36 998 805 n15 1.68
20. Cost of Fund % 8.69 752 6.26 924 952
21.  Interest Yield on Loans % 13.67 12.51 10.78 1376 14.18
22.  Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread % 498 499 4.48 4.51 4.59
23. Number of Shares Nos. 30,647,601 43,249,895 48,115,508 56,571,809 64,209,003
24, Net Worth Per Share NPR 14518 134.53 14198 142.77 145.82
26.  Return on Total Assets % 1.65 107 114 1m 095
27.  Return on Equity % 19.24 1216 1694 16.61 13.33
28.  Number of Employees Nos. 1,223 1,436 1,547 1,555 1,663
29, Number of Branch including extension counters Nos. 1152 135 158 177 178
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Nagarkoti Susan & Associates « Email :info@nsassociates.com.np
Chartered Accountants Contact :+977-9851335843, 9849290844

Tokha-03, Kathmandu, Nepal

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
The Shareholders of Muktinath Capital Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s. Muktinath Capital Limited,
Kathmandu, Nepal (hereinafter referred to as “the company”), which comprises the
statement of financial position as at Ashad 31, 2080 [July 16, 2023] and statement of profit or
loss, statement of cash flow & statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and
notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view, in all
material respects, of the financial position of the company as at Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended on that date in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSA'’s). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
company in accordance with the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Nepal's code for
professional accountants (ICAN Code) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.




Audit Matters
1. Valuation of Investment

Investment of the company comprises of
investments in listed Shares, Initial Public
Offerings, Mutual Funds and Fixed
Deposits.

The classifications, valuations and
disclosures of the aforesaid investment
shall be done in line with NFRS 9 financial
instruments; NFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurements; NFRS 7  Financial
Instruments: Disclosure. Investment made
in listed securities and mutual fund has
been treated as Investment held for trading
and recognised as Fair Value Through
Profit and Loss. And investment in fixed
deposits have been measured at amortised
cost.

2. Revenue Recognition:

Revenue comprises of Income from
Merchant Banking Activities, Interest
Income from fixed deposit, Other Income,
and Net Gain/ (loss) due to fair value
change on financial instruments held for
trading.

In view of primary business of the company
being the merchant banking we have
considered merchant banking income and
portfolio management service income as key
audit matters in our audit.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Audit Approach and Responses

Our audit approach regarding valuation

of investment, impairment, its accounting

includes:
a. We ensured classifications and
accounting of investments made by
company and its valuation were in
accordance to NFRS 9 and NFRS 13
Issued by Accounting Standards
Board of Nepal.

b. We ensured the correctness of the
valuation of investment valued at
amortised cost through sample
verification of effective interest rate
and amortization schedule.

c. For the investment made on quoted
equity instruments & units of mutual
fund, we ensured that fair value has
been done at the closing transaction
rate in NEPSE as on 31.03.2080.
Investment in promoters shares has
been recorded at cost and seperately
_ disclosed.

Our audit approach regarding revenue
recognition with respect to merchant
banking  income and  portfolio
management service income includes the
following among other things:

a. Ensured the portfolio management
service revenue has been recognised
on the basis of pms contract agreed
with the client at the time of
agreement.

b. Ensured the related fees like
performance fees, exit fees has been
calculated and recorded as per the
agreement in the timley manner.




Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do s0.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken an the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSA4, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidences that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidences obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
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the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidences obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, proper
books of account as required by law have been kept by the organization in so for as it appears
from our examination of those books of account of the company. In our opinion the statement
of financial position, statement of profit or loss, statement of other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity & statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes have been prepared
in accordance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2063 and are in agreement with the
books of accounts maintained by the company. In our opinion and to the best of information
and according to the explanation given to us and from the examination of the books of
accounts of the company, we have not come across any case where the board of directors or
any employee of the company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts, or
committed any misappropriation or caused any loss or damage to the company.

For Nagarakoti Susan and Assoc1ates
Chartered Accountal}ts S & 4y
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CA. Susan Nagarkoti

Proprietor

Date: 1o8/04]34

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

UDIN: 179 231009CAILTAREsz M
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MUKTINATH CAPITAL LIMITED

Statement of Financial Position

As on Ashad 31, 2080 (16 July 2023)

Figures in NPR

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4] 373,637,058.32 56,791,298.57
Investment Securities- Investment Securities through FVTPL 4.2 48,618,602.55 63,796,29795
Investment Securities- Investment Securities through FVTOCI 43 - -
Financial Investment-Held for Maturity 4.4 21,607,000.00 20,000,000.00
Other Financial Assets 4.5 46,059,367.20 22,745,906.62
Other Assets 4.6 1,093,564.37 823,230.81
Current Tax Assets 47 4,579,371.01 -
Investment Property 48 33,115,680.00 33,115,680.00
Property and Equipment 49 7174,328.48 10,250,49590
Right of Use Asset 49] 7,386,958.89 8,665,042.57
Intangible Assets 41 672,467.22 969,081.12
Deferred Tax Assets 411 1,311,657.20 9,790,074.44
Total Assets 545,256,055.24 226,947,10798
Liabilities

Due to Public/Refundable to Investors 4]2 - -
Other Financial Liabilities 413 115,424,29117 28,439,866.35
Other Liabilities 414 8,234,355.38 7,54L6,163.71
Current Tax Liabilities 470 - 193,164
Other Provisions 415 £4,898,305.24 817,975.00
Deferred Tax Liabilities 401 - -
Total Liabilties 128,556,951.79 36,997,169.17
Equity

Share Capital 416 £405,000,000.00 202,500,000.00
Share Premium 40,404.50 -
Retained Earning 4,662,43908 (16,908,208.38)
Reserves 417 6,996,259.87 £4,358,14718
Total Equity 416,699,103.45 189,949,938.80
Total Liability and Equity 545,256,055.24 226,947,10798

Contingent liabilities and commitment

Notes 1to 6.5 Forms integral part of Financial Statements

As per our attached report of even date

For Nagarkoti Susan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA. Susan Nagarkoti
Proprietor

Date : 2080/06/17
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

90

Sitaram Kaphle
(Chairman/ Director)

Deepanjali Khakurel
(Director)

Dandapani Dhakal
(Director)

Suman Koirala

(Director) (CEO)

Umesh Regmi
(Director)

Kabindra Bikram Dhoj Joshi

Adarsha Raj Pandey
(Director)

Kamala Karki
(Accounts Officer)

@agmqfaasmaﬁs
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MUKTINATH CAPITAL LIMITED

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the Period commencing on Shrawan 1, 2079 and ending on Ashad 31, 2080

Figures in NPR

Revenue

Revenue from Operation 418 26,949,018.82 31,628,430.70
Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Investments-HFT 419 3,356,465.10 (28,522,040.12)
Other Income 420 46,517,668.64 11,581,291.20
Total Revenue 76,823,152.56 14,687,681.78
Expenses

Employee Benefit Expenses 4.21 21,802,157.80 16,113,643.06
Operating Expenses 4,22 14,829,639.56 16,114,311.21
Depreciation and Amortization 4.23 5,591,033.07 5,506,027.87
Total Expenses 42,222,830.42 37,733,982.13
Profit before Tax from Continuing Operations 34,600,322.14 (23,046,300.35)
Income Tax

Current Year Tax 4L24 1,836,425.87 2,634,06719
Deferred Tax (Income)/Expenses 424 8,478,417.24 (9,400,659.41)
Profit for the Year 24,285,479.03 (16,279,708.14)
Earning Per Share 600 (8.04)
Notes 1to 6.5 Forms integral part of Financial Statements

As per our attached report of even date

For Nagarkoti Susan & Associates Sitaram Kaphle Dandapani Dhakal Umesh Regmi Adarsha Raj Pandey
Chartered Accountants (Chairman/ Director) (Director) (Director) (Director)

CA. Susan Nagarkoti

Proprietor (Director)

Date : 2080/06/17
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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MukTINATH Bikas Bank

Deepanjali Khakurel

Suman Koirala
(Director)

Kabindra Bikram Dhoj Joshi

(CEO)

Kamala Karki
(Accounts Officer)
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MUKTINATH CAPITAL LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flow
For the Period commencing on Shrawan 1, 2079 and ending on Ashad 31, 2080

For the Period Ended For the Period Ended
Ashad 31, 2080 Ashad 32, 2079

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Figures in NPR

Merchant Banking Income 12,549,616.80 11,605,008.00
Mero Share Online Income 3,448,550.00 £4,190,750.00
Underwritting Income £4,699,72900 797,120.00
Portfolio Management Income 2,997,04913 12,613,123.89
Advisory Income 651,764.71 -
IPO/FPO lIssue Income 500,000.00 -
Pledge Income 233,300.00 202,400.00
Auction Income 25,000.00 285,000.00
Issue Management Income 100,000.00 500,000.00
RTS Income 1,744,00918 1,435,028.81
Other Income 8,909,617.00 5,644,529.50
Less: Personnel Expenses (21,802,157.80) (16,113,643.06)
Less: Operating Expenses (14,786,71610) (14,256,538.23)
Operating Cash Flows Before Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities (730,238.08) 6,902,77891
(Increase)/Decrease In Operating Assets

(Increase)/Decrease In Financial Assets (23,313,460.58) 28,464,16393
(Increase)/Decrease In Other Assets (270,333.56) (645,688.69)
Increase/(Decrease) In Operating Liabilities

Increase/(Decrease) In due to Public/Investor - -
Increase/(Decrease) In Financial Liabilities 86,984,424.82 (72,197,415.20)
Increase/(Decrease) In Provisions £4,080,330.24 (6,482,416.00)
Increase/(Decrease) In Tax Provision (4,772,53512) -
Increase/(Decrease) In Other Liabilities 688,191.67 934,630.04
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities Before Tax Paid 62,666,379.38 (43,023,947.00)
Income Taxes Paid (1,836,425.87) (2,634,06719)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 60,829,953.51 (45,658,014.19)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Investment Securitites - Quoted (43,467,585.78) (56,060,991.22)
Sale of Investment Securities - Quoted 84,501,746.27 48,924,23215
Purchase of Investment Securitites - Unquoted (20,000,000.00) -
Sale of Investment Securities - Unquoted - -
Purchase of Investment Securitites - Mutual Fund (2,500,000.00) -
Sale of Investment Securities - Mutual Fund - -
Liquidation from Fixed deposit - 7,500,000.00
Investment in Debenture (16,607,000.00) -
Investment in Fixed Deposit 15,000,000.00 -
Purchase of Property and Equipment (94,169.62) (6,584,230.17)
Receipt from the Sale of Property and Equipment 35,000.00 -
Purchase of Intangible Assets (156,166.00) (352,560.00)
Receipt from the Sale of Intangible Assets - -
Purchase of Investment Properties - -
Receipt from the Sale of Investment Properties = -
Increase/Decrease in ROU (811,184.80) (1,390,403.21)
Interest Received 37,375,785.41 5,246,704.37
Dividend Received 232,266.23 690,057.33
Net Cash used In Investing Activities 53,508,691.71 (12,027,190.75)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipt from Issue of Shares 202,500,000.00 -
Share Premium 40,404.50 -
Expenditure from corporate social responsibility (33,290.00) -
Dividends Paid - (36,450,000.00)
Interest Paid - -
Net Cash from Financing Activities 202,507,114.50 (36,450,000.00)
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents 316,845,759.73 (94,135,204.94)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Shrawan 1, 2079 56,791,298.57 150,926,503.49
Effect of Exchange Rate Fluctuations on Cash and Cash Equivalents Held - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Ashad end 2080 373,637,058.32 56,791,298.57

Notes 1to 6.5 Forms integral part of Financial Statements
As per our attached report of even date

For Nagarkoti Susan & Associates Sitaram Kaphle
Chartered Accountants (Chairman/ Director) (Director)
CA. Susan Nagarkoti Deepanjali Khakurel
Proprietor (Director) (Director)

Date : 2080/06/17
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Dandapani Dhakal

Suman Koirala

Umesh Regmi

(Director)

Kabindra Bikram Dhoj Joshi

Adarsha Raj Pandey
(Director)

Kamala Karki
(Accounts Officer)
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MUKTINATH CAPITAL LIMITED

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For the Period commencing on Shrawan 1, 2079 and ending on Ashad 31, 2080 Figures in NPR

For the Period
Ended Ashad 32,
2080 2079

For the Period
Ended Ashad 31,

Profit for the Year 24,285,479.03 (16,279,708.14)
Gains/(Losses) on Remeasuring Available for Sale Financial Assets - -
Gains/(Losses) on Acturial Valuation of Defined Benefit Liability - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 24,285,479.03 (16,279,708.14)
Income Tax Income/(Expense) relating to components of other comprehensive income - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax 24,285,479.03 (16,279,708.14)

Notes 1to 6.5 Forms integral part of Financial Statements

As per our attached report of
even date

For Nagarkoti Susan & Associates Sitaram Kaphle

Chartered Accountants

CA. Susan Nagarkoti

(Chairman/ Director)

Deepanjali Khakurel

Dandapani Dhakal
(Director)

Suman Koirala

Umesh Regmi
(Director)

Kabindra Bikram Dhoj Joshi

Adarsha Raj Pandey
(Director)

Kamala Karki

Proprietor (Director) (Director) (CEO) (Accounts Officer)

Date : 2080/06/17
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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MUKTINATH CAPITAL LIMITED

Statement of Change in Equity
For the Period commencing on Shrawan 1, 2079 and ending on Ashad 31, 2080
Figures in NPR

Share Share General Available | Fair Value Retained Total
Capital Premium Reserve for Sale Reserve Earnings

Balance as at Shrawan 1,
2078

202,500,000 - 4,167,191 - - 465,031 35,821,500 242,953,722

Profit for the Year (16,279,708)  (16,279,708)
Change in Fair Value - - -
Apportion to General Reserve - - _

Distribution of Dividend

(including Tax) (36,450,000) (36,450,000)

Apportion to CSR Reserve - - -

Expenses out of CSR Reserve - - - - (274,075) - (274,075)
233172““ as at Ashad 32, 202,500,000 - 4167191 - - 190956 (16908,208) 189,949,939
Balance as at Shrawan 1, 202,500,000 - 4167091 - - 190,956 (16,908,208) 189,949,939

2079

Prior Period Adjustments - - - - - (43,429) (43,429)

Restated Balance as at

Shrawan 1, 2079 202,500,000 - 4,167,191 - - 190,956 (16,951,637) 189,906,510
Profit for the Year - - - - - 24,285479 24,285,479
Change in Fair Value - - - - - - -
Apportion to General Reserve - 2,428,548 - - - (2,428,548) -
Issue of Share Capital: Right 202,500,000 40,405 ) . ) ) - 202540405

Share Issued

Corporate Social Responisbility B _ - - 242,855 (242,855) -

Reserve

Expenses out of CSR Reserve - - - - (33,290) - (33,290)
Distribution of Dividend B B B B B B B
(including Tax)

:glaa(;\ce as at Ashad 31, 405,000,000 40,405 6595739 - - 400521 4,662,439 416,699,103
Notes 1to 6.5 Forms integral part of Financial Statements

As per our attached report of

even date

For Nagarkoti Susan & Associates Sitaram Kaphle Dandapani Dhakal Umesh Regmi Adarsha Raj Pandey
Chartered Accountants (Chairman/ Director) (Director) (Director) (Director)

CA. Susan Nagarkoti Deepanjali Khakurel Suman Koirala Kabindra Bikram Dhoj Joshi Kamala Karki
Proprietor (Director) (Director) (CEO) (Accounts Officer)

Date : 2080/06/17
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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